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Our Vision
EMHHNER

The Group strives to fortify its business portfolio by leveraging
on the experience in entertainment and tourist-related
industries and strengthening its competitiveness by exploring
new opportunities in property investment business. We
endeavour to create long-term value for all of our stakeholders
through the balanced and diversified business portfolio, while
adhering to a high standard of corporate governance.
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Business Highlights
FBHE

Revenue from continuing operations was
approximately HK$589.9 million and gross profit was
approximately HK$20.1 million for 2017

Loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$29.8 million for 2017

Recorded a huge non-cash fair value gain on
investment properties and a substantial increase of
approximately sixty times in this segment results

Jade Travel established a new business line in
wholesale by providing ticketing fulfilment service for
online travel agencies, and also worked closer with
several leading online travel portals to provide more
competitive price on ticket sales

The Adjusted EBITDA* of Ponte 16, the Group's
flagship investment project, was approximately
HK$225.3 million for 2017, and average occupancy
rate of Sofitel Macau At Ponte 16 reached
approximately 91% during the reporting year

Adjusted EBITDA: Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation
and Amortisation (and excluded interest income from the pledged
bank deposit)
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Financial Highlights

MBZEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—-HLHEE

2017 2016 2015
—E—+tF —E—RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BT T BT T BT
RESULTS £
CONTINUING OPERATIONS: FBACE RS
Revenue I =5
Travel i 583,425 562,676 941,078
Property investment MERE 6,510 2,172 -
589,935 564,848 941,078
Share of results of associates ~ JE{LHE = A &)
E (9,879) 17,513 29,288
Profit/(loss) for the year from REFELCEER 2
continuing operations REZRF,
(E518) 4,369 (16,299) 7,500
DISCONTINUED OPERATION: — FARIFAR & #FK -
Loss for the year from KB DRI EET
discontinued operation: ZAFEEE
Lottery MR (37,825) (20,766) (19,143)
Loss for the year KEEEE (33,456) (37,065) (11,643)
Loss attributable to owners 7~ TR R E/LEE
of the Company (29,810) (30,977) (6,670)
At 31 December
R+=—BA=+—8H
2017 2016 2015
—E—+tF —E—RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BT T BT T BT
CONSOLIDATED mEMBMRE
STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
Total assets BERE 1,046,047 1,188,434 1,153,279
Total liabilities BER 48,191 182,077 107,607
Net assets EEZFRE 997,856 1,006,357 1,045,672
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2017 finished on a positive note for world'’s
by major economies, the Group will continue to
= pursue opportunities to keep up with the
evolving marketplace and optimise its
corporate strategy of creating long-term
value for stakeholders.

2017 F 2T ERERZZWHAGTINR - AE
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Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017.

2017 finished on a positive note for world’s major
economies, in spite of the shadow cast by an uncertain
political climate in the Euro area. Among all, China
managed to maintain its growth rate, dispelling fears over
a potential sharp slowdown after decades of rapid growth;
the Eurozone also staged a recovery after years of
uncertainty; and various economic data of the United
States of America signified an improved business
environment. All these positive factors gave impetus to the
long-term development of consumer spending and
investment confidence.

With our deep-rooted industrial experiences and solidified
entertainment and touristed-related businesses, we will
continue to unearth new elements and ideas to enrich our
customers’ experience in every aspect. Our prudent while
optimism approach would not only allows us to maintain
our competitiveness, but also enables us to look for new
business opportunities towards a stable and sustainable
development irrespective of short-term market volatility.

TURNING TO A NEW CHAPTER

2018 marked the 10™ anniversary of Ponte 16. This is
certainly a milestone worth celebrating. Over the past
decade, Ponte 16 transformed and marched forward
together with Macau amidst opportunities and challenges.
Along the ongoing structural changes in both macro
economy and Macau gaming market, Ponte 16 and Macau
have seized every opportunity to keep in step with the
market, and even break through. This corporate value was
fully demonstrated during the hit of Super Typhoon Hato,
one of the strongest on record, in August 2017. We made
timely actions to ensure the safety of our guests in Ponte
16 on the day, and resumed operations fully in about one
month’s time.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ERBE (&)

Turning to a new chapter in 2018, we believe it is destined
to be a fascinating year and we are all looking forward to
an exciting ride which will lead us to a new milestone.
From “MJ Gallery” in 2010, indoor reality adventure game
“Dangerous” in 2013, “Pier 16 Macau 3D World"” in
2015, “Adventure Bouncer Zone"” in 2016 and “G Racing
Simulators” in 2017, we are committed to creating more
values with more innovative entertainment offerings for
the guests of Ponte 16. This year, Ponte 16 has introduced
the new kids play zone featuring the European cartoon
character Angry Birds, which is in the process of obtaining
relevant licenses. Based on our past 10-year experience
and expertise in the industry, we have strong faith in
Macau’s long term prospects and will continue to discover
and bring the best multi-dimensional leisure and tourism
experience into Macau.

HARNESS BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES IN
NEW MARKETS

The global travel and hospitality industry has entered a
new era of growth and transformation. In addition to the
usual recreation and sight-seeing, travellers nowadays are
looking for a larger variety and exclusive tour selections. In
view of this emerging trend, our travel business arm Jade
travel, with a long history and brand in the wholesale
travel network in Canada, did not stop moving forward
but deepened its new ventures in the retail and online
travel businesses since 2016, aiming to harness the
opportunities in these markets and build a more
sustainable business.

In 2017, we further delved into the retail market by
introducing customerised tours and expanding its
wholesale business by offering the ticketing fulfilment
service for online travel agencies. We are in good faith that
our endeavours will be paid off in the near future for it is a
right direction to build an even bigger brand in the travel
territory for a long-term development.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

INVESTING FOR GROWTH

Undoubtedly that commercial property in prime locations
is a scarce resource in the densely-populated Hong Kong.
We made timely decisions to accumulate an investment
portfolio of commercial properties in prime locations when
opportunities come. Foreseeing both the rental and price
for offices in the central district in Hong Kong will continue
their growth momentum, these property investments
would provide us a capital appreciation potential in a
longer term, as well as fruitful and recurring rental income.
Underpinned by its growing property portfolios in Hong
Kong, the Group will continue to create value from them
which enhance our earnings quality and visibility.

APPRECIATION

Going forward, the Group will continue to pursue
opportunities to keep up with the evolving marketplace
and optimise its corporate strategy of creating long-term
value for stakeholders.

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, customers and business
partners for their continuous support and trust, and thank
my fellow directors for their concerted effort and insights
through the past years. The growth of the business would
not be attained without the efforts from the Group’s
management team and the unwavering commitment of
our staff. Please allow me to express my sincere
appreciation to our management team and staff for their
dedication and commitment.

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

Global economies enjoyed the upswing in 2017 on the
back of robust investment, improving consumer
confidence and labour market, while Macau’s gross
gaming revenue (“GGR") experienced a recovery driven by
the solid VIP and mass growth momentum in 2017 under
such positive backdrop. The global economy is expected to
grow at a strong pace and the Group is optimistic about
the economic outlook for the year ahead. The Group has
made further progress in its property investment business
since 2016, and will continue to strengthen its
competitiveness by exploring new opportunities. It will also
strive to fortify its business portfolio to capture the
enormous market potential, by leveraging on its
experience in entertainment and tourist-related industries.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements and the related
notes included in this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEERNWR D (&

RESULTS

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$29.8 million (2016: approximately HK$31.0 million)
including a loss recognised from the Disposal (as defined
hereinafter) of approximately HK$37.9 million, whilst loss
per share from continuing and discontinued operations
was 0.61 HK cents (2016: 0.63 HK cents). Notwithstanding
the Group shared a loss of the associates relating to Ponte
16, the flagship investment project of the Group, for the
year ended 31 December 2017 which was mainly due to
the performance of Ponte 16 adversely affected by the
Super Typhoon Hato in August 2017 and the increase in
the loss of the Group's travel business, loss for the year
reduced by approximately 10% to approximately HK$33.5
million (2016: approximately HK$37.1 million) which was
mainly attributable to the fair value gain on investment
properties.

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue of the
Group was approximately HK$589.9 million, increased by
approximately 4% from approximately HK$564.8 million
for the same period of 2016. Gross profit decreased by
approximately 2% to approximately HK$20.1 million
(2016: approximately HK$20.6 million). The Group's
shared loss of the associates relating to Ponte 16 for the
year of 2017 was approximately HK$9.9 million (2016:
profit of approximately HK$17.5 million). Earnings per
share from continuing operations was 0.16 HK cents
(2016: loss per share from continuing operations was 0.29
HK cents).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Reference was made to the Company’s announcement
dated 8 September 2017 in relation to the disposal of the
Group's lottery business at a consideration of HK$12.0
million (the “Disposal”). Upon completion of the Disposal
in September 2017, a loss of approximately HK$37.9
million was recognised by the Group, and the Group
ceased to carry on any lottery-related business in China.

In 2017, revenue of the lottery business amounted to
approximately HK$19.1 million (2016: approximately
HK$8.3 million). The segment loss was approximately
HK$37.8 million (2016: approximately HK$20.8 million),
including the loss of approximately HK$37.9 million on the
Disposal as mentioned above. Loss attributable to the
owners of the Company from the discontinued operation
of approximately HK$37.9 million (2016: approximately
HK$16.6 million) was recorded for the reporting year.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid in 2017 (2016: nil). The
directors of the Company (“Director(s)”) do not
recommend any payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Travel Business

The Group’s travel business gained exposure in the retail market and
extended the business coverage to integrated travel solutions, establishing
a solid foundation for further development.

AREBREXFRNEZENT S FERBENR - U EBHBEIRRZ4E Ik
RN RAKRE—FPERE MRERE -

16 SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E &R Bk AR A A



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Travel Business

The Group operates Jade Travel Ltd. (“Jade Travel”), one
of the largest travel agencies in Canada, and has
developed two business segments in order to provide
more professional services to customers. Air Booking
Center was established in early 2017 to serve corporate
customers, while the traditional Jade Tours targets at retail
and tour customers.

£ 3E1)

KN & B 4 & #Jade Travel Ltd. ([Jade
Travel]) RIMERZAKIIRITHH 22— I
ENFMEXBSHER  EERTPR
B F 8 R  Air Booking Center 7%
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MEREERRBFAUTE RIRER P
REZE-
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENmR DN (&

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Travel Business (continued)

In view of the gradual economic recovery and the
increasing demand for leisure travel, the Group
strategically strengthened its operations by expanding the
retail segment with its established brand in the region.
With the increasing savvy and demand from travellers,
Jade Travel extended its product offerings to provide
featured and personalised travel packages, allowing
travellers to enjoy in-depth and unique travel experience
with extra fine delicacies and entertainment arrangements.
Together with its online booking service platforms and 24-
hour customer hotline service, the retail business was well
received by the customers in 2017.

Jade Travel also worked closer with several leading
domestic and international online travel portals to provide
more competitive price on ticket sales. In order to achieve
a more efficient resources allocation, Jade Travel
established a new business line in wholesale by providing
ticketing fulfilment service for online travel agencies in
addition to its traditional wholesale business.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{ZRI AR A T

% e R (4E)

hie iz =% (48)

BEZ QB R HE R R KA IRE 2 F KA
I AEBREE S E R - A
HRRAMZOmESEIRTER -
ERNIREN R B RFREEBS - Jade
Travel i EEmAARIEER & MEAL
MIKEESR - 8= H1ERE MIRE L BERIR
BEEXRARBEORERR - BLAEH
FRATRBTFER TGRSR
R TEXBR_T—LFRXEFPH
B

Jade Travel 7162 % {8 B9 (4] J% B BR &) 3 22 i
ERLBEEEE BREFAFEFINE
B REEFBERMNERD K Jade
Travel R L EF L BB ER - - 5%
BB ERERIBREZEARSE -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWR

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Travel Business (continued)

During the reporting year, the ever-changing market trend
and technology reshaped the attitude and habit toward
travellers, Jade Travel has strived to respond and react to
the market dynamics in order to stay ahead of the
competition. Revenue of the segment increased to
approximately HK$583.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: approximately HK$562.7 million).
Loss in this segment amounted to approximately HK$15.7
million (2016: approximately HK$7.9 million), including an
impairment loss on intangible assets of approximately
HK$4.6 million (2016: approximately HK$3.2 million)
which was recognised for the reporting year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWE D (&)

Property Investment Business T W
MEREXTE
The new segment of property investment business will provide a steady

recurring rental income to the Group, broadening its revenue stream.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Property Investment Business

The Group has built an investment portfolio of commercial
properties in prime locations in Hong Kong for steady
rental income and capital appreciation potential since mid
of 2016. In February 2017, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
acquire a property in Sing-Ho Finance Building, Wanchai at
a consideration of approximately HK$19.5 million and the
acquisition was completed in April 2017. Coupled with the
property in Admiralty Centre (the “Existing Property”), the
Group currently owns two office premises in Hong Kong
for investment purpose.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENwWR DN (A&)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Property Investment Business (continued)
Benefiting from the soaring property prices in Hong Kong,
the Group recorded a huge non-cash fair value gain on
investment properties and a substantial increase of
approximately sixty times in this segment results. Revenue
of the property investment business for the reporting year
amounted to approximately HK$6.5 million, representing
an increase of approximately 200% as compared with
approximately HK$2.2 million for the last corresponding
year, while segment profit was approximately HK$83.4
million (2016: approximately HK$1.3 million) including the
fair value gain on investment properties of approximately
HK$79.2 million (2016: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWmE D (&)

Investment Project —
Ponte 16 m
REEBEH—T/NH

2016 marked a turn-around of Macau gaming market, Ponte 16 continued
to maintain its competitiveness and deliver comprehensive entertainment
experience, upholding its leading position in the Inner Harbour of Macau.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16

The opening of new resorts and diversified entertainment
offerings supported Macau to retrieve its economic growth
momentum, where the total GGR in Macau reported a
substantial year-on-year growth of 19% in 2017. However,
the Super Typhoon Hato ripped through Macau in August
2017, caused widespread flood around the inner harbour
of the Macau Peninsula and caused partial closure of
Ponte 16's casino operation for about one month.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENmR DN (&

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the casino of Ponte 16 had 109
gaming tables, consisting of 96 mass gaming tables, 7
high-limit tables and 6 VIP tables. Adjusted EBITDA* for
the reporting year decreased by approximately 19% to
approximately HK$225.3 million (2016: approximately
HK$277.4 million). Thanks to the increasing visitors to
Macau and the continual effort and promotions at Ponte
16, there was a satisfactory improvement in the overall
revenue of Sofitel Macau At Ponte 16 that the average
occupancy rate reached to approximately 91% during the
reporting year.

With its dedication in offering guests with top notch resort
experience, Sofitel Macau At Ponte 16 received 16
honourable industry awards in 2017 as the recognitions of
its outstanding quality and world-class services. These
awards include “Best Luxury Hotel in Macau” and “Best
Romantic Hotel in Macau” by Haute Grandeur Global
Hotel Awards 2017, “Elegant Luxury Hotel of the year” by
The Luxury Travel Guide and more. Privé was awarded
with “My Favorite Hotel Restaurant” by iFood Award
2017, and “French Cuisine Country Winner” by 2017
World Luxury Restaurant Awards and So SPA was awarded
with “Asia’s Top Wellness Spa” by NOW Travel Asia
Awards 2017. The above awards have highly recognised
the superior international standard and quality offered by
Sofitel Macau At Ponte 16.

* Adjusted EBITDA: Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation
and Amortisation (and excluded interest income from the pledged
bank deposit)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)
Taking advantage of higher volume of visitors to Macau,
Ponte 16 continues to enhance its entertainment portfolio
and marketing strategy to maintain its leading position as
one of the most popular destinations in the Macau
Peninsula. The only virtual and professional car racing
facility in Macau — “G Racing Simulators” was introduced
during the reporting year, which offers 16 stations of 4K
racing simulation of the Macau Grand Prix Racing Event.
Ponte 16 also embraces the prolific local cultures through
inviting quality street performers to make great
performances at the outdoor plaza, filling additional vitality
and arts to the unique local culture of Macau's inner
harbour.

Ponte 16 has deep roots in the community and takes a
proactive approach to address the sustainability challenges
faced by its hotel and entertainment businesses. It also
supports and promotes responsible gaming in accordance
with the rules and regulations of the Macau government
authorities, by upholding related policies and practices
during daily operations.

With the implementation of environmental management
system and the internal “Planet 21 Program”, Ponte 16
has continued to improve its performance in energy usage,
water consumption, waste and emissions in the hotel
operation. During the reporting year, Sofitel Macau At
Ponte 16 was granted the “Silver Award” by Macao Green
Hotel Award as a recognition of its continuous investment
on environmental initiatives, in particular for the
replacement of LED lights with higher energy efficiency,
and the adoption of water recycling scheme that reused
over 9,600m? of grey water for toilet flushing purpose, as
well as the installation of flow regulators to improve water
consumption efficiency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENmR DN (&

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)

In view of the maturity of the syndicated loan facilities
granted to Pier 16 — Property Development Limited (“Pier
16 — Property Development”, an associate of the Group
and is principally engaged in the investment, development
and, through its subsidiaries, operation of Ponte 16) on 29
June 2017 and for the purposes of, among others,
refinancing the syndicated loan facilities and financing the
repayment of certain shareholders’ loans previously
advanced to Pier 16 — Property Development, Pier 16 —
Property Development entered into an amended and
restated facility agreement (the “Amended Facility
Agreement”) with, among others, a bank as lender in June
2017. Pursuant to the Amended Facility Agreement, the
maturity date under the syndicated loan facilities
agreement was extended to 28 June 2022 and the facility
amount was revised to the aggregate amounts of HK$735
million and MOP273 million (the “Revised Loan Facilities”).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current
assets of approximately HK$160.7 million (31 December
2016: approximately HK$252.9 million) and net assets of
approximately HK$997.9 million (31 December 2016:
approximately HK$1,006.4 million). The Group adopts a
conservative approach towards its treasury policies. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
monitoring the trade receivables of its customers on an
ongoing basis. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely
monitors the Group's liquidity position to ensure that the
liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
commitments can meet its funding requirements.
Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the
foreign exchange exposure. The Group’s transactional
currency are Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and Canadian
dollars (“CAD") as substantially all the revenues are in HK$
and CAD. The Group's transactional foreign exchange
exposure was insignificant.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
(continued)

On 1 December 2008, Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (“Mr.
Yeung”, being the Chairman of the Board, an executive
Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company)
provided a HK$200 million term loan facility to the
Company which is unsecured and charged with interest at
the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited.
The principal amount of the loan facility was increased up
to HK$290 million on 14 April 2009 (the “Revised Mr.
Yeung’s Loan Facility”) and the final repayment date of
the loan and all other sums owing to Mr. Yeung under the
Revised Mr. Yeung’s Loan Facility was further extended
from 31 October 2016 to 31 October 2018 by a
supplemental letter of agreement dated 15 March 2016.
As at 31 December 2017, the Company had no
outstanding loan owed to Mr. Yeung under the Revised
Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility (31 December 2016: nil).

In 2016, the Group obtained a secured bank facility which
bears interest at Hong Kong interbank offered rate (HIBOR)
plus 2% per annum. The proceeds of the facility were for
the Group's general operation. During the reporting year,
the Company had repaid all the outstanding loans under
such secured bank facility (31 December 2016:
approximately HK$122.5 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENmR DN (&

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
(continued)

Apart from the aforesaid loans, as at 31 December 2017,
there was a loan from non-controlling shareholder of
approximately CAD4.3 million, equivalent to approximately
HK$27.2 million (31 December 2016: approximately
CADA4.0 million and HK$7.3 million, totally equivalent to
approximately HK$30.7 million). The loan was interest-free
and unsecured. As at 31 December 2017, total equity
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$1,010.6 million (31 December 2016: approximately
HK$1,033.5 million). The gearing ratio, which was
measured on the basis of the interest-bearing borrowings
of the Group over total equity attributable to owners of
the Company, as the Group has no interest-bearing
borrowings as at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio
was zero (31 December 2016: approximately 12%).

Provision of Financial Assistance to Pier 16 -
Property Development

References were made to the announcement dated 16
June 2017 (the “Financial Assistance Announcement”)
and the circular dated 19 July 2017 (the “Financial
Assistance Circular”) issued by the Company in relation to
the provision of financial assistance to Pier 16 — Property
Development (the “2017 Financial Assistance”). The
estimated total exposure of the Company under the
provision of the 2017 Financial Assistance was
approximately HK$532 million.

The provision of the 2017 Financial Assistance constituted
a major transaction for the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). On 16 June
2017, the Company obtained a written shareholder’s
approval from a shareholder, which held approximately
52.10% of the entire issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of such written approval, in respect of the
provision of the 2017 Financial Assistance. For further
details of the 2017 Financial Assistance, please refer to the
Financial Assistance Announcement and the Financial
Assistance Circular.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Provision of Financial Assistance to Pier 16 -
Property Development (continued)

Based on the valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer, the Group has recognised financial
guarantee contract liability of approximately HK$3.2
million at the date of its issuance, and has a corresponding
increase in its interests in associates as deemed capital
contribution.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had secured the
following assets:

(a)

(b)

(c)

the Group pledged the time deposits of
approximately CAD1.5 million and United States
dollars (“USD") 0.1 million, totally equivalent to
approximately HK$10.1 million (31 December 2016:
approximately CAD1.5 million and USDO.1 million,
totally equivalent to approximately HK$9.4 million) to
certain banks for the issuance of a standby letter of
credit and overdraft facility of approximately CAD1.5
million and a standby letter of credit of approximately
USDO0.1 million, totally equivalent to approximately
HK$10.0 million (31 December 2016: a standby letter
of credit and overdraft facility of approximately
CAD1.5 million and a standby letter of credit of
approximately USDO.1 million, totally equivalent to
approximately HK$9.3 million) for the operation of
the Group;

World Fortune Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, pledged all (31 December
2016: all) of its shares in Pier 16 — Property
Development to a bank in respect of the Revised
Loan Facilities; and

the Group pledged one of its investment properties
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$269.0
million (31 December 2016: approximately HK$191.7
million) to secure against a bank loan granted to the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWmR D (E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Contingent Liabilities

The Company gave a new corporate guarantee (the “New
Guarantee”) to a bank in respect of the Revised Loan
Facilities under the 2017 Financial Assistance. The
maximum guarantee amount borne by the Company
under the New Guarantee was HK$490 million. The
guarantee previously issued by the Company in the
amount of HK$1,176 million for the syndicated loan
facilities granted to Pier 16 — Property Development, which
had been fully repaid on 29 June 2017, was released
during the year.

The outstanding loan under the Revised Loan Facilities as
at 31 December 2017 was approximately HK$635.0
million (31 December 2016: the outstanding loan under
the previous syndicated loan facilities was approximately
HK$260.9 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 114
employees. Remuneration is determined on the basis of
qualifications, experience, responsibilities and
performance. In addition to the basic remuneration, staff
benefits include medical insurance and retirement benefits.
Share options may also be granted to eligible employees
of the Group as a long-term incentive.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

PROSPECTS

With the solid economic foundation set in 2017, the
outlook of global economic growth is expected to be
positive in 2018 amid the political uncertainties. In order
to capture the opportunities and benefit from the
recovering market sentiment, the Group has significantly
re-shaped the business portfolio with progressive
development of property investment business and the
Disposal, and will continue to evolve the offerings in the
entertainment and tourist-related industries to create
greater value.

The major infrastructure improvement and the Greater Bay
Area initiatives are believed to increase Macau's exposure
to domestic and international visitors. In addition to Macau
government'’s supporting policies in transforming into the
“World Centre of Tourism and Leisure”, the Group is
optimistic with the growth potential in Macau in the long-
term. Nowadays, non-gaming facilities in particular of the
family fun entertainment have emerged a higher priority
for Macau visitors. The Group will continue to explore and
enrich the spectrum of its entertainment offerings, while
Ponte 16 is well-prepared to introduce new adventures
and interactive games in order to remain competitive in
the market.

Jade Travel's online ticketing fulfilment service is expected
to grow steadily in 2018, with the ongoing advancement
of the automated ticketing process on the online platform
and the active advertising strategies on social media and
APPs. Complementing the corporate and wholesale
divisions, the retail division is well-positioned as a high-end
customised tours provider in the market, it will also
continue to develop a broader variety of creative and
featured travel packages to maintain its competitive edge
and market share.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEERWR D (&)

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Prime office rental in Hong Kong's central district showed
consistent growth over the years, due to a lack of supply
and strong demand from mainland companies. The Group
is confident that both rental and price for offices in the
central business district in Hong Kong will be able to
maintain their growth momentum, and will explore good
opportunity to enlarge its portfolio to capture potential
capital appreciation of properties.

In January 2018, the Group entered into a preliminary sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
to acquire the entire issued share capital of and the related
shareholders’ loans to two companies which hold several
commercial properties in Wanchai. The said acquisition is
expected to be completed in April 2018. In addition, as
announced by the Company on 13 February 2018, the
Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a
company which is direct wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Yeung to acquire the entire issued share capital of and
the related shareholders’ loans to two companies which
hold indirectly two commercial properties in Admiralty
Centre which are located adjacent to the Existing Property
(the “Proposed Acquisition”). The Proposed Acquisition
constitutes a discloseable and connected transaction for
the Company under the Listing Rules and is therefore
subject to, among others, independent shareholders’
approval. For details of the Proposed Acquisition, please
refer to the announcement dated 13 February 2018 issued
by the Company.

Looking forward in 2018, the Group will continue to
strengthen its competitiveness in the entertainment and
tourist-related industries in Asia-Pacific region and identify
good opportunity to enlarge its property portfolio. The
Group will also stay cautious and prudent towards the
formulation and implementation of long-term corporate
strategies.
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Corporate Governance Report

Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to maintain high corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance
the shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
("Director(s)”), the Company has complied with all the
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
during the year ended 31 December 2017, save for
deviation from the code provision E.1.2 which states that
the chairman of the board should attend the annual
general meeting and also invite the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as
appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should invite
another member of the committee or failing this, his duly
appointed delegate, to attend.

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, being the chairmen of the
board of Directors (the “Board”), the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) of the
Board, was unable to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 8 June 2017 (the “2017 AGM")
due to another business engagement. However, Dr. Ma
Ho Man, Hoffman, the Deputy Chairman of the Board (the
“Deputy Chairman”) who is also a member of the
Executive Committee, attended and chaired the 2017
AGM, and he together with the chairmen and/or other
members of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
of the Board, the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) of the Board and the
Nomination Committee as well as the external auditors of
the Company were available to answer questions at the
2017 AGM.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
CEEARE

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of
whom has confirmed his/her compliance with the required
standard set out in the Code of Conduct and the Model
Code throughout the year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board, led by its chairman (the “Chairman”), Mr.
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, is responsible for overseeing the
management of the business and affairs, considering and
approving strategic plans and major corporate matters, as
well as reviewing operational and financial performance.
The Board is committed to make decisions in the best
interests of both the Company and its shareholders
(“Shareholders”).
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board currently consists of six members, including two
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
(Chairman) and Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy
Chairman); a non-executive Director, namely Mr. Choi Kin
Pui, Russelle (“NED"); and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann,
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose and Mr. Chong Ming Yu
(collectively “INEDs"” or each of them “INED"). All
Directors, including the NED and all INEDs, have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. The Board is also characterised by
diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, age,
educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge and independence. A list of Directors
identifying their role and function is available on the
Company’s website and on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Directors’ biographical information is set out in the
biographical details of Directors and senior management
on pages 103 to 107 of this annual report.

The roles of the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman who
performs the function of chief executive are segregated
and assumed by separate individuals to strike a balance of
power and authority so that power and job responsibilities
are not concentrated in any one individual of the Board.
The Chairman, Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, is responsible
for overseeing the function of the Board and formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company, while the
Deputy Chairman, Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, is
responsible for implementing the Company’s strategies
regarding the business development of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) as well as
managing the Group’s businesses and operations. The
functions and responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Deputy Chairman are clearly segregated.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EERRE (F)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Except that Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman is the nephew of
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, there is no financial, business, family and/or
other material/relevant relationship among members of
the Board and between the Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman who performs the function of chief executive.

The Board includes three INEDs and one of them, Mr.
Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose, is a certified public accountant
(practising) and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as
well as a certified tax adviser and a fellow member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has over 31 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and taxation.

The NED and all INEDs entered into service contracts with
the Company for a term of one year. All executive
Directors also entered into service contracts with the
Company without specific term of office. Pursuant to the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), all Directors
appointed by the Board shall hold office until the next
following general meeting of the Company (in case of
filling a casual vacancy) or until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (in case of an addition to
the number of Directors) after their appointment and the
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. In addition,
at each annual general meeting of the Company, one-
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation
such that all Directors should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year as and
when required. Notices of at least 14 days are given to all
Directors for all regular Board meetings. The company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the Chairman in preparing the agendas for the
meetings and all Directors are consulted to include any
matters in the agendas. Agenda and accompanying board
papers are given to all Directors in a timely manner and at
least 3 days before the appointed date of each meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (F)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) BEES(E)

During the year under review, four regular Board meetings  ARIEFEANSETNAEESEIR
and five non-regular Board meetings were held. Details of R ANEEeIEEEeHE  EEHER
attendance of the Directors at the said Board meetings are ritEEe e REEHEEHN T
set out below:

Number of
Board meetings
attended/held
HEEESEERE
Directors = BITEESEINRY
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) BRI E (F/E) 8/9
Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman) Bexigt (gFE) 9/9
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle SRR S 99
Independent non-executive Directors BYAFHITES
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREZ T 9/9
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose %) & S 9/9
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRBEE 9/9
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EERRE (F)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, one general meeting of the
Company, namely the 2017 AGM. Details of attendance
of the Directors at the 2017 AGM are set out below:

EEE(A)

REBEFEARNARNRAGRIT—XREKR
e T tERRAFAE - BEEHH
BT —tFERERFREG 28 F1E
T -

2017
AGM attendance
—E—tF
BRRBFAEZ
Directors B= HE R 8%
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) BRI E (F/E) 0/1
Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman) Bexigt (gFE) 11
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle SRR S 171
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREL T 171
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose %) & S 7
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRBEE 171

The Board has agreed on a procedure to enable the
Directors to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense, to
assist them in performing their duties. All Directors are
provided with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
financial position and prospects to keep the Directors
abreast of the Group’s affairs in order to discharge their
duties. All Directors are also updated from time to time on
major changes/material developments in the laws, rules
and regulations applicable to the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Board has reviewed and considered
that the contribution required from each of the Directors
to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company was
appropriate and each of the Directors has given sufficient
time to perform his/her responsibilities. The Directors have
informed the Company in a timely manner of any change
in the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant
commitments. Each of the Directors discloses semi-
annually to the Company the identity and nature of office
he/she holds in the public companies or organisations as
well as an indication of the time involved.

Every newly appointed Director will be given a
comprehensive formal induction covering the Group's
businesses as well as the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company. To assist the
Directors to participate in continuous professional
development, the Company arranges and funds suitable
training to the Directors to update and enhance their
knowledge and skills for performing the Directors’ roles
and responsibilities. During the year under review, all
Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, Dr. Ma Ho
Man, Hoffman, Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, Ms. Yeung Mo
Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose and Mr.
Chong Ming Yu, were furnished with materials regarding
directors’ roles and duties, corporate governance as well
as applicable laws, rules and regulations updates, and also
attended an in-house seminar regarding directors’ duties
in the context of valuations in corporate transactions
organised by the Company. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend training relevant to their duties and
responsibilities that they consider appropriate. All Directors
are requested to provide their respective records of
training to the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EERRE (F)

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has established four Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee to
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to
assist in sharing the Board's responsibilities. The Board has
reserved for its decision or consideration on matters
covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
changes of members of the Board and its committees,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and
other significant operational and financial matters. All the
Board committees have clear written terms of reference
and have to report to the Board regularly on their decisions
and recommendations. The day-to-day running of the
Group, including implementation of the strategies and
plans adopted by the Board and its committees, is
delegated to management with divisional heads
responsible for different aspects of the business/affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference. The terms of reference
for the Audit Committee is available on the Company’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee currently consists of the NED and all INEDs and
is chaired by Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose who possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualification as
required under the Listing Rules.

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the
responsibility to perform the corporate governance duties
set out in the CG Code. During the year under review, the
primary duties of the Audit Committee included, inter alia,
monitoring integrity of the financial statements of the
Company and ensuring objectivity and credibility of
financial reporting, reviewing effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
(the "Risk Management and Internal Control Systems”),
overseeing the relationship with the external auditors of
the Company (“External Auditors”) as well as ensuring
maintenance of good corporate governance standard and
procedures by the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

During the year under review, three Audit Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the Audit

TEERRE (F)

EREEE (F)

REBEFERAERTZRELEZESS
& MEZZEERBHF LMEZZE

Committee members at the said Audit Committee e VR EEEY T
meetings are set out below:
Number of
Audit Committee
meetings attended/held
HEERZEESBRE
Audit Committee members EREEBRE BITEREEEERRE
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose %) & Sl
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (BFERZEEFE) 3/3
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BEEEE 3/3
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRELL 3/3
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRBEE 3/3

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during

the year included the following:

Reviewed the draft annual report and accounts as
well as the draft annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 December 2016, and the draft
interim report and accounts as well as the draft
interim results announcement for the six months
ended 30 June 2017;

Discussed with the External Auditors the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

Considered the re-appointment of the External
Auditors;

Considered the engagement of an external
independent consultant to provide internal audit
function for the year ended 31 December 2017,
which comprises, inter alia, enterprise risk
assessment, review on the internal control system of
the Group as well as review on the corporate
governance practices of the Company;

BERZZEERNFARTZ2IETRER
ATNEIA

— BRHEE-_T-AREt-A=1—
BIEFEZFREEKEERBIAL
FEEE/AHELRR  LEMEZR
—E—+tFRA=ZTHIERNEAZ
REIRE MR B ERB AR P EIZE

— B BEEEEwEEITE R
AR BB

— EEEMNTEINERBED

— EEZBINEBUBEMNERES
—E—tFF+ A=+ —BILFE
ZABEZDE (AP EE) BER
At BRAKEZ ARBEER
FARERARNRBZERERTH

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

43



44

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEEREWE (F)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Reviewed the effectiveness of the Risk Management
and Internal Control Systems, including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions;

Reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report contained in the annual report;

Considered the terms of engagement of the External
Auditors, including their proposed fees;

Reviewed the arrangements for the employees of the
Group (“Employees”) to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters;

Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

Reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of all Directors and the senior
management of the Company (“Senior Management”);

Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
and

Reviewed the codes of conduct, policy, guidelines
and compliance manuals applicable to the Directors
and the Employees.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the
Board with specific written terms of reference. The terms
of reference for the Remuneration Committee is available
on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange. The Remuneration Committee currently consists
of the Chairman of the Board, the NED and all INEDs with
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann acts as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for remuneration of all
Directors and Senior Management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy, to determine the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and Senior
Management and also to make recommendations to the
Board of the remuneration of the NED and all INEDs. The
Remuneration Committee takes into consideration on
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the
Senior Management.

During the year under review, one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held and details of attendance of
the Remuneration Committee members at the said
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Remuneration Committee meeting are set out below:

Number of
Remuneration Committee
meeting attended/held
HEFHESESRRE
Remuneration Committee members FMEEERE BOFMEZESERRE

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREZ T
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (FINZE 2T )/E) 171
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny B E 1
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle SRR 171
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose %) & e 1
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRBELE 171
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
CEEARE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The major work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year included the following:

— Determined the remuneration package of newly
appointed Senior Management;

— Reviewed the Company’s remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and Senior Management;

— Reviewed and determined the remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and the Senior
Management;

— Reviewed the remuneration packages of the NED and
all INEDs;

— Reviewed the terms of the service contracts of all
executive Directors; and

— Considered the annual performance bonus for the
Senior Management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference for the Nomination Committee is available on
the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange. The Nomination Committee currently consists
of the Chairman of the Board, the NED and all INEDs with
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny acts as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board annually, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on selection for
directorships, to assess the independence of INEDs, to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning of
Directors, and to review the Board diversity policy of the
Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) as appropriate.

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which
set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance, and will select candidates for the Board
basing on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
independence (the “Measurable Objectives”). The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
Nomination Committee will review the Measurable
Objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy
by considering the Company’s business model and specific
needs from time to time and will recommend any revision
thereof, if necessary, to the Board for consideration and
approval.

The Nomination Committee will review, as appropriate,
the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee will also discuss any revisions that
may be required, and recommend any such revisions to
the Board for consideration and approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EERRE (F)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the
Nomination Committee members at the said Nomination
Committee meetings are set out below:

REEEE (H)

REBEFERALRITMARLAZESS
& MRERZEERBHF LMEEEE
CERIRHBERIIT

Number of
Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held

HEREZEEEBRE
Nomination Committee members REZEEGHE BIREZEEEIR Y
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny S8 A
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (tBEZE2F/E) 2/2
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle SRS 2/2
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRELL 2/2
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose KL 2/2
Mr. Chong Ming Yu R E 2/2

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year included the following:

— Considered the nomination of the retiring Directors
for re-election as Directors at the 2017 AGM;

— Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

— Assessed the independence of all INEDs;

— Reviewed the policy for the nomination of Directors;
and

— Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was established by the Board
with specific written terms of reference. It currently
consists of all executive Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Hoi
Sing, Sonny and Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman with Mr. Yeung
Hoi Sing, Sonny acts as the chairman of the Executive
Committee. The Executive Committee is responsible for
reviewing and approving, inter alia, any matters
concerning the day-to-day management, business and
operational affairs of the Company, and any matters to be
delegated to it by the Board from time to time.

During the year under review, eight Executive Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the

TEERRE (F)

HITEES

EEgCRUARKF EEMRERLE 2
WITZEE - TR ESRFH 2RI
B% 0 MGERELENEEIELEK -
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Executive Committee members at the said Executive @ VRIS ENINT
Committee meetings are set out below:
Number of
Executive Committee
meetings attended/held
HEHRTEESEERRE
Executive Committee members BITEEERE BITPITEEEERRE
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny 58K
(Chairman of the Executive Committee) (HITZEEEF/E) 8/8
Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman By iE 8/8
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EERRE (F)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks
(including environmental, social and governance-related
risks ("ESG-Related Risks”)) it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, maintaining appropriate
and effective Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems (including those for ESG-Related Risks) and
reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees
management in performing its duties. The Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems are designed
to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance
against material misstatements or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems
and achievement of the Group's objectives.

The Group adopts a risk management system which
manages the risk associated with its businesses and
operations. The system comprises the following phases:

e |dentification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement
of objectives.

e Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

e Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure

effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Company has in place an internal control system
which is compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO")
2013 framework. The COSO 2013 framework enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
components of the framework are shown as follows:

e Control Environment: A set of standards, processes
and structures that provide the basis for carrying out
internal control across the Group.

e Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

e Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management
directives to mitigate risks to the achievement of
objectives are carried out.

e Information and Communication: Internal and
external communication to provide the Group with
the information needed to carry out day-to-day
controls.

e Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each components of internal
control is present and functioning.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EERRE (F)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

A disclosure of inside information policy is in place to
ensure potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance
with the Listing Rules. The policy regulates the handling
and dissemination of inside information, which includes:

e Designated reporting channels from different
departments/operation units informing any potential
inside information to the Company Secretary;

e The access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside
information are fully conversant with their obligations
to preserve confidentiality;

e  Confidentiality agreements are in place when the
Group enters into significant negotiations;

e The Senior Management to evaluate the potential
inside information and to determine further
escalation, and the executive Directors to determine
disclosure as required; and

e The Deputy Chairman is the designated person who
speaks on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties, such as media, analysts or
investors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant with professional staff in
possession of relevant expertise (the “Independent
Professional Firm") to perform internal audit function for
the year, which comprised, inter alia, enterprise risk
assessment and reviews on the internal control system of
the Group, including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The review plan was approved by the Audit
Committee and the Board. Based on the risk assessments
and the reviews of the internal control systems of the
Group conducted by the Independent Professional Firm for
the year, no significant risk and control deficiency was
identified. The relevant assessment and review reports
have been considered by the Audit Committee and the
Board for assessing the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function as well as the Company’s internal audit
function which was performed by the Independent
Professional Firm. The Board, through the reviews made by
the Independent Professional Firm and the Audit
Committee, concluded that the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems are effective and adequate for
the Group as a whole.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
CEEARE

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure the timely publication of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the External Auditors, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB"), about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is set out in the paragraph headed “Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” under the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on pages 114 to 116 of this annual report.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the amounts paid
to the external auditors of the Group in respect of the
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following services provided to the Group are as follows: MEEMS BT
HK$’'000
BETT
Audit services ZE R 925
Other advisory services (Note) H Ath B8 1 AR 7% (va2) 400
1,325

Note: Other advisory services mainly comprised interim review services

and acting as a reporting accountant in connection with the major

transaction of the Company during the year.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to provide clear and full
information of the Group to the Shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars and
financial reports of the Company. Additional information,
such as press releases and other business information, is
also available and updated in a timely manner on the
Company's website at www.successug.com.

The annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM(s)")
provides a useful forum for the Shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairman, also being the
chairmen of the Nomination Committee and the Executive
Committee respectively, was unable to attend the 2017
AGM due to another business engagement. However, Dr.
Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, the Deputy Chairman who is also a
member of the Executive Committee, attended and
chaired the 2017 AGM, and he together with the
chairmen and/or other members of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee were present at the 2017 AGM to answer the
Shareholders’ questions. HLB also attended the 2017 AGM
for the purposes of answering questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and contents of the
auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditors
independence.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantially separate issues, including the election of
individual Directors. Notices of at least 20 clear business
days and 10 clear business days are given to the
Shareholders for all AGMs and special general meetings
("SGM(s)") of the Company respectively. Detailed
procedures for conducting a poll are clearly explained at
the commencement of the general meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EERRE (F)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(CONTINUED)

The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy for the purposes of ensuring that the Shareholders
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
information about the Company, enabling the
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner and allowing the Shareholders to engage actively
with the Company. Details regarding the necessary
procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are set out in the “Procedures for
Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director”, which is available on the Company’s website.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes is the Company Secretary. Her
biographical information is set out in the sub-paragraph
headed “Company Secretary” under the section headed
"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on page 107 of this annual report.

During the year under review, in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a SGM

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call SGMs, and Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require a SGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Convening a SGM (continued)

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the Company’s head office and principal place of business
(the “Head Office”) at Suite 1601-2 & 8-10, 16/F., Great
Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Branch
Share Registrar in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to call the SGM and include
the resolution in the agenda for such SGM.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the said date.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with the detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Head Office at Suite 1601-2 &
8-10, 16/F., Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the
Company’s Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include
the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
CEEARE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings (continued)

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at AGM or SGM varies according to the nature
of the proposal, as follows:

(@ Not less than 21 clear days’ notice or not less than 20
clear business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in
writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an AGM and not less
than 21 clear days’ notice or not less than 10 clear
business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in writing
if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the
Company in any SGM; or

(b) Not less than 14 clear days’ notice or not less than 10
clear business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in
writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company in all other SGMs.

Shareholders’ enquiries

The Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Branch Share Registrar in
Hong Kong. The Shareholders may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. The Shareholders
may also make enquiries to the Board in writing with their
contact information and deposit the enquiries at the Head
Office at Suite 1601-2 & 8-10, 16/F., Great Eagle Centre,
23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there was no change in the
Company’s memorandum of association and the Bye-laws.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) believes that
the contribution to sustainable development is the
determinant of embracing infinite success, and endeavours
to promote social well-being and minimise environmental
impacts in operation.

REPORTING APPROACH

This is the second Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") report published by the Company, which summarises
its on-going efforts and remarkable achievements in
corporate social responsibility and sustainable development.
This ESG report was prepared in compliance with the
requirements set out in the ESG Reporting Guide under
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and the
Company strictly adheres to principles in the disclosure of all
material aspects of the business in a quantitative, balanced
and consistent manner. Information regarding corporate
governance is addressed in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 35 to 58 of this annual report.

SCOPE OF REPORT

This report covers the same reporting period of the annual
report which is from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017, reporting the environmental and social performance
of the Group’s head office in Hong Kong and the travel-
related business in Canada, while performance of lottery
business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
was covered only until 8 September 2017, being the
completion date of disposal of this business.

Property investment business in Hong Kong and the flagship
investment project — Ponte 16 operation in Macau have
been excluded from the scope of this report. The office
premises of the property investment business are leased out
to the tenants for their respective business operations; whilst
Ponte 16 is not under the Company’s direct operational
control.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERQRE (F)

STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

To better communicate with the stakeholders, the Group
is dedicated to establish dialogues with its employees,
shareholders, investors, clients and business partners.
During the reporting period, the Group engaged with
media and analysts in various interviews to present its
long-term vision, and conducted a survey to receive both
qualitative and quantitative feedback from stakeholders.
The collected information has been used to formulate the
corporate sustainable strategy as well as the structure of
this ESG report.

As reflected by the survey result this year, stakeholders
consider the following issues as the most important
aspects for the Group to unleash sustainable potential:

e Social aspect
o Work environment
o Job satisfaction
o  Employee benefits and welfare
o  Management and employee communication

° Environment aspect
o Energy and electricity consumption and
efficiency
o  Efficiency use of material
o] General waste management

Stakeholders’ comments are valuable to the Group’s
continuous improvement on operations. Comments or
advice on this report and its contents are welcome by
e-mail to info@successug.com.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

FOSTERING EMPLOYEE-FRIENDLY
CULTURE

Assuring Comfortable and Safe Working
Environment

Employees are precious resources and fundamental
prerequisite for achieving sustainable development, the
Group is dedicated to creating a safe and healthy
workplace environment. The office environment was
designed with extra attention to noise control, thermal
comfort, lighting and ergonomics. Air circulation and
temperature control systems were installed at offices to
improve the indoor air quality, while smoking at indoor
places is completely banned in the offices.

The Group also recognises the importance of preventive
approach and adopts an occupational health and safety
management system across business units, information
bulletins on health and safety are also published to arouse
staff awareness. During the reporting period, the Group
recorded no work-related injury and fully complied with all
the relevant labour regulations in respective regions,
including the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of
Hong Kong, Code of Occupational Disease Prevention of
the PRC and Occupational Health and Safety Act of
Canada.

Attracting and Retaining Talent

Employment and labour standard

Having clear and transparent procedures on talent
acquisition, the Group recruits suitable talents through
conducting tests and interviews. The choice of the right
candidates based strictly on their qualifications, capability,
experiences, aspirations, acumen and motivation.
Employment of child and forced labour are strictly
prohibited in the Group. If any illegal labour practices is
found, the human resources department will be
responsible for the revision and take immediate action as
appropriate. The Group did not notice any non-compliance
with the labour regulations in respective regions during
the reporting period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERQRE (F)

FOSTERING EMPLOYEE-FRIENDLY
CULTURE (CONTINUED)

Attracting and Retaining Talent (continued)
Employment and labour standard (continued)

To attract, motivate and retain talent for business
operations, the Group provides a fair and competitive
remuneration package which will be reviewed annually by
referring to related industries and comparable
organisations in the market, and also offers staff welfare,
such as appropriate overtime allowance and compensatory
leaves for overtime workers. In 2017, the Group has
continued with its pay-for-performance policy of
appraising and rewarding employees for their contribution
and capabilities.

Remuneration and benefit packages

The Group offers competitive packages to its employees
with reference to local market practices and standards. On
this basis, the Group has established a performance
evaluation system to ensure the corporate productivity and
human resource management effectiveness for further
improvement, and also motivate all employees through
promotion and salary review. The employee welfare
package includes:

e Comprehensive medical coverage

e Employee’s compensation insurance for injuries at
work

° Paid leaves (e.qg. sick leave, maternity leave, marriage
leave, birthday leave, compassionate leave and
examination leave)

e  Retirement savings plan contribution

° Food and travel allowances for overtime work

e Discounts or privileges to employees

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{ZRI AR A T

EEREEREZ XL (&)

KR BRE AT (&

EBRRK % THEE(H)
AEBRBEAFRARFENOHFMTE
DA AR ~ SR R IREE A A BRI R AE M
BE2EMS LNEBTERFEBERE
ETRE - MABK LENE TRHES
MILRB R MBREEN - R=ZF—1F
AEBEBEHTERFMEE - FHERE
BIEEMNERIN T BE -

FrBH R 45 71538
AEEZ2EEWMSENNEE - REE
RHUEABRFINGE - AEBE DRI EE
RIABMEHE RS - REREEND KA
HERERGRIEAMEE—TRTT - T8
BETMFMEZ S 2RESR - BER
MEFBEE

o ZHBERE

o REETHHERR

o  FEFERE(PIMNRER - ER - BR-
ABRR - BMEREEHR)

o RIKFHEFTEIHR

o BRITENEREEZERM

o  EEFNHKLER



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

FOSTERING EMPLOYEE-FRIENDLY
CULTURE (CONTINUED)

Attracting and Retaining Talent (continued)
Equal opportunities and diversity

The Group adheres to fair employment practices and
promotes diversity and equal opportunity. It believes a
diverse and inclusive human resource could constitute a
competitive advantage, while the corporate vision could
only be successfully achieved with the full engagement
and cooperative spirit of diverse employees.

Moreover, the Group is committed to providing an
inclusive and harmonious workplace for employees, free
from inequality and discrimination, regardless of age,
gender, race, religion belief and physical disability. The
Group holds a vision of boosting business growth with a
vibrant and inclusive working environment that develops
engaged, loyal and diverse human resource.

The Group’s human rights policy and principles are based
on the core values of ethical business practices and respect
for people. Such vision operates in conjunction with the
corporate code of conduct. The Group has zero tolerance
toward the exploitation of children or any worker engaged
in unacceptably hazardous work, physical punishment,
abuse, or involuntary servitude.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERRE (B)

FOSTERING EMPLOYEE-FRIENDLY
CULTURE (CONTINUED)

Attracting and Retaining Talent (continued)
Equal opportunities and diversity (continued)

EEEESREL ()

AR IBREANT (&)
FEHERZTTIL (F)

Business Units

RBEQ
The Head Travel Lottery
Office in Business in Business
Employment (no. of people) Hong Kong Canada in the PRC*
ER(AR) ERARER NMEAKEEY FEVRER"
Total Number of Employees 56 51 53
EEAY
By Gender Male 16 13 41
'3 Bt
Female 40 38 12
Tt
By Employment Type Senior Management 5 2 2
NERERE S BRERAR
Management 12 5 15
EEAR
Office Staff 31 44 0
MERBE
General Staff 8 0 36
—RBE
By Age Group <20 0 0
AR89 21-30 3 3 31
31-40 16 11 10
41-50 20 13 10
51-60 13 17 2
> 60 4 7 0
Turnover Rate MAE 5.5% 27.1% 1.5%

Remarks: Apart from the reported figures shown in the table, there were
seven staffs working in the business units beyond the scope of

this report

* As at 8 September 2017
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

FOSTERING EMPLOYEE-FRIENDLY
CULTURE (CONTINUED)

Supporting Talents Development

Staff capacity building

In order to facilitate employees to reach their full potential,
the Group is committed to providing continuous training
and learning opportunities to enrich their expertise and
catalyse their career development, encouraging them to
build professional knowledge, ethics loyalty and integrity.

The Group provides a nurturing environment with a set of
comprehensive human resources policies and talent
management system. During the reporting period, the
Group organised orientations for new employees to
understand the company’s mission, values, visions and
practices, while employees’ teamwork, interpersonal skills
and social competences are effectively developed through
regular team meetings and discussions.

Healthy work-life balance is crucial to increase staff
motivation and sense of belonging, the Group recognises
its importance and organises activities for the emotional,
intellectual and social well-being of employees. The Group
also offers Long Service Awards to acknowledge long-
serving employees as encouragement to their proactive
contribution during the period of service.

Employee communication

A corporate culture of open communication is one of the
core values of the Group, and various communication
channels are available to collect employees’ feedback and
expectations. These effective exchanges will facilitate the
management to identify critical issues in the early stage,
and create the mastery goal orientation for productivity
enhancement.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERQRE (F)

FOSTERING EMPLOYEE-FRIENDLY
CULTURE (CONTINUED)

Supporting Talents Development (continued)
Employee communication (continued)

The Group pays great attention to employees’ opinion
with full respect. Through the designated email channel,
employees are able to communicate with the management
and propose ideas for improving employee wellness and
business operations. The Group believes that taking care
of employees with tolerance, compassion, flexibility, and
support them in difficult times, often leads to enhanced
productivity.

Moreover, annual performance appraisal is conducted to
encourage a dialogue between the employees and their
supervisor, which not only considered as a tool to monitor
and evaluate employee performance, but also understand
the views of employee to aid in their professional
development.

PROVIDING CUSTOMERS-ORIENTED
SERVICES

Ensuring Product Responsibility

Quality services

The Group strives to earn the trust of customers and the
community by providing the finest service in different
areas, while quality considerations are integrated into all
aspects of business by conforming to international quality
standard. During the reporting period, the Group did not
receive any complaints from customers, which reflected
it's commitment for high-standard service.

Customer data protection

The Group takes the issue of customer privacy seriously,
while customers’ information are being handled with care
in order to ensure their rights are protected. Sensitive and
personal information will be kept secure and confidential
on the basis of the consent of the person concerned, while
reasonable technological and measures are in place to
preserve the data against unlawful loss and alteration.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

PROVIDING CUSTOMERS-ORIENTED
SERVICES (CONTINUED)

Ensuring Product Responsibility (continued)
Customer data protection (continued)

During the reporting period, the Group strictly complied
with all the laws and regulations in respective countries,
including the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in Hong
Kong and the Code of Advertising Standards in Canada.
The Group has also implemented a new measure to handle
expired file; document with confidential information were
being sent to company which specialises on material
destruction.

Intellectual property right

The Group highly values intellectual property right and
considers it as an important asset; illegally-downloaded
software or applications without copyright is strictly
prohibited in daily operation. The Group will continue to
stay aware of the operation and reconcile the behaviour if
any violation is discovered.

Upholding Corporate Ethics and Integrity

The Group believes that maintaining an impeccable
corporate image from corruption is crucial to the
sustainable development, and thus has zero tolerance
regarding bribery and corruption in any form. The
demonstration of fair and honest business practices would
allow the Group to expose to extensive business
opportunities in long run.

To maintain high standards of business ethics and
corporate governance, the Group implements its
commitment through respective policies and guidelines
addressing prevention of bribery, such as acceptance of
gifts and conflicts of interest. Related procedures and
guidelines are clearly set out in the Employee Handbook.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERQRE (F)

PROVIDING CUSTOMERS-ORIENTED
SERVICES (CONTINUED)

Upholding Corporate Ethics and Integrity
(continued)

Whistle-blowing policy and email channel have been
established since 2011 to ensure any concerns,
improprieties or fraudulent acts can be reported in
confidence by the employees and investigated
confidentially. During the year of 2017, the audit
committee of the board of directors of the Company
reviewed and considered that the aforesaid arrangement
was appropriate, and decided to maintain such
arrangement.

During the reporting year, the Group did not record any
case that violate the applicable corruption-related laws and
regulations, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
of Hong Kong, the Company Law, Criminal Law and Anti-
unfair Competition Law of the PRC, and the Corruption of
Foreign Public Officials Act of Canada.

Developing Sustainable Supply Chain

The Group encourages responsible and effective practices
throughout the supply chain, apart from incorporating the
sustainable principles in its own operation. Responsible
sourcing of products and services is the most important
part of procurement process, and priority will be given to
suppliers providing environmentally friendly products.

Since the core operations are confined to the office
environment, the Group’s purchasing products mainly
refer to paper, office stationeries and IT equipment. Green
purchasing principle is taken into consideration, while
priority will be given to stationeries with replaceable
components and chargeable battery. In terms of the
procurement of electrical appliances, the Group is
committed to considering energy-efficient products in air-
conditioning, lighting and electronic system whenever
appropriate.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRINGING LOVE AND CARE TO THE
SOCIETY

The Group is committed to good corporate citizenship and
continue to serve the community through different
charitable events, for the benefit to youth and family
services, elderly services, rehabilitation services and social
enterprises. In addition to corporate donations and
sponsorships, the Group also encourages the employees to
participate various community service and charitable fund-
raising activities.

During the reporting period, the Group supported the
Charity Walk organised by Suicide Prevention Services
(SPS), a registered charity that promotes emotional health
and helps people who are suicidal to their will to live on.
Besides, employees were also encouraged to participate in
the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals (TWGHs) Charity
Challenge Race to raise fund for the Kwong Wah
Hospital’s Redevelopment Project which facilitated long-
term development and provision of healthcare service by
TWGHs, as well as various charity activities like Dress
Casual Day organised by the Community Chest of Hong
Kong and Tung Wah Flag Day.

PRESERVING THE ENVIRONMENT

Improving Resource Efficiency

Energy saving

With the operations mostly confined to the offices, the
Group's environmental impact is relatively low as a whole,
while emissions and energy consumption mainly come
from the use of resources in offices. The Group has taken
active steps to enhance energy efficiency and achieved
steady progress in reducing energy consumption and
carbon footprints.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

R HERERERE (AE)

PRESERVING THE ENVIRONMENT
(CONTINUED)

Improving Resource Efficiency (continued)
Energy saving (continued)

Light Emitting Diode (LED) lights have been fully utilised at
head office since 2016, the energy-saving performance
was remarkable and the electricity consumption decreased
by 10% when compared to the use of conventional
incandescent light bulbs. Similarly, energy-saving air
conditioning system has been fully utilised in the lottery
business to minimise electricity consumption. The on-going
effort has already started to yield results. When compared
to figures in last year, head office has recorded a reduction
in electricity consumption by 1.4%.

The Group believes behavioural change is the key to drive
environmental improvement, and encourages
environmentally responsible manner among employees.
Guidelines and notice are in place to raise their energy-saving
awareness, such as switching off unnecessary lighting and
maintaining the air-conditioning system at 23-25 degree
Celsius. The Group also took part in the “Earth Hour”
campaign promoted by the environmental organization
WWF-Hong Kong in 2017, showing the support for creating
a more sustainable environment and reducing energy
consumption.

Business Units
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Electricity
Consumption

(kwWh)
HEE(THE)

The Head Office in Hong Kong BEBNER 72,927
Travel Business in Canada IEPNiiSiESy 260,000 #
Lottery Business in the PRC* SRS 158,349
Total st 491,276
# The reported number is calculated based on the average dollar # ZHREFIRIET RS A EE L8 FH

amount paid by different office locations divided by the dollar
amount per kWh. The calculation method is consistent with that
of last year.

* For the period from 1 January to 8 September 2017
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

PRESERVING THE ENVIRONMENT
(CONTINUED)

Improving Resource Efficiency (continued)
Optimise usage of office supplies

The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and
reduction, while an appropriate sourcing of paper products
could preserve forests for the future generations. Since
2013, the Group has been using Forest Steward Council
(FSC) certified paper which is sourced from well-managed
forest for its interim and annual report printing, and has
procured lighter paper in the head office since January
2017 to lower paper consumption.

In addition, paperless initiatives have been incorporated
for the communication between internal and external
stakeholders. To follow the trend of using digital
communication channels, the Group's travel business has
adopted e-marketing system to encourage customers
referring to its website for the latest information of
products and services, while the transaction processes
could be completed on the internet instead of hard copies
of documents. The Group also encourages employees to
use recycled papers and preserve cartridge ink and return
unused stationary for redistribution so as to reduce
wastage at source.

Water efficiency

The water consumption of the Group was limited to the
pantry and toilet of offices, employees are encouraged to
minimise unnecessary water usage in these areas.

The head office and travel business are operated in
commercial buildings of which water supply and discharge
are directly managed by the building management office.
Meter or data in respect of individual level of consumption
to tenant were not provided, so no direct usage statistics
are available for reporting purpose.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERQRE (F)

PRESERVING THE ENVIRONMENT
(CONTINUED)

Reducing Waste and Emission

Minimising waste

The business of the Group is mainly operated in office
environment, the “4Rs of Environmental Protection” (i.e.
Reduce, Reuse, Recycling and Replace) were adopted as
the guiding principle in waste management, in particular
of waste reduction. The Group has replaced disposable
paper cups with reusable glasses or ceramics for guests
since 2016. This policy effectively prevents the creation of
single-use paper waste and has been successfully
implemented during the reporting period.

Waste disposals of the head office and travel business are
managed by the respective building management offices,
thus no direct waste record is available for reporting
purpose. In addition, due to the nature of the business,
there was no significant hazardous waste produced by the
Group during the reporting year.

Recycling

Apart from reducing wastes from source, the Group also
participates in recycling programme to collect and
transform waste papers, metals and plastics into useful
products. The travel business of the Group has complied
with the recycling programme promoted by the respective
city governments, by setting up recycling bins in the offices
for the disposal of wastes, such as plastic bottles,
newspapers and metal cans.

During the reporting period, the Group’s head office has
set up used toner collection points and supported the
Recycling Scheme organised by the building management
office, collecting wastes with higher recycling values on
regular basis, like energy saving lamps, fluorescent tubes,
printer cartridge and glass bottles.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

PRESERVING THE ENVIRONMENT
(CONTINUED)

Reducing Waste and Emission (continued)
Emission control

Air pollution and global warming are major environmental
challenges to the world at present, which bring along with
altered ecosystem, extreme weather, food crisis and public
health problems. As a responsible corporation that
operates business in various cities, the Group realises the
obligation to control emission of its operations with
respect to local standards, laws and regulations. Direct
exhaust emission from six Group’s vehicles and indirect
electricity consumption from offices are the major sources
of emission.

The travel business in Canada utilised natural gas in office,
however, it was charged as common expenses by the
landlord so there was no direct consumption record
available for reporting purpose. Besides, the Group is not
aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
pollution control laws and regulations in respective
countries.

Business Units
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Consumption (L)

RmFERE (7)

The Head Office in Hong Kong BABRER 50,055
Travel Business in Canada MERIREE 6,200 *
Lottery Business in the PRC* RS N/A i@
Total et 56,255

# For the passenger car, the reported number was calculated based # BEEFEME  E2RBEERECHFHEHE

on the average amount paid divided by the amount per litre, not
all petrol bills are available; For the private van, no fuel
consumption was reported since it is a shuttle bus service and the
Group is charged based on fixed fares.

* For the period from 1 January to 8 September 2017
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERQRE (F)

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group believes sustainable solutions lie in collaborative
efforts involving people and institutions with a stake in
building a safer, healthier and more prosperous future.
The Group will take great pride in its ability to provide
excellent services to customers, and care to the
environment and the community. The Group is fully
committed to regularly reviewing its performance on ESG
and setting specific goals for the future to enhance the
Group's competitiveness, business success and
sustainability.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE  -HERERRE (B)

PERFORMANCE TABLE Rk E
Environmental Performance BiEXRE
Performance
during the
Reporting
Indicator Period Remarks
EE BEHRRR faat
Gaseous Emissions B
Particulate Matter (PM;, and PM, s) 3.87
BT
Sulphur Dioxide (SO,) kg 0.0030
-yl NI
Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) 337.14
&t
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions i3 % & 88 5
Total 325.15
et
Scope 1: Direct Emission Tonnes of CO, 149.52
HE1 - BEHR equivalent
Scope 2: Indirect Emission (tCOe-) 175.63
E2 RN A (—RREE)

Scope 3: Other Indirect Emission -

EE 3 AbREEEN

GHG Intensity tCO,e- / millions of 0.55
LI revenue (HKS)
RE(ZEtiEe),/
BRET(ER)
ThEiny
Energy Usage &EIR{EFD
Total 1,007.23
st
Electricity MWh 491.28
P KRS
Petrol 515.95
v
Energy intensity MWh / millions of 1.71
Y revenue (HK$)
KRE,/BE&ET
(B s

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3% 75



76

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERRE (B)

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) X33k ()

Environmental Performance (Continued) RIBRE(EF)

Performance
during the

Reporting
Indicator Period Remarks

o] BEMRERER R

Water Consumption k&

Total m? 20 Thereported figure represented the water consumed by the Lottery Business in
st i the PRC only.
ERYFERPAVEEBORKE -

Water consumption m?/ no. of employees 0.38  The reported figure represented the water consumption intensity of the Lottery
intensity in Lottery Business Business in the PRC only.
FKBE UFK/VRER EREFERPATVREBORKEE -

EE%A
Hazardous Waste BEEEY
Total Tonnes N/A The Group did not produce hazardous waste in operation.
b N NER  AEEYEREEPELREERY -
Non-Hazardous Waste EEEZY)
Total Tonnes N/A The Group did not keep the record of non-hazardous waste in operation and may
4 i @A consider to establish a data collection system in the future.

AEEWERFLETESRREMNCE  BRIEBRUBBRERS -

Social Responsibility Performance HEEERR
Performance during
Indicator the Reporting Period
BE 5 REHRKRR
Health and Safety #ERZZE
Total number of work-related fatalities B T {ERE&R ML T-H) A ZK No. of people A%l 0
Lost days due to work injury B T{518% 8 TEH & Days H 0

Anti-corruption KES

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices No. of case 0
BEENESHARGEE RSB
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The directors (“Director(s)”) of Success Universe Group
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present their annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries were principally engaged in the travel-related,
lottery and property investment businesses during the
year. The Group ceased to carry on any lottery related
business immediately after completion of the disposal of
80% interest in Honour Rich China Development Limited
in September 2017. Details of the said disposal are set out
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017 are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 11 and pages 12 to 34
respectively of this annual report as well as the following
sub-paragraphs headed "Environmental Policies and
Performance”, “Compliance with Laws and Regulations”
and “Relationships with Key Stakeholders”.
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Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEWE (#

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavors to attain long-term sustainable
development, and proactively determines ways to address
environmental, social and governance issues effectively in
the corporate decisions.

The Group upholds its principles of environmental friendly
practices by implementation of reducing, reusing and
recycling in its daily operations, and develops initiatives to
improve employee welfare and staff development for
betterment of working environment and efficiency. The
Group also believes in good corporate citizenship and
contributes to society by supporting various charitable
programmes.

For details, please refer to the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
59 to 76 of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group is committed to maintain a high level of
corporate compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements in respect of business and operations. During
the year, the Group’s operations were mainly carried out
by the Company’s subsidiaries in Canada, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong while the
Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda and the
shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Group
accordingly should comply with relevant laws and
regulations in, inter alia, Canada, the PRC, Hong Kong and
Bermuda during the year.

As far as the board of Directors (the “Board”) is aware,
during the year and up to the date of this report, the
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have significant impact on its business and operations.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group's success also depends on the support from its
key stakeholders which comprise, inter alia, employees,
business partners, suppliers and customers.

Employees are regarded as important and valuable assets
of the Group. Therefore, the Group provides competitive
remuneration packages to attract, motivate and retain
employees for their continued contribution to the Group
and also encourages them by way of sponsorship to
attend training courses which help employees’ career
development.

Besides, the Group has developed and maintained solid
and steady relationships with its business partners and
suppliers, and provides high quality services to its
customers so as to enhance its competitiveness,
sustainability and future development.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on page 117 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2016: nil).
The Directors do not recommend any payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
nil).
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Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE (A

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held
on Tuesday, 5 June 2018 (the “2018 AGM"). For the
purpose of determining the shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
31 May 2018 to Tuesday, 5 June 2018, both days
inclusive, during such period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the 2018 AGM, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 30 May 2018 for registration.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended
31 December 2017 by business and geographical
segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five
financial years is set out on pages 278 and 279.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 121
of this annual report and note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the
Group during the year (2016: approximately HK$100,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the investment properties held by the Group as
at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the particulars of
investment properties on page 280 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the
Company during the year. Details of the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the loans and borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2017 are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman)
Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman)

Non-executive Director (“NED"):
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)"):
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

Mr. Chong Ming Yu
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Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
and Mr. Chong Ming Yu shall retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2018
AGM.

The Company has received from each of the existing
INEDs, namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin
Wing Lok, Ambrose and Mr. Chong Ming Yu, an annual
confirmation of her/his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and all of the said
INEDs were considered to be independent.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, an INED, resigned as an
independent non-executive director of Trillion Grand
Corporate Company Limited, a company whose issued
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange, with effect from 1 November 2017.

Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, an executive Director and the
Deputy Chairman of the Board, was appointed as a
member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (the “CPPCC")
and a Standing Committee member of the CPPCC
Chongging Committee in January 2018.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the
information of the Directors required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules subsequent
to the date of the Interim Report 2017 of the Company
and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2018
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

EE (&)

REARB 2 2R ABAAL %R
8716k HBBKREEREBRELERR
R \FERRBFAG LWHESR K
BERNAERURE BB -

RARAREWBEEBILIERITESFE
BRI L BKBERERERRTEES
BREE AR = E AR AT E R
FIVBHRBHZFERBILERE AR
BIRAMAE LB FNITESHESE
AT

ESERZEE

BUFRTEFHRERLBHEERD
EBRMBRAR(—HEHED HTRO OB
ZABIER ETZAR]) 2B IEITE
E AT tFT-A-BHEEK-

HWTEEREZGRATRHEXBLIRN
“E-N\E-REZERTEARBA
mEeR((BH)2EEZEER8 X
EZIRBWEETZEEREHKEE -

BEXFEEIN  BARE T —tF
REASRE HE 2 R 2 NSRS B HIER -
EAERBE EMRAE1351BIERE
BTYHBECERERET o

EE2RBEYN

BR-_Z— ) \FRRBFASEECE
EMEEANRBFT LA HARRR —
FARR I BASEERE O RE
BRON 2 RSB A ©



DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named
basis are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. There has been no arrangement under which
a Director or a director of the subsidiaries of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain in
or about the execution of the duties in their respective
offices or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any Directors.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted
under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) for the benefit of the Directors and
directors/former directors of the subsidiaries of the
Company.
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Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTION/CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION/DIRECTORS'’
AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

(1)  On 1 December 2008, the Company as borrower and
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (“Mr. Yeung"), the
Chairman of the Board and an executive Director as
well as a controlling shareholder of the Company
("Controlling Shareholder”), as lender entered into a
letter of agreement regarding an unsecured term
loan facility of up to HK$200 million (“Loan Facility”).
The rate of interest on the entire principal amount
drawn and outstanding under the Loan Facility was
the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans
by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited. On 14 April 2009, the Company and Mr.
Yeung also entered into a letter of agreement to
increase the principal amount of the Loan Facility up
to HK$290 million. In addition, Mr. Yeung undertook
not to demand early repayment of the loan and all
other sums owing to him under the revised Loan
Facility before 30 June 2010 (the “Final Repayment
Date"). The Final Repayment Date was extended to (i)
30 June 2011 by a letter of agreement dated 25 June
2009; and (ii) 30 October 2012 by another letter of
agreement dated 23 June 2010.

On 15 March 2012, Mr. Yeung entered into a letter
of agreement with the Company to further extend
the Final Repayment Date to 31 October 2013 and to
confirm that any amount repaid under the revised
Loan Facility should be available to further advances
within the availability period of the revised Loan
Facility.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION/CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION/DIRECTORS’
AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

)

(Continued)

Besides, the Final Repayment Date was further
extended to (i) 31 October 2014 by a letter of
agreement dated 18 March 2013; (ii) 31 October
2016 by another letter of agreement dated 21 March
2014; and (iii) 31 October 2018 by a supplemental
letter of agreement dated 15 March 2016.

The transaction mentioned in this sub-paragraph (1)
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which is fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as the borrowing of the Loan Facility from Mr. Yeung
is on normal commercial terms or better and the
Loan Facility is not secured by any assets of the
Group.
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BEEERE (&)

CONNECTED TRANSACTION/CONTINUING RIERS BEEEXRS &
CONNECTED TRANSACTION/DIRECTORS’ ERERRENRRTS - ZHS
AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' BEESNPhcERER (F)

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

(2) On 26 June 2017, Good Sun Development Limited R-ZE—+E,A=-+,8 " B

—
N
~

("Good Sun”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) as landlord and Success International
Management Services Limited (“SIMSL”, a company
indirect wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung,
the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director
as well as a Controlling Shareholder) as tenant
entered into a tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) in respect of the leasing of the premises
situated at Office No. 1003 and Office No. 1004A on
the 10th Floor of Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre, No.
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong (the "Existing
Property”) for a term of two years commencing from
2 July 2017 (with an option to renew for a further
term of two years at the then open market rental) at
a monthly rental of HK$465,348, exclusive of
government rates, air-conditioning charges and
management fees and all other outgoings. Further
details of the Tenancy Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 26 June 2017.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION/CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION/DIRECTORS'
AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

(2) (Continued)

Based on the monthly rental under the Tenancy
Agreement, it was expected that the aggregate
maximum amount payable by SIMSL to Good Sun
under the Tenancy Agreement for each of the three
financial years ending 31 December 2019 (“Annual
Cap"”) should not exceed HK$1,846,000,
HK$5,585,000 and HK$2,808,000 respectively. For
the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate
amount of rental paid by SIMSL to Good Sun
amounted to HK$1,845,880.

The transaction mentioned in this sub-paragraph (2)
constitutes a continuing connected transaction for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As the largest Annual Cap payable by SIMSL to
Good Sun under the Tenancy Agreement for each of
the three financial years ending 31 December 2019
was more than HK$3,000,000 but all the applicable
percentage ratios calculated on an annual basis
pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules were less
than 5%, this continuing connected transaction is
subject to reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements but is exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.
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EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTION/CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION/DIRECTORS'
AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

(2) (Continued)

All INEDs had reviewed the continuing connected
transaction disclosed above and confirmed that the
transaction has been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(©) in accordance with the Tenancy Agreement
governing the transaction on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited ("HLB"), the
auditors of the Company, were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transaction in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. HLB have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transaction
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the aforesaid auditors’
letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION/CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION/DIRECTORS’
AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its parent company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or any
entity connected with him/her or a Controlling Shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Mr. Yeung, an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board, has the following interests in the companies listed
below whose business may compete or is likely to compete
with the Group’s property investment business (the
“Competing Business”) pursuant to the Listing Rules:
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Name of company

DREEHE

Nature of competing business

BERBME

Nature of interest

EEME

Active Profit Investment
Limited

Albright Trading Limited
HERE AR AT

Asia City Holdings Limited
THEBARAT

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

FEEMERE(BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEMERE (BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

FEEMFERE (BE)

director and ultimate
beneficial owner

BEENRRETHEAA
ultimate beneficial owner

REBHHEAA

owned as to 50% beneficial
interest
BB 50% Em
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EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Name of company

ACIEL BERBME

Nature of competing business

ESRHEFRET 2 &R (&)

Nature of interest

EEME

Crownpeak International
Investment Limited
WEBHERERR AR

(commercial building)
BEMERE (BE)
Famous Capital International property investment in
Limited
EEYMFERERE(BE)

Lawman Company Limited

BXBRAR

property investment in
EEMERE(BE)

Parhan (Holdings) Limited property investment in

Hong Kong (commercial building)

BEMERE (BE)
Powerful Concept Limited property investment in
ERIBR AR
EEYMFERERE(BE)

Since any significant business decision of the Group is to
be determined by the Board in which half of the members
are INEDs, the Group is capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
Competing Business.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2017, none of the Directors was interested in
any business, apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business, other than those
business where the Directors were appointed as directors
to represent the interests of the Group.
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property investment in Hong Kong

Hong Kong (commercial building)

Hong Kong (commercial building)

Hong Kong (commercial building)

director and ultimate
beneficial owner

EENEREGZHEBA

ultimate beneficial owner
RRE@EBA

ultimate beneficial owner
RIREBEmEBA

ultimate beneficial owner
RIRBEmEEBA

ultimate beneficial owner
RRE@#EBA
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors or chief executive
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates
had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise, notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in the Listing Rules:

Interest in the shares of the Company (“Share(s)”)
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Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
Shares as at

31 December 2017

R=Z—+t&F

+=A=+—-H

Long position/ Number of BB RT

Name of Director Short position Nature of interest Shares held AEREERGOZ
EEn R/ KR EEME Fris B 40 84 B BREI
%

Mr. Yeung (Note) Long position Corporate interest 2,566,557,462 52.10

ot () A AFER

Note: Mr. Yeung, an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board,
had a corporate interest in 2,566,557,462 Shares by virtue of the
interest of the Shares held by Silver Rich Macau Development
Limited, which is direct wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung.

Wit RITEBEREFSFFEEAEREHBEE
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EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, or their
respective associates, had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise, notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 June
2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution to the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest and any
subsidiary of such entity (“Invested Entity”). The Share
Option Scheme became effective on 10 June 2014 and,
unless early termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of its adoption on 5 June
2014.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors are
authorised at their absolute discretion to invite eligible
persons to take up options to subscribe for Shares. Eligible
persons under the Share Option Scheme include (i) any
employee (whether full time or part time and including
executive director) of any member(s) of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (i) any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (iii) any consultant, adviser or
agent engaged by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity, who is eligible to participate in a share
option scheme of the Company; and (iv) any vendor,
supplier of goods or services or customer of or to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity, who is
eligible to participate in a share option scheme of the
Company.

There is no provision in the Share Option Scheme to
require a grantee to fulfill any performance target or to
hold the option for a certain period before exercising the
option, but the Board may at its absolute discretion from
time to time provide such requirements in the offer of
grant of options.

The maximum number of Shares available for issue under
options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company is 492,649,119 Shares (being not more than
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Limit"”)), representing approximately 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report.
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EEEHRE (HF)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

The Company may seek approval of its shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the Scheme Limit save that
the total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company under the Scheme Limit so refreshed shall
not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at the date of such approval (the “New Scheme Limit").
Options previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
in accordance with the respective provisions of the
scheme(s) of the Company or exercised options) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the New Scheme
Limit.

Notwithstanding aforesaid in above, the maximum number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme(s) adopted by the Company (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) to each eligible person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of offer
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue
on the date of offer, unless such grant is approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting at which
such eligible person and his or her associates shall abstain
from voting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

The exercise price in respect of any option granted under
the Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion but in any event shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the option, which must
be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the option is offered; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

The offer of a grant of share option must be accepted not
later than 28 days after the date of offer, upon payment
of a consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share option granted is determined by the
Board, save that such period shall not exceed a period of
10 years commencing on the date upon which the share
option is granted.

No share options had been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption and up to 31 December
2017.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements which will or may result in
the Company issuing Shares or which require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by
the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year.
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EEEHRE (A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or
were deemed or taken to have, interests or short positions
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRNEZ 2 E

RZZE—+F+=_A=+—8" ' T¥ AL
(BEFHARAmaTHABRIN R
M REERGFPHEB X ER B E EH
BUATRHENIREZES KB EDIZ 336
B HEMARBATHFE 2 ERLMZ

A SAA

Interest in the Shares BRoRER
Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
Shares as at
31 December 2017
R-ZE—tHF
Name of substantial +=A=+—H
shareholder Long position/ Number of HERT
FERR Short position  Capacity Shares held ERERRGZ
£\ HA HR/ WA 14 FrERGOEE BABDL
%
Silver Rich Macau Long position Beneficial owner 2,566,557,462 52.10
Development Limited 5= EnlAA
BERFIERER LA
Ms. Liu Siu Lam, Marian (Note) ~ Long position Interest of spouse 2,566,557,462 52.10
BNt () Sy Ao
Maruhan Corporation Long position Beneficial owner 956,633,525 19.42

Sy EaEBAA

Note: Ms. Liu Siu Lam, Marian, being the spouse of Mr. Yeung, was
deemed to be interested in 2,566,557,462 Shares in which Mr.
Yeung had a corporate interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no
other person (other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had, or was deemed or taken to have, an
interest or short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

References were made to the announcement dated 16
June 2017 and the circular dated 19 July 2017 issued by
the Company in relation to the provision of financial
assistance (the “2017 Financial Assistance”) to Pier 16 —
Property Development Limited (“Pier 16 — Property
Development”), a 49% owned associate of World Fortune
Limited (“World Fortune”, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company).

Based on the disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20 and
13.22 of the Listing Rules, the 2017 Financial Assistance,
which was made by the Group by way of the shareholder’s
loans provided by World Fortune, and a new corporate
guarantee (“New Corporate Guarantee”) given by the
Company to a bank in respect of the payment obligation
of Pier 16 — Property Development under the revised loan
facilities granted to Pier 16 — Property Development in the
aggregate amounts of HK$735 million and MOP273
million (the “Revised Facilities”), continued to exist as at
31 December 2017. Pier 16 — Property Development is
principally engaged in the investment, development and,
through its subsidiaries, operating Ponte 16, a world-class
integrated casino-entertainment resort located in Macau.
The 2017 Financial Assistance is mainly used for the
development and operations of Ponte 16.

The amounts of the 2017 Financial Assistance as at 31
December 2017 were set out below:
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New Aggregate

Shareholder’s Corporate financial

Name of associate loans Guarantee assistance
BENTER BRRER MEEER P& BB
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

AERET AERET BERET

Pier 16 — Property Development 317 490 807

TRRDEER

The shareholder’s loans provided by World Fortune are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.
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EEEHRE (HF)

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES
(CONTINUED)

Further details are set out in notes 19 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Set out below is a consolidated balance sheet of Pier 16 —
Property Development and the Group's attributable
interests in this associate according to its audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017:

R & £ h R A % 13.20 1% &
£ 13.22 R fF L 2 5 5 (4R)

E— B EREIIN G S M IBRRME9

K35

ATHRBERTNENEERZGAEE
BERLANKBEEEZE S AR 2 ER
BB NEMEERBE_ST— ¢

F+_A=Z1+—HIFEZ2EEZRE
R ERER

Group’s

Consolidated attributable

balance sheet interests

RERAEREBER AKEEGEDS

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
Non-current assets IERBNEE 881,772 432,069
Current assets TRENIEE 337,183 165,220
Current liabilities mEEE (418,987) (205,304)
Non-current liabilities EmEBE (1,093,339) (535,736)
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, ABRES - BRE - ARE
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS 2 3 38 (LR R
The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, AR AR -_ZT—+tF+_A=+—H#
options, warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December ﬂﬂiﬁﬁz—ﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁ{f% REIRHE - SRRRIE

2017.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 15.7% of total revenue of
the Group, of which the largest customer accounted for
approximately 4.5% and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 85.0% of total
purchases of the Group, of which the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 85.0%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
number of issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in the above five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float as prescribed under the Listing
Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.
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EEEWE (#

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) of the Board is responsible for determining
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management of the Company
(“Senior Management”). Besides, the Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board for its
determination on the remuneration of the NED and all
INEDs. Factors which include, inter alia, salaries paid by
comparable companies, qualifications, experience, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the
Senior Management as well as prevailing market condition
are considered by the Remuneration Committee for
determining/making proposals on remuneration of the
relevant Directors and Senior Management.

The remuneration packages of employees of the Group
(other than the executive Directors and the Senior
Management) are determined and reviewed periodically
on the basis of their respective qualifications, experience,
responsibilities and performance as well as prevailing
market condition. In addition to salaries, the Company
offers staff benefits which include medical insurance and
retirement benefits under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme. The Group also operates a share option scheme
pursuant to which share options might be granted as a
long-term incentive to its directors and employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company has published its Corporate Governance

Report, details of which are set out on pages 35 to 58 of
this annual report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(1)

In January 2018, the Group entered into a preliminary
sale and purchase agreement (the “Preliminary
Agreement”) with an independent third party to
acquire the entire issued share capital of and the
related shareholders’ loans to two companies which
hold several commercial properties in Wanchai at a
total consideration of approximately HK$58.2 million
(subject to adjustment based on the net current asset
value of these two companies as defined in the
Preliminary Agreement). The said acquisition is
expected to be completed in April 2018.

As announced by the Company on 13 February
2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “S&P Agreement”) with a company
which is direct wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Yeung, the Chairman of the Board and an executive
Director as well as a Controlling Shareholder, to
acquire the entire issued share capital of and the
related shareholders’ loans to two companies which
hold indirectly two commercial properties in
Admiralty Centre which are located adjacent to the
Existing Property at a total consideration of HK$148
million (subject to adjustment based on the net
current asset value of these two companies as
defined in the S&P Agreement) (the “Proposed
Acquisition”). The Proposed Acquisition constitutes a
discloseable and connected transaction for the
Company under the Listing Rules and is therefore
subject to, among others, independent shareholders'’
approval. For details of the Proposed Acquisition,
please refer to the announcement dated 13 February
2018 issued by the Company.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 have been audited by HLB,
who shall retire at the 2018 AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, aged 63, joined the Group
in 2003. He is an executive director of the Company and
the Chairman of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
the Company as well as a director of the subsidiaries of
the Company. He is also the chairman of the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) of the
Board, and a member of the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) of the Board. Mr. Yeung is
responsible for the overall corporate planning and business
development of the Group. He was a member of the
Eighth to Eleventh National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and has over 34
years of experience in finance industry in Hong Kong. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung held managerial roles in
several financial service sectors such as leveraged foreign
exchange trading, and securities and futures brokerage.
He is presently the sole beneficial owner of Success
Securities Limited (”Success Securities”), which is a
licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance as well as a participant of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), principally
engaged in the provision of securities brokerage services.
Mr. Yeung has private investments in certain properties
and real estate development. He is also the sole beneficial
owner and a director of Silver Rich Macau Development
Limited, being a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Yeung is the uncle of Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, an
executive director of the Company and the Deputy
Chairman of the Board.
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EERSREEASRGNT ()

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, aged 44, joined the Group in
2005. He is an executive director of the Company and the
Deputy Chairman of the Board as well as a director of the
subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Ma is also a member of
the Executive Committee. He is responsible for
implementing the Company’s strategies regarding the
business development of the Group as well as managing
the Group's business and operations. Dr. Ma has over 21
years of experience in the financial industry and years of
managerial experience. He joined Success Securities, which
is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
("Mr. Yeung”), being the Chairman of the Board and an
executive director as well as a controlling shareholder of
the Company, in 2000. He has been a director of Success
Securities since November 2008 and is responsible for
overseeing its marketing affairs. Dr. Ma is presently a
member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (the “CPPCC")
and a Standing Committee member of the CPPCC
Chongging Committee. Dr. Ma was awarded Fellowship
by Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration
and Honorary Doctorate of Management by Lincoln
University in 2009 and 2010 respectively. He is the nephew
of Mr. Yeung.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, aged 63, joined the Group in
2003. He is a non-executive director of the Company as
well as a member of the audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) of the Board, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Choi graduated from
St. Pius X High School in 1976. He has over 24 years of
management experience in the telecommunication
industry in Hong Kong, the United States of America (the
“US") and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Mr.
Choi established Elephant Talk Limited in 1994, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Elephant Talk Communications Inc.
("ETCI"). ETCI was an American corporation whose
securities were quoted on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin
Board in the US and engaged in the provision of
telecommunications services in Hong Kong and the US.
Mr. Choi was a director of ETCI from 2002 to 2008 as well
as the president and the chief executive officer of ETCI
from 2002 to 2006 and was responsible for the planning
of the overall strategy of ETCI. He also served as the
chairman of ET Network Services Limited (now known as
Guangdong Ming Ying Financial Leasing Co Limited), a
Hong Kong company engaged in the provision of internet
access and outsourcing services in the PRC and Hong
Kong.
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EERSREEASRGNT ()

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, aged 53, joined the Group
in 2004. She is an independent non-executive director of
the Company. She is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Ms. Yeung
holds a Bachelor degree of Retail Marketing with honours
in the United Kingdom and a Diploma in Marketing from
The Chartered Institute of Marketing. She pursued her
further study on legal course and was awarded a Diploma
in Legal Practice in the United Kingdom in 1998. Ms.
Yeung has over 19 years of experience in legal field and is
presently a consultant of Messrs. Fung & Fung, Solicitors, a
legal firm in Hong Kong. She is also an independent non-
executive director of Merdeka Financial Services Group
Limited and E Lighting Group Holdings Limited, the issued
shares of the said companies are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yeung was
an independent non-executive director of Dejin Resources
Group Company Limited, a company whose issued shares
were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and
Trillion Grand Corporate Company Limited, a company
whose issued shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose, aged 53, joined the
Group in 2012. He is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. He is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Chin is a
certified public accountant (practising) and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators as well as a certified tax
adviser and a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. He has over 31 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and taxation. Mr. Chin is presently
the sole practitioner of CNT & Co., Certified Public
Accountants.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

EE (&)

BYFHITES

BRELL 53 R-FTENFMA
REE - WR/ANRB ZBILIFATES
BB EFMEE G 2L AHEFER
ZEERREZBEEIKE - BREINE
B ATEMHERBELEM - RKRE
Rt 5288 2 MIHEIUR  WERERR
—NANFERBEEEEZRRIZLER
HERMERBEBUR - BREIRERR
BEI19F&KR BREE  HEEREM
T(—FREBEERAIT) < BEREE o I
RERERIRGEEBRAR RERHA
SEERERAR(LARRZEEHTR
IR R PRI AR ) 2 B FEHNTT
B - GBRItBHAERSEREBRERA
Al (Z AR ZEBITIGD GRS AT ER
) REFEEBDAR AR (ZAF
ZEBETRMNNBRMAIER L) 258
MIFMITES ©

BAKEEE B3 R-F——FMNEA
REE - WR/ANRB ZBILIFATES
BALEEZEREG ZEF - W EH
REGMREZBEIKE - BRERE
BRI AGZHESHMNEREE
REFFFAREEAE  BEFTWE
NENREBHAWERITRAERS
BFREE  UANBEMHEE 2 MRG
MR EREE - NEZ Gt RWRHE
BNFER - BEEEBERBESTAE
B BEMESE -

* EHESY



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)
Mr. Chong Ming Yu, aged 44, joined the Group in 2014.
He is an independent non-executive director of the
Company as well as a member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Chong holds a Bachelor degree of Laws
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from City University
of Hong Kong. He has been admitted as a practising
solicitor since January 1999, with focus on the field of
conveyancing, civil litigation and commercial. Mr. Chong
has over 21 years of experience in legal field and is
presently a consultant to Messrs. Kong & Tang, Solicitors,
a legal firm in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Company Secretary

Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes, aged 44, joined the Group
in 2003. She is the company secretary of the Company
and is responsible for overseeing all legal matters of the
Group. Ms. Chiu is a qualified solicitor and an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. She holds a Master degree of Laws from
The University of Sheffield, United Kingdom. Before joining
the Group, Ms. Chiu was a practising solicitor in a local
law firm and possessed experience in banking and finance
as well as property related matters.

Financial Controller

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin, aged 55, joined the Group
as the financial controller in 2008 until 2015 and rejoined
the Group in 2018. He is the financial controller of the
Group and is responsible for financial and accounting
matters of the Group. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as
well as an associate member of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. He has over 30 years of
experience in accounting and corporate finance gained in
entertainment and travel-related, property development,
construction and manufacturing companies.
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 117 to 277, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BB ()

RRNER

BPERBEF B ST A EMOCEL
EAFERDETER - WAAEZFERT
AENEECEARSE R ET 4
BMBHMRAENET] BoRIEE—F
it - IRIBEFB GRS RMIO(ERE
SEtED BRI R AT R (PRI - &
PBYR BEEE - WYOETTRIFNE
M BFEREE - HMEE - RPITES
MEREEREEE M RRFINE
AR R R ER -

BAEEEIE

BAREFFRERERMAERAE - AR
BAPGAMBBRRIBIR/EELZ
FIH - BESHERRMBAEBR AV
BRMOABREETRIE - HAT Sy
ELEREHERER -
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Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter
EEETEIR

The Group's investment properties measured at fair
value amounted to HK$292,000,000 as at 31
December 2017 and there was a revaluation gain
of approximately HK$79,185,000 for the year then
ended. The fair value was determined by the Group
with reference to the valuations performed by
independent professional valuers (the “valuers”)
engaged by the Group.
RZZE—+tF+A=+—RH  BHKEZRQTE
STEMNREYE AEY292,000,0007T © MEEZ
HIEFENE-IKERL B 79,185,000 © B
BATEIH EEEZ2E ESEZENBY
HEMEM(HEM])ETHHEMERE -

The valuations of investment properties involved
significant judgements and estimates including:

REMEGBESREXRHE R B

e the determination of valuation techniques,
which is using combination of income
capitalisation method and direct comparison
method of each property;

HEDENETE  SVERBEHBEAER
OERBEELEOX

e the selection of different inputs in the models.

EZBEATEETENBAE -

Considering the significance of judgements,
estimates and the financial impacts of the
valuations, we paid specific attention to this matter
in our audit.
ERINAEREHZEEUREEZHBTE
BN ERTIERHZEEG TRAIET

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A

B2 M MARMTE18 -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMETHEIREREXBHR 2B

Our procedures in relation to the management’s
valuation of investment properties included:

B EREBHREMEZHERRZEFEE

e  Evaluating the competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuers.
AHEBERINPEEM I ER BN EE
B o

e Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and estimates
used based our knowledge of the property
industry and using our valuation experts.

KB FIE Y EITERNMBAE BB
BEER  FHEFMEANMGEETE - BRER
MAGFTERE L -

e  Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.
ERAMETE  BERRANEAZBIRNLE
FEMEAIAEREIE -

We found the key assumptions were supported by
the available evidence. The fair market rents were
supported by recent renewals and in line with our
expectation. We found the disclosures in Note 18
to be appropriate.

HMES  BRERREMEIERT - 2 Fm5
e B EERT R RFIEE—3 - HPIRBME
18FIEREBEE -



Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
B EENHRE (&)

Impairment Assessment of Interests in Associates REE QT 2@ 2R ERfE
Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements. F2RHEE P BIRKRMEEI9 -

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEE BMETETREEZBZRZEE

The interests in associates is accounted for under  Our procedures in relation to the management’s
the equity method. As at 31 December 2017, the impairment assessment of interests in associates
interests in associates amounted to approximately included:

HK$537,087,000, including goodwill of HEMLEERBENEE AR cEBAENGEHE
approximately HK$19,409,000, and the related loss 2 2FFE4F :

on share of results of associates for the year ended

31 December 2017 was approximately e Evaluating the competency, capabilities and

HK$9,879,000. objectivity of the independent professional
REERRI 2 ERKAEREVE  RZE—+ external valuer.

F+A=1T—H REEA/rzE= (BEHE S B HERMCER ENRE
#) 75 % 19,409,000 7T ) 4 /%78 % 537,087,000 7T ° B

MBE_E—+F+-_A=1+—"BILtFE  HH
FE(GES &N R EE M EIB L) AE% 9,879,000 7T °
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The Key Audit Matter
FARETER

The management performed impairment
assessment of interests in associates with the use of
valuation performed by an independent
professional external valuer based on the value in
use calculation. The valuation requires the
application of significant judgement and estimation
by the management in determining the appropriate
valuation methodology to be used, use of subjective
assumptions and various unobservable inputs.
ERECHBE QR ZERETRENGLEA
B BEINBEEMRBEEREEFESLNMG
B HEEREREEREEH THEACESHE
% TEBRREZETTEERABIBEZER
IR & R E K I 2 Ak 5T o

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMETETREEZSBER 2L X

e Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and estimates
used based on our knowledge of the business
and using our valuation experts.

R IR APTE ABRE R A5 00 A B @ P R 1
BER  FHEFAKANGEETE - BRER
RIGETHtRE L

e Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions used based on our knowledge
of the business and industry.
RERMBZEBNITENONE - BRAR
BRI -

e  Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.
ERMERIE - mEMKANEABENE
FEMERNAE R -

We found that the assumptions made by the
management in relation to the value in use
calculations to be reasonable based on available
evidence. We found the disclosures in Note 19 to
be appropriate.

BEFEEE  KMRAEEEXRERAEBERTE
EREZBREBEERE - ZMIRRMT 19PMEZKER
B -



Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon
("Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the Other Information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this Other Information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

BB ()

Hibf5 2

EEFYHHMEEARE - HEEBHET
FRFEREANGEE - BETEREEAE
B R MR EE RS -

% MR
5.5 ?‘ZTF?)TT;TM—r,\ﬁET
{—Jﬁ/ﬁmgmu IZIIJFFH °

MBERENBERLTRER
SR

BRRMESEMHRERMET - B
RIRMERMES FlBET T8
HiERREERAMBRAAIME
BABERATENBERAFEEANLRE
SEUFFEEABERRANBR - ER
HP2AITHIIE - MRKEMRBEMIE
BHEESEAERRL - HPIFEREZSE
BowEhm  BfYLEEMSRS -

EEREXZE RGN
RAEBWNE

EXZFARERBEBESFMASHEMD

(BB BHREER) REFB(RREM)

MEBERERBEEEMT B NEE W5

HE - WHERRBERS M HRROH

ﬁTTEEFWWiEﬁﬁ ﬁ%ik
A ER BRI P 7S B R BR BE 45
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
B EE RS (&)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A

R BB B =T 4R S M R A
BHEE

I

HPWBR  RYUGAMBEHRRERES
PrEHRRFHBERMEFNEANFE
AR A ERE - YHABEHFAE
RHOZBERE RPARRARE
—NAN—FRFVEFOIRHRTE - ERA
ERBERIEL RS - KRt SN & I
HpAsk - AT ERARENATRE
MEMALFERE EEMEE - SR
EREKFHRE  BRERBRR(E
BETEDEITHER  EX—FAH
AR FE RS AR RE B3R - SERRBUA A DA
RSk ERRSIE - RE BB TMES
SOERERAIEFEGA VB REER
EIRRESR A MR FE L MEERTE -
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
B EENHRE (&)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE BB EM R B i R B B G 3R |/ AA

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED EHE{E (88)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ ° HESHAEERLSTEMMN
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, B VER A o RIS ER M EET
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a BE T EAGEEERRER
material uncertainty exists related to events or ERNERTEETH  ®MmojseE
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Y SEENEELLRENES
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we EARE - WREPRAGEEK
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are AT AN EEZEEIRS
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to FIREFRAE TSGR BEHER
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial e E - REABYEETRE -
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to Bl MEEREIFEREBER - &K
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on PSR EERZEERE B AT
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our BEHETERE - Al - AKX EBIB
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions IEN e EE BEEEBTREEE
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going 4R ES o
concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and o B ABFEIRRIERIELT|H A

content of the consolidated financial statements, EBNAS  BREEE UKEGESE
including the disclosures, and whether the BB REREDRAE R ZMEIE -

consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence e It EEERNEBENESTEME

regarding the financial information of the entities or BERERNTE e lETERE -
business activities within the Group to express an DEHESEEMBEHRERERER - &K
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We MHasE SEE=E:A8AM - B
are responsible for the direction, supervision and MHIT o R BBAE R AESDI
performance of the group audit. We remain solely FHE o

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, MEMEIEI  RHEEZEZESERT
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of — :tZ|HEH&E - BERIZCHE - B ATEFE
the audit and significant audit findings, including any INE  BIERPESETP R A ZpEs e
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify e EN IR

during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that KB RESET B 21202 - AR
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements EAFAEMB EMEEEEESK  WE
regarding independence, and to communicate with them Mg BRE NS BitwR AT ER
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be PIBI T B BEMEMEIE - LARAE
thought to bear on our independence, and where FARERT - BEREEE o
applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
BAREENRE (B)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: P06417

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B =R A R A T
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Continuing Operations
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue and gains

Fair value gain on investment
properties

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Profit/(loss) from operations
Finance costs

Share of results of joint ventures
Share of results of associates

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit/(loss) for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operation
Loss for the year from
discontinued operation

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss for the year

(Loss)/earnings per share

From continuing and
discontinued operations
— Basic and diluted

From continuing operations
— Basic and diluted

HFREERE
&
$HEMR

EF
H i zs R U A
BREWME 2 A FERE

TR 52
HA &=

REHER(BE)
FATE R AN

EhaEERER
RS NI S

BRBLAT SR, (E518)
PR

REFECEXEK 2
EEERF(BE)

CRIEEEER
KEDRIEREER
RNEE 8

REEFE

B AN B IR RS
ZA/NG] i S
FEIER R

REEFHE

S (BR) &F

REFELER

BRI R
— BEARKEE

REFBECEXE
— BERKEE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tHF+-A=1+—HLEFE

2017
—E—+tHF
HK$'000
BT T

Notes

D
589,935
(569,843)

20,092
8 13,285

18 79,185
(92,662)
(4,638)
15,262
(1,541)
527
(9,879)
9 4,369
10(a) -

4,369

14 (37,825)
(33,456)

(29,810)

(3.646)

(33,456)

15(a)
(0.61) HK cents 3l

15(b)
0.16 HK cents 4L

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
BT T

564,848
(544,241)

20,607
23,021

(72,671)
(3,185)

(32,228)

(2,079)
495
17,513

(16,299)

(16,299)

(20,766)
(37,065)
(30,977)

(6,088)

(37,065)

(0.63) HK cents &L

(0.29) HK cents &l

BEF 2 ST A AR A B R R 2 R 5

,T/\ ®
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

Loss for the year KEEEHE

Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hi 2wz (EiE)

Items that may be reclassified HETREN 7 EZE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmZEE

Release of exchange difference upon BB LENBRARIEZ
disposal of subsidiaries MEH =5

Exchange differences on translation of BmEEHENB R
financial statements of disposed ISR ERFIEEZ
subsidiaries M H Z5R

Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINGERT]
financial statements of overseas MBMERMEEZ
subsidiaries b X Z5R

Total other comprehensive income/(loss) K Fi1& 2 2N E B Ath

EmEiE(E1R) 85

for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year AEE2EEEALE

Attributable to: BT S EE :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NS])
Non-controlling interests SRR =

Total comprehensive loss for the year ZAFEE2EEBEALE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements. 5 o

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A

2017

N
HK$'000
T

(33,456)

3,169

2,126

1,560

6,855

(26,601)

(22,904)

(3.697)

(26,601)

2016
—E—REF
HK$'000
BT T

(37,065)

(2,605)

355

(2,250)

(39,315)

(32,654)
(6,661)

(39,315)

B 2 B ST R AR R B 7 4R e 2 A



NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment properties
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures

CURRENT ASSETS
Amount due from an associate
Trade and other receivables

Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

Deferred income
Bank loan
Financial guarantee contract

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred income
Loans payables
Financial guarantee contract

NET ASSETS

FRBEE

ME -~ BE K&

BAE
BEME
NN 4
REZ2hEZE

RBEE

FE Uy — T HsE = 2
FE W 5 Bk M
Ho At & YRR K
EERIRITFK

Bk Bk

N
<

<

b/

RBekREFEEHR

hRBEE
e 5 BRAR M
H At FE A RR K
I A
RITER

MBREEREH

RBEEFRE

EERERRBE
FREBEME
EFEWA

P& K
MBREEREH

EEFE

&

Note
B

16
17
18
19
20

21
22
23

24
25
26
28

25
27
28

As at 31 December 2017
RZZT—tF+=-A=+—8H

2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
BT

30,300
3,927
292,000
537,087
4,411

867,725

18,602
10,064
149,656

178,322

16,697
265

644
17,606

160,716

1,028,441

1,097
27,232
2,256

30,585

997,856

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
BT T

37,904
8,021
191,708
543,621
3,884

785,138

294,420

35,014
9,353
64,509

403,296

17,604
245
122,500
10,000

150,349

252,947

1,038,085

1,060
30,668

31,728

1,006,357
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As at 31 December 2017
RZT—tF+=-A=+—H

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXK#E
Share capital AR
Reserves {1

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE 72 Al JR SEFE(S
TO OWNERS OF ERBE
THE COMPANY

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS iR ez

TOTAL EQUITY REmBEE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 28 March 2018.

On behalf of the board

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
Director

0

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A

2017 2016
—E—+t& —E—RF

Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5T BT T BT T
30 49,265 49,265
961,365 984,269

1,010,630 1,033,534

(12,774) (27,177)

997,856 1,006,357

EFEgCR-_FE-N\F=A=-+N\Bi#t
JE R RETEE o

RREES

Ma Ho Man, Hoffman
BHX
Director

E

BERT 2 MY RE A A LR A M ISR 2 AR AR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEERBER
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Share Share Distributable
capital ~ premium reserve
B RBEE THIKEE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AEfn  BETR

(note (a)) (note (b))
(M3 ) Pz (o)

ARARRES
Non-
Exchange Other  Accumulated controlling Total
reserve  reserve losses Total interests equity

EXfe HtEE  ZHER @y FERER  ERlE
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr  AMTr  A¥Tn  A%Tn BETn BETr
(note (¢))
(H3EQ)

At 1 January 2016 RZZ-~F-B-H 49,265 1,418,963 52,333 (9,988) 976 (445361) 1,066,188 (20516) 1,045,672
Loss for the year TEERR = = = - = (30977)  (30977) (6,088 (37,065
Other comprehensive loss ~ AEEEM2EEE

for the year - - - (1,677) - - (1,677) (573) (2,250)
Total comprehensive loss ~ AEE2EFELR

for the year - - - (1.677) - (30,977) (32,654) (6,661) (39.315)
At 31 December 2016 R-E—E+-A=1-H 49,265 1,418963 52,333 (11,665) 976 (476,338) 1,033,534  (27,177) 1,006,357
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+%-f-H 49,265 1,418,963 52,333 (11,665) 976 (476,338)  1,033534  (27,177) 1,006,357
Loss for the year TEERR - - - - - (298100  (29810)  (3,646)  (33,456)

Other comprehensive KEEEMRENE /(BB

income/(loss) for the year - - - 3,731 - - 3,731 (51) 3,686
Total comprehensive AEE2ELG/ (BB 2%
income/(loss) for the year - - - 3731 - (29810)  (26073)  (3697)  (29,770)

Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAF (M 31)
(note 31) - - -

3,169 - - 3169 18,100 21,269

At 31 December 2017 RoB-tE+ZA=1-A 49265 1,418,963 52333

(4759) 976 (506,148) 1,010,630  (12,774) 997,856

(@) Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda.

(b) Distributable reserve
The distributable reserve is the reserve of the
Company available for distribution to the
shareholders as calculated under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda.

(c) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(q).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

(a) K#p=E
BRhEBRZERXARE
—HNN\—FREEF A0 GFTRE

(b) W7 IRfH
AHEDIRFERIEARRIZBERE
—71}\ FRRLAAEAHED KT
PR 2t

() Exf#Etm
[E X E e REREEINER 2B
BHRRMEEZMBINEZRE - %
TR B M L 2(0) PR &L & 5T R
BRIE -

BERT 2 M AT A A LR A MR 2 AR AR

1/'\ ®
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before taxation
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operation
Adjustments for:

Fair value gain on investment

properties
Interest income
Finance costs

RERR

BRBLADEA,(E51R)
— FrER R X%
— ERIEEEXG
B TSR
KREME R FEWS

AISKON
LURIDRN

Depreciation on owned property,
plant and equipment

Amortisation on financial
guarantee contract

Share of results of joint ventures

Share of results of associates

Impairment loss recognised on

— intangible assets
— trade receivables

Write back of long-outstanding
trade payables

Exchange alignment

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Operating loss before changes
in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in trade and

other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade and

other payables

BEYX BER;
R 2ITE
RIS IER B KO

EIEEEERER
R NI E S
B NP B IRMER 2
REEE
—BIVEAE
—FEUE 5 IR

RHRNENES
ARk 2 B

BEE 57, o B
HEME - BE &
R Wk

LEEESRHH

REER

e E 78Rk M B At &
WBRR (38 h0), R
e B S R M Ho At &
FBRFRIE I, ORid)

Decrease in deferred income
Cash used in operations

Income tax refunded
— Qverseas tax refunded

NET CASH USED IN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

EFEU AR D
REBAZRE

REFTISH
— R EEINRIR

REXRBDACREFR
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Notes

i

2017
—E—+tHF
HK$'000
BT T

4,369
129

(79,185)

(228)
1,541
4,850

(10,322)

(527)
9,879
4,557
81

(161)
1,648

(875)

(64,244)

(52,021)

40,114
(43)

(76,194)

(76,194)

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
BT

(16,299)
(20,766)

(347)
2,079

5,049
(19,995)
(495)
(17,513)

3,167

18

(212)
1,318

(1,405)

(65,401)

22,425

(12,698)
(155)

(55,829)

702

(55,127)



INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Net proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Net cash inflow from disposal of

subsidiaries
Net cash outflow from
acquisition of assets

Decrease in amounts due from

associates

Decrease in amount due from

a joint venture
Decrease in pledged
bank deposits

Interest income received
Payment for purchase of

investment property

NET CASH GENERATED

FROM/(USED IN)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan from non-controlling

shareholder

Repayment of loan from
non-controlling shareholder
Repayment of bank loans

New bank loan raised

Loan from a director and
controlling shareholder
Repayment of loan from
a director and controlling

shareholder
Finance costs paid

REZRD

BEDE BB
RPN IR
HEWE  BE K
KRBTSR
HEMBRARIZES

MAFER
WEEEZIRE R
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FE B = X R ROR
V22
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5%
HA
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PR E R

SIS ERA

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tHF+-A=1+—HLLEFE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iy aE BET T EETT
16 (251) (22,869)
875 3,159

31 7,930 =
33 - (548)
294,297 146,580

- 700

6 514

221 344
18 (21,107) (191,708)
281,971 (63,828)

3,152 6,141
(1,072) (2,400)

(122,500) =

- 122,500

25,000 101,000
(25,000) (121,000)
(1,541) (1,919)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
PaE BT T BT T
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED @t&;58) (1)~
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES E4£zHRE£FHE (121,961) 104,322
Net decrease in cash and RekBEeFHEEH
cash equivalents B FRE 83,816 (14,633)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRERBE
the beginning of the year £(EIEH 64,509 81,784
Effect of foreign exchange rate fEREFa) s 8
changes 1,331 (2,642)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS £RRERKE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR ZEEH 149,656 64,509
Analysis of balances of cash ReRREEE
and cash equivalents HEEHD T
Cash and bank balances R4 RIRTTEE R 23 149,656 64,509

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BE M 2 Ml 5F B AR 4R A B S 3R R 2 48 Bk 26
consolidated financial statements. 7 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in Bermuda on 27 May
2004 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company’s registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda.
The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Suite 1601-2 & 8-10, 16/F., Great Eagle
Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Its
controlling shareholder is Silver Rich Macau
Development Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI") with limited liability.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS(s)"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)"”) and
interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and applicable
disclosure requirements under the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). These
consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosures provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

1.

a I RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)
The HKICPA has issued certain amendments
and interpretations which are or have become
effective. It also issued certain new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretation
(“New HKFRSs”), which are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group (as defined
hereinafter). Note 3 provides information on
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements included
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group's interests in
associates and joint ventures made up to 31
December each year.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000") except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that investment
properties and financial guarantee contract are
stated at their fair value as explained in note
2(h) and 2(k) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTBEEX(E

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

(b) ZFEMBHRR2ABHUAE

financial statements (continued)

Basis of measurement (continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
orderly transactions between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristic of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements (continued)

Basis of measurement (continued)

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
guoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors
believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
amount of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

(9]

financial statements (continued)

Basis of measurement (continued)
Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 5.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more or the
three elements of control listed above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over
the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group's voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

e  the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

e  potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

e right arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expense of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTBEEX(E
(CONTINUED)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

() MEQARFEZRES(E)

interests (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair values of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with note 2(k).

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in subsidiaries is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2())).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exits only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
or joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group'’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(d) Associates and joint ventures

(continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of
the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group'’s
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less cost of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Associates and joint ventures

(continued)

The Group discontinues the use of equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or
when the investment is classified as held for
sale. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BRRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE_ZT—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(d) Associates and joint ventures

(e)

(continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interests
in associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interests if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

In the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, interests in associate and joint
venture are stated at cost less impairment loss
(see note 2(j)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Goodwill (continued)

(f)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each cash-
generating unit (“CGU(s)”) or groups of CGUs
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(j)). In respect of
associate or joint venture, the carrying amount
of goodwill is included in the carrying amount
of the interest in the associate or joint venture
and the investment as a whole is tested for
impairment whenever there is objective
evidence of impairment (see note 2())).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of a business combination or an investment in
an associate or joint venture is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a CGU of an associate or a joint
venture, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2())).

Gain or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds on disposal
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. TESTBER(E)

(e)

(f)

B (&)

BB AR REHEIER R
SRR - R AHIELEZEHE
EOEERHABAH A
HamEm AR ELEN
(ReELEMDXSERS
EEXEMN IREFAAEER
HERRE (R 2()) o phig
NAHEELEMS  BEZ
FREEFARBEARHSE
CEERZBREEAN - EHE
BBz EEBRER SHKRE
BRETRENACEKE
2())

AEBAERKET 2 A H#RE
E BELRIRBEZIRAFF
BEFRFfARERBBERE X
AEARBERRHSELELZ
BEZEMED - BREBEF
BB RERR

HEMERFXALEEE LR
TELBNR  FIEABERZ
EREFRESERELER
M EEZAER -

M - BERRE

Y% - BB KRR AR R
T E MREBBRRES M5
AR FIBR CRLHTEE2() -

WEXHEWE - BEER
HEEAZWENEE - A
EEIRFEEEIA R REE
Ml ZREE - WNHMAENKH
ERRERATHER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

137



138

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M (F
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(f) Property, plant and equipment

(continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
life at the following rates per annum:

Building 2.5%
Leasehold improvements Over lease terms

Furniture, fittings and

office equipment 18%—-33"3%
Motor vehicles 30%
Motor yacht 10%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
There is no depreciation imposed on the
freehold land.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESFBEK(E)

(CONTINUED)

(g) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (9) EFEE (BERRIM)

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, identified
on business combinations are capitalised at their
fair values. They represent mainly trademark
and relationship with customers. Subsequent to
initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis from the date of acquisition
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Client list 15 years

The asset’s useful lives and their amortisation
method are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
not amortised. The intangible asset and its
status are reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support indefinite useful life. Should the useful
life of an intangible asset change from indefinite
to finite, the change would be accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(h) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for such
purposes). Investment properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value. All of the
Group'’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value
model. Gain and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment properties are
included in the profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as
part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at the amount of
the Group’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate
or return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M (F
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and other
receivables
Investments in debt and equity securities
and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in associates and
joint ventures accounted for under
the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see
note 2(d)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 2(j)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance
with note 2(j)ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

()

Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and other
receivables (continued)

— For unquoted equity securities and
current receivables that are carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset
and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for current
receivables are reversed if in a
subsequent period the amount of the
impairment loss decreases.
Impairment losses for equity securities
are not reversed.

— For financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBEHRRMET (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

()

Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and other
receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

Impairment losses in respect of other
receivables are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

— intangible assets;

— investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures,

— goodwill; and

— investment properties

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated. In

addition, for goodwill, the recoverable

amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its net selling price
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a CGU).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, or the CGU to
which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of CGUs
are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the
carrying amount of asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(k) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when an entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at “fair value through profit or loss”
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at FVTPL,
“held-to-maturity” investments, “available-for-
sale” financial assets and “loans and
receivables”. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

EBERRME (AE)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESFBEEK(E)

(CONTINUED)
(k) Financial instruments (continued) (k) EBmITAR(E)
Financial assets (continued) BIBEE (&)
Loans and receivables B e E
Loans and receivables are non-derivative B K e Y 30 T8 2 [E E 5k Al 5%

financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amount due from an
associate, pledged bank deposits as well as cash
and cash equivalents) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

— breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised
is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of other
receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTBEEX(E
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued) (k) EmITA(H)

Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and
other payables, loans payables and bank loans)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

2. TESTBER(E

Financial guarantee contracts (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the
Group are initially measured at their fair values
and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

— the amount of the obligation under the
contract, as determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and

— the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenue
recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESSTBEKR ()

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued) (k) €T H(E\)

Derecognition (continued)

If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its
entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety, the Group allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between
the part it continues to recognise, and the part
it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

)

(m)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined
contribution plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Employee benefits (continued)

(n)

(ii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
“profit/(loss) before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because
of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

(i) Travel-related agency service fee
income
— Revenue from the sale of air tickets is
recognised when the tickets are
issued.

— Revenue from the sale of tour
packages is recognised when travel
arrangements have been booked and
confirmed with customers. Deposits
from customers are reported as
liabilities.

— Revenue from the sale of group tours
is recognised at the point of group
departure. Deposits from customers
are reported as liabilities until the
tour departs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Lottery commission and services income is
recognised when the sales agency services
are provided, net of business tax.

Rental income in respect of investment
property under operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease term.

Management fee income is recognised
when the amounts are measurable and
the ultimate collections are reasonably
assumed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
apportioned basis using the effective
interest method.

Services income is recognised when
services are provided.

Deferred income comprises of a sign-up
bonus for an on-line ticket processing
system and is recognised as revenue in
accordance with the terms of the
agreement.

(viii) Other income consists of revenue earned

based on volume sales through various on-
line ticket processing systems and is
recognised when it is measurable and all
contractual obligations have been fulfilled.

2. TESTBER(E

(p) Wz=FER (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

FEAEERBBA(S
HBREXH)NEHREE
RIERTE TR ©

IEEHER TN ZIREY
ENHEWARSHER
NIRE SRR °

EEEWARKREAE
KAl & BARE A A A
TR HERR ©

B A IR B ] e 51 45 A
BERA RORER

AR5 U AR 2 14 Al 765 By e

EIEWABIER F#ERR

3B R4 2 ATATEAT - 098
R 32 165 2 1 R T R U

N

f ©

HWABRERIFE BT
Rl 48 _E # SR B 32 R RTER
B2 AREHEMRILZ K
@ MAGTER - URE
BUIRMAANE TR

7
e

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

159



160

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(q) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual entity, transactions in currencies other
than the Company'’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of foreign currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Foreign currencies (continued)

(r)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a
disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in equity
under the heading of foreign currency
translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred, except to
the extent that they are capitalised as being
directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M (F
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs (continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(ii) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group's parent.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B =R A R A T

2. TESTBER(E

(r)

(s)

BERA (&)
BRAEBREERA—#n
EERA EEEEARX
EERAEEREEERAH
ERSRAHEMPVBZERT
1EEITHR B E AL - HEE
BEREERARERENE
EMPBAZBREBY EEITIE
FEsEAE - EERAES
EFEHFLERL -

BEAL

(a) WEBIATAL ZALH
HOT K R B A AN &
EEE

() HAREEEHIEX
H[R] 22 i B

iy AEBEEAFE
7k

(i) AAEBEHAEET
NAIZEEERE A

B o

~



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

@)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources
or obligations between related parties.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group's chief operating decision maker
(“CODM") for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical location.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(u) Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time, the following New HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, which are effective for the Group’s financial
year beginning on 1 January 2017.

The New HKFRSs adopted by the Group in the
consolidated financial statements are set out as
follows:

HKAS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 cycle
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e

BA RS SRR B L (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHE—
3.

Z—tF+_A=t+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments
require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in
financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in
cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control
of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in note to the
financial statements. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year.
Apart from the additional disclosure in note to the
financial statements, the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Except as described above, the application of these
New HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and
position for the current and prior years and on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following New

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKAS 28 (Amendments)  Long Term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

HKAS 40 (Amendments)  Transfers of Investment Property’

HKFRS (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle’

HKFRS (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transaction’

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)  Prepayment Features with

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets

(Amendments) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Customers’
Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’
Leases?

Insurance Contract?

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?
Uncertainty Over Income Tax

Treatments?

HK(FRIC) - Int 23

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEERMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
201709.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases”, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a
lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation
to make lease payments.

Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash payments of the lease
liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Also, the right-of-use asset and these lease liabilities
are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in
optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or not to
exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from
the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard,
HKAS 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for these two types of
leases differently.

As set out in note 34(b), total operating lease
commitments of the Group as at 31 December 2017
amounted to approximately HK$6,594,000 and had
original lease term ranging from two to five years.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact
of HKFRS 16 to the financial position of the Group. It
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of the application of HKFRS 16 until the
Group performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, HKAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement.
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets,
calculation of impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9
incorporates without substantive changes the
requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments and the
classification measurement of financial liabilities. The
Group has decided not to adopt HKFRS 9 until it
becomes mandatory on 1 January 2018. Expected
impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s
financial statements are as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL); and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI). The Group
currently does not have any financial assets
measured at FVTPL or FVTOCI. Based on the
assessment so far, the Group expects that its
financial assets currently measured at amortised
cost will continue with their respective
classification and measurement upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9.

The classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities under HKFRS
9 are largely unchanged from HKAS 39, except
that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a
financial liability designated at FVTPL that is
attributable to changes of that financial
liability’s own credit risk to be recognised in
other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group
currently does not have any financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL and therefore this new
requirement may not have any impact on the
Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces
the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an
“expected credit loss” model. Under the
expected credit loss model, it will no longer be
necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity
is required to recognise and measure expected
credit losses as either 12-month expected credit
losses or lifetime expected credit losses,
depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may
result in an earlier recognition of credit losses
on the Group's trade receivables and other
financial assets. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the application of the new
impairment model may not have a significant
impact on the Group.

Based on the above assessment so far, the Group
considers that the initial application of HKFRS 9 will
not have a significant impact on the Group'’s results
of operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M (F
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

“Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture”

Amendments to HKAS 28:

The requirements on gains and losses resulting
from transactions between an entity and its
associate or joint venture have been amended
to relate only to assets that do not constitute a
business.

A new requirement has been introduced that
gains or losses from downstream transactions
involving assets that constitute a business
between an entity and its associate or joint
venture must be recognised in full in the
investor’s financial statements.

A requirement has been added that an entity
needs to consider whether assets that are sold
or contributed in separate transactions
constitute a business and should be accounted
for as a single transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
“Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture”
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10:

e An exception from the general requirement of
full gain or loss recognition has been introduced
into HKFRS 10 for the loss control of a
subsidiary that does not contain a business in a
transaction with an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method.

e  New guidance has been introduced requiring
that gains or losses resulting from those
transactions are recognised in the parent’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting
from the remeasurement at fair value of
investments retained in any former subsidiary
that has become an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method
are recognised in the former parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

The directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”) do
not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M (F
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

The Group plans to use the cumulative effect
transition method for the adoption of HKFRS 15 and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance
of equity at 1 January 2018.

Based on the assessment so far, the Group considers
that the initial application of HKFRS 15 will not have
a significant impact on the Group’'s results of
operations and financial position.

Except for the New HKFRSs mentioned as above, the
Directors anticipate that the application of all other
New HKFRSs will not have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. €I A
(a) Categories of financial instruments () eI AR
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
n i
—E—tF —T-RF
+=A=+—8 TZAHA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Financial assets MKEE
Loans and receivables (including & X & fE Yg 28 (B 3
cash and cash equivalent) ReERREFMBEIER) 488,427 709,785
Financial liabilities g S=R
Amortised costs e X1 DN 43,929 170,772
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BIEREBEERAFE
values
The Group has exposure to credit risk, liquidity RNEBRFERAEE T B
risk and market risk (including currency risk, ZERR - negELERB LT
interest rate risk and other price risk) from its BER (BEEEEE - FRE
use of financial instruments. This note presents b R E A BIRER) o ANMI TS,
information about the Group’s exposure to AEAREFETYE Pl ZER - K
each of the above risks, the Group's objectives, EFHNAENREIERKR ZH
policies and processes for measuring and EBEBENEF ARKREFH
managing risk, and the Group’s management BEBENTER o
of capital.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(i)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties provided by the Group is
arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The management has established a credit
policy under which credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring
credit. Trade receivables are due within 3
months from the date of billing. Trade
receivables with balances that are more
than 3 months are requested to settle all
outstanding balance before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group
does not have concentration of credit risk
for 2017 and 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk
without taking account of any collateral
held is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset, including derivative
financial instruments, in the consolidated
statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance.
Except for a financial guarantee given by
the Company as set out in note 28, the
Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group
to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of this financial
guarantee at the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position is disclosed

in note 28.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade and other receivables

are set out in note 21.

(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its current and expected
liquidity requirement and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. €@TI A (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BEMREERAFHEE)
values (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) HEELEE (&
The following table details the remaining TRHFHNBEHR > K
contractual maturities at the end of the EEZIETAMBEREZ
reporting period of the Group's non- BRTELRNEE (RED
derivative financial liabilities, which are BEIEE) c RAEEZ
based on the contractual maturity date. = A 4R BEIRIE £
The amounts disclosed in the table are the =(BFEMNBE LM XK
contractual undiscounted cash flows (MAEZB)MRBERKRZ
(including interest payments computed MTMEREHE 2 F B A
using contractual rates or, if floating, ) UERAEETHRE
based on rates current at the end of the kN EEHE

reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay:

At 31 December 2017
RZF-tEtZA=1-H
Within ~ Morethan ~ More than Total
Tyear  1yearbut 2yearshut  contractual
oron less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 2 years Syears  cash flow amount

-fRy  BB-F  BERF ROARR

REX  BORWE EIREF RERERR L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERfn  BRTn  E%fn BRTn ERTn

Trade and other payables B E BEH R

Eft R 16,697 - - 16,697 16,697
Loans payables ERES - 21,32 - 21,32 21,32
16,697 21,232 - 43,929 43,929
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

(CONTINUED)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4, &BT A (&)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BIEEBREERAFEE)
values (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) FEIEZE (&)
At 31 December 2016
RZE-~E+ZA=1-H
Weighted Within -~ Morethan ~ More than Total
average Tyear  Tyearbut  2yearsbut  contractual
effective oron less than lessthan  undiscounted ~ Carrying
interest rate demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
mER -ERy BE-F  BARE  aNANR
kS BEX  BORME BIRDF ReR2EE  KEE
% HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT  AETRm  AETR BETT  B%TR
Trade and other EREHHEAR
payables A MR - 17,604 - - 17,604 17,604
Loans payables ENER - - 30,668 - 30,668 30,668
Bank loan (note) RITER(Hit) 241 125531 - - 125531 122,500
143135 30,668 - BB 107
Note: BdaE

There is a clause for repayment on demand under the
facility letter regarding the bank loan granted to the
Group. Thus, the bank loan is categorised into the
time band of “within 1 year or on demand” in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2017,
there has no outstanding amount regarding to this
bank loan (2016: the aggregate undiscounted
principal amount and interest of bank loan was
approximately HK$125,531,000). Taking into account
of the Group's financial position, the Directors believe
that the bank exercising its discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment is remote and such
bank loan shall be repaid one year after the end of
the reporting period. For the year ended 31
December 2016, the aggregate principal and interest
cash outflows will be in the amount of approximately
HK$$125,531,000 calculated with weighted average
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

TR T A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4.
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (continued) (i)

(b) HBEEERERAFEGE)

mEBEEEE (E)

In view of the maturity of the syndicated
loan facilities granted to Pier 16 — Property
Development Limited (“Pier 16 — Property
Development”, an associate of the Group)
on 29 June 2017 and for the purposes of,
among others, refinancing the syndicated
loan facilities and financing the repayment
of certain shareholders’ loans previously
advanced to Pier 16 — Property Development,
Pier 16 — Property Development entered
into an amended and restated facility
agreement (the “Amended Facility
Agreement”) with, among others, a bank
as lender in June 2017. Pursuant to the
Amended Facility Agreement, the maturity
date under the syndicated loan facilities
agreement was extended to 28 June 2022
and the facility amount was revised to the
aggregate amounts of HK$735 million and
Macau Patacas (“MOP") 273 million (the
“Revised Loan Facilities”). The Revised
Loan Facilities are secured, among others,
a serval guarantee provided by the
Company.

The Company gave a new corporate
guarantee (the “New Guarantee”) to a
bank in respect of the Revised Loan
Facilities during the year. The maximum
guarantee amount borne by the Company
under the New Guarantee was HK$490
million. The guarantee previously issued by
the Company in the amount of HK$1,176
million for the syndicated loan facilities
granted to Pier 16 — Property
Development, which had been fully repaid
on 29 June 2017, was released during the
year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4,

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, it was
not probable that the counterparties to
the financial guarantee will claim under
the contracts. Consequently, the carrying
amount of the financial guarantee contract
of approximately HK$2.9 million (2016:
approximately HK$10.0 million) has not
been presented above.

4. £RITH (&)

(b) HBEEERERAFEGE)

(i) FHEELREE (&
RZFE—+tFRZZT—R
F+—_A=+—8 " %
ERZRZRHHTKARER
BELOELRR - Al -
M EREHZEERELY
7 2,900,000 ( = &

N OFr B OB K

10,000,0007T ) I & R

M2 -

At 31 December At 31 December

2017 2016
R-E—+tF RZZE—RF
+=A=+—-H +tZA=1—H
Expiry Expiry
HK$'000 period  HK$'000 period
BET T Em AR JiEi i £
Guarantee given to bank Fii% ¥ —EH 2
in respect of banking NEZRITRLE
facilities granted to EERTTIEL 2 R
an associate 490,000 2022 1,176,000 2017

Currency risk

Presently, there is no hedging policy with
respect to the foreign exchange exposure.
The Group's transactional currency are
HK$, Renminbi (“RMB”) and Canadian
dollars ("CAD") as substantially all the
revenue are in HK$, RMB and CAD. The
Group’s transactional foreign exchange
exposure was insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. €@ TH (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)
(iv) Interest rate risk

(b) HBEEERERAFEGE)

(iv) FIZEEEz

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk
is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to floating-rate borrowing.
The Group's income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The
Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk
Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk,
the sensitivity analysis set out below has
been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)
(iv) Interest rate risk (continued)

(v)

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk
(continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis point
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss for the
year ended 31 December 2017 would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$718,000 (2016: approximately
HK$152,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its floating-rate borrowings.

Fair value

The fair values of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices
or rates from observable current market
transactions. The Directors consider that
the carrying amounts of the financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December
2017 and 2016, except for the following
financial instrument, for which their
carrying amounts and fair value and the
level of fair value hierarchy are disclosed
below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)

(v) Fair value (continued)

4. €RITH(E)

(b) Rt PaEE R AFE (&

(v) 2FE(E)

Fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2017

Carrying Fair categorised into:
amount at value at R-B-tE+-A=1+-HHK
31 December 31 December NYEHEAENT
2017 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
“E-tF “E-tf
tTZA=t-B t=ZA=+-H
WEEEE WATE E- Jat =8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETR BETT
Financial guarantee  B1EERAH
contract 2,900 51 - - 51
Fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2016
Carrying Fair categorised into:
amount at value at RZE—RE+-A=1—HH
31 December 31 December ATEFENERT :
2016 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZERE 3
+-A=t-B +=R=1+-H
MEEE MATE R | F=H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT AT BETT BT
Financial quarantee  BIEERAH
contract 10,000 2,220 - - 2,220
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies which are described in note
2, management has made certain key
assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimated uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, as discussed
below:

(i)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and freehold land and
buildings

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset, which
requires significant judgement relating to
the level of revenue and the amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections
of revenue and operating costs. Changes
in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying amount of the
assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty
(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains impairment
allowance for doubtful accounts based
upon evaluation of the recoverability of
the trade receivables and other receivables,
where applicable, at the end of each
reporting period. The estimates are based
on the aging of the trade receivables and
other receivables balances and the
historical write-off experience, net of
recoveries. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, additional
impairment allowance may be required.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual test on
whether there has been impairment of
intangible assets in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2(j). The
recoverable amounts of CGUs are
determined based on value in use
calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates and assumptions made by
management on the future operation of
the business, pre-tax discount rates, and
other assumptions underlying the value in
use calculations.

ARE SRR EE (A
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

5. SEHET R E (&)

(a) AEFTHABERZZETERIR

(&)

(ii) FEWR SRS B
AEBRBERZHREHR
HEWE 5 IR M H A
YRR (N A ) 2 m] U el
BE N 2 FHE - FHERERR
BEfE - ARG AR
B 5 MRk N B A R U R R
AE BRI e S JIE S i BH A B
HER P D SRE S
(CESRET PR B /W
%% - R A BEZRIERRSMNRUE
B

(i) EREE R E

£ B AR 1% MY 5 2() BT
SRRRIRFHELEE

BREETAH - MR
TELBEM KBS
TifRERBEAENER
BX stEBEPARH
BEEBHARARELZENR
SSURNRR B A B 3R 2K P 4F
ZIEEFRER - AR EAM
i EEREEER IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

(continued)

(iv) Useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on as straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the property, plant and equipment
regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expenses to be recorded
during the any reporting period. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking
into account the expected usage, wear
and tear of the assets, as well as technical
obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or services output of the
assets. The depreciation expenses for
future periods are adjusted prospectively if
there are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR EE (A
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. =ETEET R HE (E&)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty (a) HETFTHBAEZZEZERIR
(continued) (&)

(v) Fair value of investment properties (v)

REYRZ 2 FE

As set out in note 18, investment
properties were revalued as at 31
December 2017 on an open market value
existing use basis by the independent
professional valuer, whose have among
their staff, fellow members of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyor (the
“Valuer(s)"). Such valuations were based
on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the
judgement, the Group considers
information from current prices in an
active market for similar properties and
uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at each of
reporting period.

In the absence of current prices in an
active market for similar properties, the
Group considers information from a variety
of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for
properties of a different nature,
condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contract),
adjusted to reflect those differences;
and

INPMEE 18 FAEL - IEWE
R-_F—tH+=-H4
=t—HR-BABYER
HEMAR(EEIBTE
BEERNEMEGEERS
8) ([faErm ) rRAZ
ARAMERAERAEEE
b ZFHMEERE TR
& OEMAHABAEZAR
EEREREREEAE
£ o FEELHERS - K&
B & Bk B 5 AL
MEZHRBEREN K
FEREERENSREH
ZERTIREL 2K

MRS B E BT
By AAER  AEEE
=R R T R
K o

(@ TRMEE - Rk
H(AXTAEER
HMBHMAHRR) Z
MERERTIS 2R
TERKABUR
MEIBER) K&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty
(continued)
(v) Fair value of investment properties
(continued)

(b)

recent prices of similar properties on
less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those
prices; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts
and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents
for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing
of the cash flow.

The principal assumptions for the Group's
estimation of the fair value include those
related to current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates,
expected future market rents and future
maintenance costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. =ETEET R HE (E&)
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in

(b) ERXAEEEHRRZEE

applying the Group’s accounting
policies

In determining the carrying amounts of some
assets and liabilities, the Group makes
assumptions for the effects of uncertain future
events on those assets and liabilities at the end
of each reporting period. These estimates
involve assumptions about such items as cash
flows and discount rates used. The Group's
estimates and assumptions are based on
historical experience and expectations of future
events and are reviewed periodically. In addition
to assumptions and estimations of future
events, judgements are also made during the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

Impairment test for interests in associates
The Group completed its annual impairment
test for interests in associates by comparing the
recoverable amount of interests in associates to
its carrying amount as at 31 December 2017.
The Group has engaged the Valuer to carry out
a valuation of the interests in associates as at 31
December 2017 based on the value in use
calculations. This valuation uses cash flow
projections based on financial estimates
covering a five-year period, and a pre-tax
discount rate of 12.19% (2016: 12.81%). The
cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% (2016: 4.92%)
growth rate for the casino and hotel industries
in which are operated by associates.

B3t

REEMNEERRBEZREA
B NEBER TR KRR
FHHENSHREHPREELER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Il‘li\

BA RS SRR B L (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHE—
5.

T—tF+_A=t+—HLFE

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies (continued)

Impairment test for interests in associates
Management has considered the above
assumptions and valuation and also taken into
account the business plan going forward. The
valuation depends upon an estimate of future
cash flows from the interests in associates and
other key assumptions, which are based on the
Directors’ best estimates. The valuation is
sensitive to these parameters. Changes in these
parameters could lead to a material revision of
the valuation which may have effects on the net
assets and results of the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified on the basis of
internal reports which provide information about
components of the Group. This information are
reported to and reviewed by the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

The CODM considers the business from both
geographic and service perspective.

The Group has presented the following two
reportable segments.

— Travel business: sales of air tickets and provision
of travel-related services.

— Property investment business: receiving profit
streams from leasing office premises in Hong
Kong.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

The lottery business was discontinued for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The segment information
reported below does not include any amounts for
this discontinued operation, which are described in
more detail in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities
The travel reportable operating segment derives
their revenue primarily from sales of air tickets
and provision of travel-related services.
Geographically, management considers the
performance of the travel business in North
America.

The property investment reportable operating
segment derives their revenue from leasing
office premises in Hong Kong.

In accordance with HKFRS 8, segment
information disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements has been prepared in a
manner consistent with the information used by
the Group’'s CODM for the purposes of
assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s
CODM monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE SRR (&
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Segment profit represents the profit from each
segment without allocation of corporate
administrative costs such as directors’
emoluments, share of results of associates and
joint ventures and corporate finance costs. To
arrive at reportable segment profit, the
management additionally provides segment
information concerning interest income, finance
costs and major non-cash items such as
depreciation, amortisation and impairment
losses derived from reportable segments.
Unallocated corporate income mainly comprises
amortisation on financial guarantee contract,
management fee income from an associate,
interest income and other sundry income. This
is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment. Taxation is not
allocated to reportable segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to
the CODM is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than amount due from an associate,
interests in associates and joint ventures.
Unallocated corporate assets mainly include part
of the property, plant and equipment as well as
cash and cash equivalents of the central
administration companies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

All liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than corporate liabilities.
Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly include
financial guarantee contracts and part of other
payables borne by the central administration
companies.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the
year is set out below:

Continuing operations Travel
2017

6.

“g-tF °%
HKS'000 ~ HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
ARTR ARTR AE%Tn A%Tn B%Tn RAETn

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

7 EER (&)

(a) Z#%EE BEERAEFEGAE)

Ffr*ﬁiéj BOERERATERD
I’Emﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂf&%?l\ ° RO
EE@%E%I%@%EM%%&
B NP RITHAREEZE
1*%1’@?17‘9%“

%ﬁEEﬁZK%I%Z«‘%ﬁ

RERBARAEEAED

Af&pﬂﬁ"*ﬁ?ﬁfﬂZﬁ%E
B eBEREIIT

Property investment Total
NERE &t

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—NE ZB-tf " \F 25t “TF

Revenue from external  HMFEFZBERET
customers and reportable 2345 Hik

segment revenue 583425 562,676 6,510 2,172 589,935 564,848

Reportable segment ATEHIH
profit/(loss) w5/ (BR) (15,656)

(78%) 83415 1293 67,759 (6,603)

Share of results of joint ventures fEf5A & EEE
Share of results of associates  JE{GEE& 1\ Rl 548
Unallocated corporate income KRB ZMA

Unallocated corporate AAREERT
expenses

Finance costs B

Consolidated profit/(loss) ~ KBiAI&S4
before taxation B/ (BR)

Taxation ]

Consolidated profit/(loss) AEELE
for the year B/ (BR)

527 495
(9.879) 17,513
1,137 20830

(65.069) (46,785

(106)  (1,749)
4369  (16,299)
4369  (16,299)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBERRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

6. 7 EPER (&)

(CONTINUED)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) DEEE BEEREE(E)
(continued)
Travel Property investment Total
g3 NERE At
2017 2016 2017 20 6 2017 2016
ZB-tF ZTRF ZB-tF T ZB-tF T F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000  HK$'000
A®Tn A%t B¥Tn EBTr AMTn  BETR
Reportable segment assets B 7 22 HEE 51,089 51079 294142 224454 345231 275533
Assets relating to lottery BEEFEXBNEE
business (now (RE&LLE)
discontinued) - 24,930
Unallocated corporate KA B LEEE
assets
— Interests in associates NEYNSIP: 3 537,087 543,621
— Amount due from — FEH& BN
an associate /T;\IE - 294420
— Interests in joint ventures — RALME 2 2% 4,411 3,884
— Corporate assets — m%ﬁfz 159,318 46,046
1,046,047 1,188,434
Reportable segment ~ EFE2HIUER
liabilities 39,873 32,719 1,015 124,298 40,888 157,017
Liabilities relatingto ~ BEETEZXKNEE
lottery business (now (BB A LLEE)
discontinued) - 11,885
Unallocated corporate ~ K2 BL¥EE
liabilities
— Corporate liabilites ~ —A¥EE 7303 13,175
48,191 182,077
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEBEFR (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Other segment information (b) HEihaIEH
Property Other
Continuing operations Travel investment corporate entities Total
NEGERE it NERE Htpb¥ER ait

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-E ZTF Z8-tF CE 0 2Bt TF ZEF-4E CF %
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETn BETr B¥Tn AT A¥Tn AETn BETn BT

Interest income FIEBA 3% i) 9 - 184 82 78 11
Fair value gain on REMZ AT
investment properties 4z - - 79185 - - - 19185 -

Depreciationonowned ~ BENE - BER
property, plant and REINE

equipment (684) (643) - - (34720 (2878  (4156)  (3,521)
Impairment loss HMIRERER L
recognised on: WEEE:
—intangbleassets  — EFEE (4557)  (3167) - - - N 17 I EA L)
—traderecevables  —ERERER (81) (18) - - - - (81 (18)
Finance costs AR - (@ (1,435) (326) (106) (1749  (1.541)  (2079)
Additions to non-current  FEFEFHEE *
assets* 209 169 21,107 191,708 ) 22,585 21358 214,462
& Additions to non-current assets only include the * NEFRBEEERBIEREFA
additions to property, plant and equipment and NBEZYWE - BEMEREARIK
investment properties during the year. BYE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(CONTINUED)

(c) An analysis of the Group'’s revenue
from all services is as follows:

7 EER (&)

(0 XEERERBERSE WS
paig U

Continuing operations 2017 2016

BEREER —E—+F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Sales of air tickets FHEME 531,746 510,504
Travel and related service B % & A8 R RS B UL A

fee income 51,679 52,172

Rental income Ha WA 6,510 2,172

589,935 564,848

(d) Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers; and (ii) the Group’s non-current
assets. The geographical location of customers
refers to the location at which the services were
provided. The Group’s non-current assets
included property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, intangible assets,
interests in associates and joint ventures.

The geographical location of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties is
based on the physical location of the asset
under consideration. In the case of intangible
assets, it is based on the location of operations
to which these intangibles are allocated. In the
case of interests in associates and joint ventures,
it is based on the location of operations of such
associates and joint ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(d) Geographical information (continued)

(e)

(f)

Continuing operations

BESERR

—E-tE

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

7 EER (&)

(d) EER (&)

Revenue from Non-current
external customers assets
REMPEF 2 i FRBEE
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016

2016 ZE-tf —T5F
“Z—% +ZA=t-B t-A=1+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRI AR

Hong Kong (place of domicile) &5 (Pr7Est) 2172 314,614 217,407
Macau R - 537,087 543,621
North America bE 562,676 15,873 19,620
The People’s Republic of i ARLFE ([HE))

China ("PRC") - 151 4,490

564,848 867,725 785,138

Major customer (e) EEEF
There is no single external customer amount to WEE AR Wz ES
10% or more of the Group's revenue. AREBEWZ 10% A | o

Revenue from major services

The Group's revenue from its major services was
listed in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

() EBRBzW=
ZIS‘E Bz 2R Wt
RERE W TS MRMIFET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

7. REVENUE

7.

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in
the travel-related and property investment

businesses.

Revenue represents travel-related agency service fee
income and rental income. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised in revenue

during the year is as follows:

iz

AEEZEBXB RN FIRENRH

RMEREERR

Yo 25 45 TR AR B OEE AR 7S B A
HEWA - REAR - FHER K
WEER < T 2B WS AT

Continuing operations 2017 2016

BEREEK —E—+F —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Rental income Hae WA 6,510 2,172
Travel-related agency service R BEARR IR AR TS B WA

fee income

— Sales of air tickets — HERE 531,746 510,504
— Travel and related service — ez R AR RS E WA

fee income 51,679 52,172

583,425 562,676

589,935 564,848
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS 8. Himhz UK A
Continuing operations 2017 2016
BEKEXER —E—+tF —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE BET T BT
Other revenue H {th Uy 2
Interest income B WA 228 111
Management fee income RE—fEEE AR 2
from an associate EBEBURA 632 512
Write back of long-outstanding R HI X {5 fE~ & 5 BR X
trade payables Z B[ 161 212
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE « BKE KRB
plant and equipment Z Wz 875 1,405
Other income HiUg A 21 198
1,917 2,438
Other gains Hug A
Amortisation on financial MG ERE #)# 5H
guarantee contract 28 10,322 19,995
Net exchange gain AINDEE S5 LK 2 1,046 588
11,368 20,583
Total &5 13,285 23,021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 9. BFHANEF (EE)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging BRBLRT R (E58) 2k T 58
the following: B :

Continuing operations 2017 2016
BFESEEK —E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
(a) Finance costs (a) BAFERRA
Interest on bank loans RITERZHE 1,435 326
Interest on bank overdraft RITEZ 2 F B - 4
Interest on loan from a director —REEFRIERRER
and controlling shareholder ERZFE
(note 36(a)) (K17t 36(a)) 106 1,749
1,541 2,079
(b) Staff costs (b) BIRA
Salaries, wages and other e LERHEMER
benefits (including directors’ (RRESHE)
emoluments) 38,448 38,369
Contributions to defined ERRRFGRINET S 2
contribution retirement plan K 1,327 1,407
39,775 39,776
(c) Other operating expenses (c) Hth&&px
Impairment loss recognised on MU T HIERRZ
BIEEE
— intangible assets —mEE
(note 17) (Kt 17) 4,557 3,167
— trade receivables — BKE SR
(note 21(b)) (KtaE21(b) 81 18
4,638 3,185
(d) Otheritems (d) HMEB
Auditors’ remuneration % EREN BN &
— Audit services — ZEART 925 835
— Other services — HAM AR 400 280
Depreciation on owned BEYE  BEX
property, plant and REZITE
equipment 4,156 3,521
Operating lease rentals KEHEMES
— properties — E 7,663 6,932
— plant and equipment — BB k& 532 448
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represents:

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

10. RiFEBEERZHIE

(a) RREEBERZHBIEARE

Continuing operations 2017 2016
BHEREER —E2—tF —E—REF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5T BT T BT
Current tax BN EAFR I8 - -
Deferred tax EIERIE 29(b) - -
Tax charge BIEFRX - =

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
profit for the year. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made for both years as the
Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong.

Canadian subsidiaries are subject to Canadian
Corporate Income Tax which comprises federal
and provincial income taxes. The net federal
income tax is calculated at 15% (2016: 15%)
and the provincial income tax is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant provinces. No
provision for Canadian Corporate Income Tax
has been made for both years as the Group has
no assessable profits arising in Canada.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% (2016: 25%). No provision
for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made
for both years as the Group has no assessable
profits arising in the PRC.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions.

BBEFB DB ANFE E (5T ERMR
m F o R165%( = F — X F
16.5% ) A EFE - AR ANEBE R/
BFEEANEBREMEEEERT R
oA BEXRBBFESHIED
B o

IEPNGI=PNCIVEE: SO P EP NS S
et EFEaBARERME
B o FHEEFPAFHIZ 15% (ZF—X
F15%) 58 - MERAEHRANZ
HEEN ZERMMEFHE - HRA
SEXMEFEAREENEKRE

ERRBGN > Hit - BHEINE
REEMERIELER -

R B AR EE25% (ZF — X
F o 25%) BN EIEMER - B
RAEERMEFEARBELSH
EEERV AR - At - SEptH
B 1> SE TS B AE 84 o

RE M RDARE R E £ 2 BIBRN A
R AR Z BRI RTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED 10. AR ExR2HE (&)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense
and accounting profit/(loss) at

(b) REBARRIE 2B EMX
HEestaR  (BE)zY

applicable tax rates: BE :
Continuing operations 2017 2016
HEREER —E—+tF T —REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

Profit/(loss) before taxation B AT E A, (E518) 4,369 (16,299)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) ZERAREBEER

before tax, calculated at S (ER) 2 =

the tax rates applicable to &R

profit/(loss) in the countries WA (EE)

concerned HEMIB 615 (6,281)
Tax effect of share of results FE(LE &N B4 2 BB

of associates TE (1,630) 2,890
Tax effect of share of results FE(REEEXEE /7 BIA

of joint ventures B 87 82
Tax effect of non-deductible N MFH G 2 s &

expenses 7,667 5,247
Tax effect of non-taxable BARRBRAZ HIBATE

revenue (15,646) (4,101)
Tax effect of unrecognised KRIERFIEEE 2 #18

tax losses za 8,839 2,686
Unrecognised temporary REREEEERE

differences 68 (523)

Tax expense for the year AFEERIBHRT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section IR A FEM 2 383(1) 1§ ~ A&l (3
383(1) of the Company Ordinance, Part 2 of the BE=fmER)BA(FEERE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits 622GE ) F23 K LR A F A
of Directors) Regulation (Chapter 622G of the laws BUEEMESHEY W

of Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules are as follows:

Salaries, allowance and Retirement benefit
Directors' fee other benefits scheme contributions Total
Eshe #e RURAMER RAERG AR At
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
22—t TF IRt ZTF ZB-tF T ZB-tF T
Name 2 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AeTn  AETr AETn  AEfr  RMTn  BETr B¥TRn BETR

Frecutive Directors 572 %
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny  1218%

(Chairman) (FR) - - - - - - - _
Ma Ho Man, Hoffman &3
(Deputy chairman) — (BIEF) - - 607 607 18 18 625 625

Non-executive Director 2772 %
Choi Kin Pui, Russelle ~ Zfges 120 120 - - - - 120 120

Independent Non- BV #5/78E

executive Directors
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann 1255 120 120 - - - - 120 120
Chin Wing Lok, B

Ambrose 120 120 - - - - 120 120
Chong Ming Yu e 120 120 - - - - 120 120

480 480 607 607 18 18 1,105 1,105
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
directors waived any emoluments and no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

Director’s material interests in transaction, arrangement or
contract is stated as below:

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1 December 2008 made
between the Company and Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny,
being a Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company (“Mr. Yeung”), Mr. Yeung provided a HK$200
million term loan facility to the Company with interest at
the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. The
principal amount of the loan facility was increased up to
HK$290 million on 14 April 2009. The Company paid the
interest of approximately HK$106,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: approximately HK$1,749,000) in
relation to this transaction. Other details of the transaction
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save for contracts amongst group companies and the
aforementioned transaction, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the
Company was a party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B =R A R A T

1. EEME ()

W

HE_T—+tFR-ZZT—X~"FE+=A
=+—BILFE BESEHRELM
e AEBTEREAESZHE
€ - ERMARE BN INAR
SER 2 52E - SERBERE -

BEERRG BRGNP ZERE
mEFIAT

BIEARABEEEFAR A ERRE
HBEREE(HBEEDR=ZTTN\F
+ZA—BiFINZ2H#E BEERE
A ‘R 200,000,000 TR ES £
HELRITER AR MR BEER
BREEMNERFEZEHERRE - R
“ETAFHA+TNMA ZEERR
B2AScBEENERSBE
290,000,0007T - BHE=—F—tF+=
RA=+T—BILFE AAFRDHER
2 XS F B 47 % 106,000t ( = F
— NG #7B81,749,00078) c R B
ZHAFHBEINRE M RARITES6

BREBQREZAHNE ERZHIN
AR BB R] S E M F AR SR AN
EAERERDALEYR  MEERNE
TEEREBREREAER IR
RHERAHR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 12.
EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals with the highest
emoluments were not the Directors for both
years. The aggregate of the emoluments in
respect of the other five (2016: five) individuals,
included two (2016: one) senior management,
are as follows:

A4 ot

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

REBAEMERES
A

FEREHAT
MEFEZAEZRSHALY
WHEE - EHAR(ZT—X
FRZB)ATETBEMRE
(Z2E—RF: —R)afER
AB - HESREHI T

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Salaries, allowances and e R REMEF
other benefits 4,491 4,693

Retirement benefit scheme R AET B

contributions 90 81
4,581 4,774

The emoluments of the five (2016: five)
individuals with the highest emoluments are
within the following band:

ZAR(ZE—XRF: AF)&
BEALTZHMEN T T7&EE
A

Number of individuals

A
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 T Z 1,000,000 7T 4 3
HK$1,000,001 to 751,000,001 TR
HK$1,500,000 75 %1,500,000 7T 1 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BRRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

12. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 12.5REBEAEMERES
EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS HFALT(E)
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Senior management of the Company (b) ZATESREEAE
The emoluments of the senior management of AKATEMREBEAEZMEN
the Company are within the following band: SN EAE AR
Number of individuals
A
2017 2016
—E—tF A2
Nil - HK$ 1,000,000 T2 A1 1,000,000 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to B #1,000,001 TR
HK$1,500,000 7% 1,500,000 7T 1 -
13. DIVIDENDS 13. BB
No interim dividend was paid during the year under FRITERMABPEAKRE(ZF— X
review (2016: Nil). The Directors do not recommend F o\E) . BEEfEZREE =
any payment of a final dividend for the year ended —+F+-_A=+—BHIFEEKRN
31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). ERARERE(ZTE—RF : &) o
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On 8 September 2017, Victory Devotion Limited
("Victory Devotion”), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as vendor entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party as purchaser to dispose of (i) the 80%
equity interest in Honour Rich China Development
Limited (“Honour Rich”, together with its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Honour Rich Group™)); (ii) all the
shareholder’s loans due and owing by Honour Rich
to Victory Devotion in amount of approximately
HK$113.3 million (the “Honour Rich Shareholder
Loan”); and (iii) all the loans due and owing by a
person who is the ultimate beneficial owner of Up Fly
Limited (“Up Fly”), a company which holds 20%
equity interest in Honour Rich (the “JV Partner”) in
amount of approximately HK$5.9 million (the
"Related Loan") at a consideration of HK$12 million.
The completion of the said disposal took place on the
same date. The operation of the Honour Rich Group
represented the entire business segment of lottery
business of the Group and therefore the cessation of
the business was treated as discontinued operation in
these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”.

The comparative consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, profit/(loss)
before taxation stated in these consolidated financial
statements and the relevant disclosure notes for
profit or loss items are re-presented for discontinued
operation in the current year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

R—ZE—tFALANBA  AQ
FEEZENEA Tﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
(M8eBs ) H’Ez%gméﬁi—%ﬁi%
= HF(WEARABER)FIVEEH=Z ' I
ENEETBRHERBR QA E
= EZREMNBAR(AEEEE
1)) H80% ki : (N EEHERHK
BRFEREERSBLY ABE
113,300,000 T (B EREER]) :
A K (i) — R ARABR 2GR
1) FEEEM20% KRIEAQR])
RIRETDHBEANAL(AERZME])
BN BEREENARBE
5,900,000 7t ([HBEEERK]) - R(EA
##512,000,0007C ° _F it & E18
EAHETBﬁX EEEE 22BN

BEREBI B2 2IER - K
,“;i%ﬂ‘%ahz,\\%,%/ﬁﬂ%#&%ﬁ,ﬁlJ
Eo5 [IFEHECIERBEERD
R | RZERATHRE
TERE R IEEEETFEIE

MREMBBRFAENLRESE
E&ﬁﬁﬂiﬁuﬁl/\%& B 3% Al g
M, (BHR) RERREERREA W
MEFERAFERERIEREER
EHEW -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REMBEHRRMET (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-T—tHF+-A=+—HLEE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

14. CRIEREE (E)

(a) The analysis of the results of the (a) FFAGREBERZEARILR
discontinued operation included in the R S AN
consolidated statement of profit or loss
are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+EF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Revenue Wz 19,097 8,284
Cost of sales SHE R R (1,508) (2,789)
Gross profit ES 17,589 5,495
Other revenue and gains HA e as R 30 548
Administrative expenses THAX (15,345) (24,346)
Selling expenses HERX (2,145) (2,463)
Profit/(loss) before taxation B ADER (BE) 129 (20,766)
Taxation IR - _
129 (20,766)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries & ME A F 2 &
(note 31) (K1aE31) (37,954) -
Loss for the year from RECKRILELEEKZ
discontinued operation REEFEE (37,825) (20,766)
Attributable to: BT & IE B
Owners of the Company VNN ) (37.851) (16,613)
Non-controlling interests eI R 26 (4,153)
Loss for the year from RECKRILELEEKZ
discontinued operation REEFEE (37,825) (20,766)
Other comprehensive Hih 2wk (BE)
income/(loss)
Exchange differences on BREBHENRBAR]
translation of financial SRR AMEEZ
statements of disposed ME N ER
subsidiaries 2,126 (2,605)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Profit/(loss) before taxation from
discontinued operation is arrived at

(9]

1 4- El nY

(b) REEKLE

IEARE R (])

BRI ZBRB

AR (E18) EMERT 5

after charging the following: HH :
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEE S - 140
Depreciation on owned BEVHE  MEAREZ
property, plant and e
equipment 694 1,528
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEREEZ
plant and equipment E518 5 -
Operating lease rentals MEKEHERS
of properties 1,070 1,666
Staff costs B TEA 10,639 16,556
Other information: HipER :
Addition to non-current assets R BIEREBEE - 115

Cash flows from discontinued () ERLEKREXERZRER
operation: E:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Net cash outflow from R 7 /S n R
operating activities (7,496) (14,883)
Net cash inflow from KEESH RS RAFRE
investing activities - 225
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REEFE 2L HRA
financing activities SO ) %5 7.521 (36,918)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash R E& NKIRESEETA R N
and cash equivalent S Om) F%58 25 (51,576)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. 8 (E58) BA
(a) REBELLRORIL K
i
7NN B AR B E A 15 B A 5 98
TR TEIEEE -

(@) From continuing and discontinued
operations:
The calculation of the basic loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Loss: B
Loss for the year attributable to K2 FIAX B fB{G AN F &
the owners of the Company E518 (29,810) (30,977)
2017 2016
—B—+tF —TRF
‘000 ‘000
Shares Shares
TR T
Number of shares: RGOEA :
Weighted average number of T EFRENEEZ
shares for the purpose of AR 17 N 25 2x
basic loss per share 4,926,491 4,926,491

BE_T—tFR-_F—RF
+-—A=t+—AILFEE SR
BEFREENTRENR
8 © A2 B
IS 2 RS BIR -

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 was the same as the
basic loss per share. There were no potential
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both
years presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(CONTINUED)

(b) From continuing operations:
The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per
share from continuing operations attributable

ARE SRR EE (A
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

15. B8 (F58) BF (&)

(b) REFELSEEY !
ARRBEREHFELERT
ZEREXR(ER)/BFTR

to the owners of the Company is based on the BATE®RE -
following data:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Loss: EiE
Loss for the year attributable to 7~ RIAX R FE(S
the owners of the Company REEFHE (29,810) (30,977)
Add: Loss for the year mn: RESRIEKE
attributable to the owners B2 AR REIRE
of the Company from (LN [E E51E
discontinued operation 37,851 16,613
8,041 (14,364)

The denominators used are the same as those
detailed above for both basic and diluted (loss)/
earnings per share.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 was the
same as the basic (loss)/earnings per share.
There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding for both years presented.

FrRAD B HEER EX LS
BEALEE(BR), B2

HE -

BE-_ZT—tFR-_F—XF
+T-RA=+—HLFE 8K
g (BR) ANEERER
EXR(ER) /&M - Rz
EBRFEARBRITENE
EHEL B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(CONTINUED)

(c) From discontinued operation:
The calculation of the basic loss per share from
discontinued operation attributable to the

15. BR (BR) 25 (#)

() REEBARLEEEETR
ARBBRREHEDRIELER
BZBRERNERIIRIBEIAT

owners of the Company is based on the gt E
following data:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T B TT
Loss: i
Loss for the year attributable KEBRIEREER
to the owners of the /NG
Company from I ARFREEE
discontinued operation (37,851) (16,613)

The denominators used are the same as those
detailed above for both basic and diluted loss
per share.

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 was the same as the
basic loss per share. There were no potential
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both
years presented.
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PR D B HEEFER EX Rl E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. 1% - MENKRE

Furniture,
Freehold fittings and
landand  Leasehold office Motor Motor
building improvements  equipment vehicles yacht Total
KAER fil - B
tHRRF  EERE RBAERRE AE id Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARt Akfn A%t BEfn BT BETx
Cost S
At 1 January 2016 R=F-7E-A-H 14,668 4211 10,088 3873 4700 37,540
Additions AE = 85 237 2,500 20,047 22,369
Disposals (hE (2,182) (1,034) (193) (1,568) = (4.977)
Acquistion of assets (note 33)  WEREE (7 33) - - - 54 - 54
Exchange alignment ekt 484 14 (546) 10 - (38)
At 31 December 2016 and RIE—E
1 January 2017 TZA=+-Bk
“E-t5-A-A 12,970 3216 9,580 4,869 2,747 55,448
Additions ME - 64 138 49 - 251
Disposals mE - - (181) - (4,700) (4,881)
Derecognised on disposal of REENBARBR
subsidiaries (note 31) wA(Ht31) - (1,156) (8674) - - (9,830)
Exchange alignment AR 1,001 306 1114 - - 2401
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tf
TZA=1-H 13971 2,490 1,983 4918 20,047 43,409
Accumulated depreciation  Z3tTE
At 1 January 2016 R-E- E-R-H 1,781 2,685 4,081 2,155 4,700 15,402
Charge for the year Rz 27 309 1,613 1,129 1,671 5,049
Written back on disposals i ERRE (252) (768) (184) (1,568) - 2.772)
Exchange alignment 3 56 143 (344) 10 - (135)
At 31 December 2016 and B
1 January 2017 TZRA=+-Bk
“E-tE-A-H 1912 2,369 5,166 1,726 6,371 17,544
Charge for the year ERTH, E1)] 182 933 1,403 2,005 4,850
Disposals & - - (181) - (4,700) (4,881)
Eiminate on disposal of HEME A AR
subsidiaies (note 31) (Wit31) - (825) 4811) - - (5,636)
Bichange alignment AR 165 393 674 - - 1,32
At 31 December 2017 R-B-tF
tZB=t+-H 2,404 2,119 1,781 3129 3,676 13,109
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2017 R-B-tE
tZBZ1+-H 11,567 3n 202 1,789 16,371 30,300
At 31 December 2016 RIE-—E
TZR=1-H 11,058 907 4420 3143 18,376 37,904
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BRRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BMENRE (E)
(CONTINUED)

At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
t=A=t—-8B t-A=1+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Freehold land and building held ~ REEAIMERA 2
outside Hong Kong KAFEE LI RIETF 11,567 11,058
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Trademark Client list Total
iz BEZE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT

Cost s
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—H—H 24,354 6,807 31,161
Exchange alignment 0E 5 AR 797 224 1,021
At 31 December 2016 and NZE—REF
1 January 2017 +-A=+—-HBK

i = 25,151 7,031 32,182
Exchange alignment M 2 1,927 538 2,465
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+&

+=B=+—A1 27,078 7,569 34,647

Accumulated amortisation Rt RBEER
and impairment losses

At 1 January 2016 R-ZZE—XRE—HF—H (13,521) (6,807) (20,328)
Impairment loss EEE (3,167) S (3,167)
Exchange alignment b 5 G EE (442) (224) (666)
At 31 December 2016 and MNZE—RF
1 January 2017 +-A=+—BkK

—2—+%—H—H (17,130) (7,031) (24,161)
Impairment loss REEE (4,557) - (4,557)
Exchange alignment BE 5, A B (1,464) (538) (2,002)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+&

+=H=+—81 (23,151) (7,569) (30,720)
Carrying amount RREE
At 31 December 2017 R=-Z—+tF

+-—B=+—H 3,927 - 3,927
At 31 December 2016 NZE—REF

+=-A=+—H 8,021 - 8,021
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Trademark

The trademark named as “Jade Tours” is a well-
known travel agency brand registered in Canada. The
Directors assessed that the trademark is having
indefinite useful lives because the trademark was
expected to contribute to net cash inflow indefinitely
and can be renewed by the Group at minimal cost.

In accordance with HKAS 36, the Group completed
its annual impairment test for the trademark by
comparing its recoverable amount to its carrying
amount as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. The
Group has conducted a valuation of the trademark
based on the value in use calculations. With reference
to the valuations carried out by the Valuer, the
recoverable amount of the trademark is lower than
its carrying amount. The recoverable amount of
trademark was reduced equivalent to approximately
HK$3,927,000 (2016: equivalent to approximately
HK$8,021,000). Therefore, an impairment loss
equivalent to approximately HK$4,557,000 has been
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: equivalent to approximately HK$3,167,000).
The recognition of impairment loss is mainly
contributed by the decline in profit forecast of the
travel business in Canada. Any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of the
recoverable amount would result in further
impairment loss.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. B EE (8)

R

(352 | MR IMERANA
A fit ki IR bE - R IR TR
AERPEMBSRAFE - LA
BB AN BB ZRAER
BMESHEEEZAERFHARE
BR o

BREBESTEANEI6H - AKE
BEEzAleBEER-F
—+FER_FE—RNE+_A=1+—
BZBREBEELER @ FEATKEE
E2FEREBEIR - AEBERE
FREBEFESEZRPITETHE -
LEMBEMETCHE BE2H
WEeEENRERAEBE mE2A]
KelcBERLDERERPDBE
3,927,000t (= ZE—RF : HER
475 %8,021,0007T ) © iUt - BLE
—E—+F+-_A=1+—HIFE
EERABREBEEREFRNAEE
4,557,000 c(ZF—~F: HER
#)75# 3,167,000 7T ) ° FE R R (B &S
BEZHRINE KR E G T8
B TFEFTER - ARETE AT E €8
ZBREBWMBEFAAFEE - HAT8E
EEE—DREEIE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Trademark (continued)

The valuation of the trademark is based on the relief-
from-royalty method and uses cash flow projections
based on financial estimates covering a five-year
period, the expected sales deriving from the
trademark in the travel CGU and a pre-tax discount
rate of 25.82% (2016: 16.30%). The cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 2.00% (2016: 1.32%) growth rate. This
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for travel markets in which the Group
operates. The values assigned to the above
assumptions reflect past experience and are
consistent with management plans for focusing
operations in these markets. Management believes
that the assumption is reasonably achievable.

Client List

The Directors assessed that the client list is having 15
years of useful lives from the date of acquisition. The
carrying amount of the client list was fully impaired
in the year ended 31 December 2014. The
recognition of impairment loss is mainly contributed
by the increase in contributory charge of fixed assets.

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

17. B EE ()

EAE ()

MEZHEREANEFEERER
FETE  UYRABBRERAFHZ
A HERBRERSESE
B 2 1R 2 $HE RE A R BR 0 AT B
/W R582%( — T — X F:
16.30%) 5 H 2B e METERHETT ©
BaAFHzREeRENRBEE
BER2.00%(ZZT—NF :1.32%)
FE o R ERTTEBBEAEER
KERMEREMS 2 RBFHER
Ko iR ZAABERERRBA
e WHEBEHEINZEMS
XX EIAT -  BEEREZR

LA AEEE -

EERE

ERNEEPREZAERFHA
WEABEFTI5F - TRPBREZR
HERHEZE-_ZT-WNF+=-A
=+ -HUEFEE2HERE - BR
BEBEIERABTEEEZHN
g h0 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

Fair value HK$'000
4¥E BETT
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF—H—H -
Addition INE 191,708
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZ-ZE—X"F+_A=+—"HK
—T—+F—H—H 191,708
Addition NE 21,107
Increase in fair value recognised in the RireiEm R AERZ AT EEM
consolidated statement of profit or loss 79,185
At 31 December 2017 R=-EB—t&F+=HB=+—H 292,000

A fair value gain on the investment properties of
approximately HK$79,185,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). The direct
operating expense from investment properties is
amounting to approximately HK$776,000 (2016:
approximately HK$381,000) and the rental income
generated from the investment properties is
approximately HK$6,510,000 (2016: approximately
HK$2,172,000).

The fair value of the investment properties for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 has been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on
the respective date by the Valuers who have
appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar property in the relevant locations.
The highest and best use of the investment properties
are its current use in estimating the fair value of the
properties.

The fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong is determined using combination of
income capitalisation method and direct comparison
method (2016: direct comparison method) by
reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per saleable square foot basis.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A

HE_FT—+tF+-_HA=+—HL1Lt
FE  REVWEZRAFERZLOE
¥ 79,185,000 LR R & B K+ i
R(ZE—RNF: &) - REEKRED
¥ ZEERKERZ L RA 776,000
TL(ZF — /N F 4975 %381,000
TL) c MREEREYE 2B WAL
575 %6,510,000c( = — N F ¢
#)75%2 172,000 7T) °

BE_ Tt -_ZT-—RF+=
A=1t—HLEE BEVEZR
FEEHABEEERLNARM
B2 B EEEDEEATHE
B2 MERD - NAERE A BIREEE
BEH - EEAWEZATFER
REMEZERARERERER
Al A3

NRBBZREMEZRAFEIIE
2ERAUBYRONREERE TS
REMREEERELENRA S I
ABRMOERBERLEE(ZF—R
FHEELBR)EE -



18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

The following tables analyses the fair value of

investment properties at different levels defined as
follows:

EBERRME (AE)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—

TRIETRER

T—tF+_A=+—HLFE

18. wEY* ()

PMBREMENR

FE MEMBRNERNT

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F—& -t} F=H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT T BT
Recurring fair value REMEQIATEFE
measurements
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tHF
+=A=+—H - - 292,000
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—REF
—A=+—H = 191,700 =
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and AEB VZHREREEERER 2EH

transfers out the fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.

During the year, the valuation technique of certain
investment properties, was changed from direct
comparison method to combination of income
capitalisation method and direct comparison method
because it can more reliably reflect the conditions of
the current property market in Hong Kong.

The fair value of the Existing Property (as defined
hereinafter) categorised into level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy was changed to level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

HERF e YA ERAAT
BERBRAIEAREL -

RER ETREVENEBESE
MEERLBEERA HRABE R
AENEELEBOE TRt E 6
SRR B A EEMEDTZOMR
PTEK

BEENEX(ERR TXONRFED
HHRATERBE _GREBERRYF
BREE=A-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE SRR (&
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REW X (&)
(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the fair value TRIBMAEFIZEWEN AT E
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment FAv
properties:
Fair value at
31 December Fairvalue  Significant Range or
Description 2017 Valuation technique hierarchy ~ unobservable inputs weighted average
RZB-tF
tZA=t-H
Ha ZATE  fEERE NYEESR EXTUBRBAHE EEIMETY
HKS'000
AU
Units 1003-1004A, 269,000  Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per saleable  HK$31,994 to HK$61,728
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre method and direct square foot
(“Existing Property”) comparison method
BERO1E1003ER WAEALERERLBE H=8 HETIRERERES  BH31.994TEEE61,7287
004AZ ([BENR))
Estimated monthly rent HK$52 to HK$103
value per saleable
square foot
#EASYARERER E¥S2AERM103%
HEEE
Capitalisation rate 1.8%
ExfpE
13/F, Sing-Ho Finance 23,000  Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per saleable  HK$17,347 to HK$21,322
Building, Wanchai method and direct square foot
comparison method
BEENRBAR 138 WABRERERLBE E=8 Y AREAERER BRI ERE N3N
Estimated monthly rent HK$28 to HK$30
value per saleable
square foot
EHSASTAREAER AMBIERMNRT
HeEE
Capitalisation rate 2.5%
Bxf®
Fair value at
31 December Fair value Significant Range or
Description 2016 Valuation technique hierarchy observable inputs weighted average
RIE—1%E
tZA=1-H ) &
fast ZATE  HERE NYEESR EAUBRGAME SEMETS
HK§'000
it S
Units 1003-1004A, 191,700 Direct comparison method Level 2 Price per gross square foot HK$28,378 to HK$36,191
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre
BERLIBI003ER BELBE 224 BYREEHBER A% 28378 236,191
10040
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, the valuations of
investment properties were based on either the
investment method which capitalises the rent
receivables from the existing tenancies and the
potential reversionary market rent of the properties
or direct comparison method by reference to
comparable market transactions.

A significant increase/(decrease) in estimated rental
value per saleable square foot in isolation would
result in a significantly higher/(lower) fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/
(decrease) in the capitalisation rate in isolation would
result in a significantly lower/(higher) fair value of the
investment properties.

A significant increase/(decrease) in price per saleable
square foot in isolation would result in significantly
higher/(lower) fair value of the investment properties.

The Directors believe that any possible changes in
input values would not cause significant change in
fair value of the investment properties.

The properties are either leased out in return of
receiving rental income or held for capital
appreciation and are measure using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted as investment
properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
had pledged one of the investment properties with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$269.0 million
(2016: approximately HK$191.7 million) to secure a
bank loan granted to the Group (note 26).

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

18. wEY* ()

R-E—+F+-_A=+—H &
BYETIRBIRE X (A YENE
THERK HERBEESEMS
MeBEME) REELBA(BI2E
AELBRMBERS) EITHE -

B r T REAmEEHSERSE
BABEN,ORD)ESREME
ZRFERELA(TRE) - BER
ERBBAEEMORD) LR
BEWEZ NTEKREBTE,(EF) -

B 5 RE R EMESEEBAER
/R B2 REME Y A TE
Kig L7/ (FH) -

EEIEE  BAREZ EE T4
B TRHREME Y AT EER
SAEH -

Y%= RIRERE & YA T A 3R
EERTHE  RAATEEXFE
WD BRARSREYE -

BHE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—81
FE AKBECHBFEF—BERE
Y% - BREE X 2758 % 269,000,000
T( Z T — XN F: B K
191,700,000 70) LA B F A £ E /)
IRITEREL I (FH5E26) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE QAR 2
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
IS JiA
—S—+t& —E—REF
+=ZA=+—8 t-—A=+—H
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT T
Deemed capital contribution  fFEEREE (b) 103,200 99,978
Goodwill (SRS () 19,409 19,409
Share of results of associates — FE{G B A B 4E 96,936 106,815
219,545 226,202
Amounts due from associates  JELULEE & N T 218
(note 36(b)) (K17£36(b)) (d) 317,542 611,839
537,087 838,041
Less: Amounts shown B REBEESFYIR
under current assets o (d) - (294,420)
Amount shown under FEREBEEDRIIREEE
non-current assets 537,087 543,621
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19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

EBERRME (AE)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE QT 2= ()
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial J:jﬁ%ﬁljZﬁﬂ%éﬂ;ﬁi ,/:.\Hﬂ%i&
information to the carrying amount of the interests in P ERANE L N T 2SR
associates recognised in the consolidated financial B2 HEE :
statements:
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
S S
—E2—+tF ZE—RF
+=A=+-8 +t=A=+-~
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥T T B TT

Net liabilities of the associates BeE N mBEFHE (293,371) (279,131)
Add: Non-controlling interests - IEERRE A - 5,922
Net liabilities attributable to BENTIRREEAEFE

owners of associate (293,371) (273,209)
Proportion of the Group's RNEE 2 BB RO

ownership interest 49% 49%
Share of net liabilities of LR RRBEFE

the associates (143,751) (133,872)
Goodwill [EES 19,409 19,409
Effect of fair value adjustments WER A FERARZZE

at acquisition 240,687 240,687
Deemed capital contribution BIEEAREE 103,200 99,978
Amounts due from associates FEWES & R R FRIA

(note 36(b)) ( ﬁ/f;f%(b)) 317,542 611,839

537,087 838,041
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

(a) The following list contains only the particulars
of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate
entities, which principally affected the results or

assets of the Group:

(a)

19. REtE 2Rz Em ()

TRESIHARERELE
EBKNEBEXEZIHERRZ

AFiE ZEMEREYRIEL
MAEAER :

Proportion of ownership interest

L b
Place of Particulars of Group's Held
incorporation/ issued and paidup effective bythe  Heldbya Principal
Name of associate operations share capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary activity
H-8
iYL/ ERAR A58 ARAR WEAA
BeELRLR LES BERAHE  ERER =] BE IERR
% % %
Pier 16 - Property Development (note) Macau 100,000 shares of 49 - 49 Property holding
MOP100 each
TABNEER (1) 1§ 100,000 B REE VESEDS
100 2Pt

Note: As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, Pier 16 —
Property Development held the equity interests of the
following companies with the details as below:

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B =R A R A T

Wt R=F—tFR-F—NF1+=
A=+—H8 + N BYWEHRE
B TP~ elRHEE - FIELOT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

EBERRME (AE)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE_T—tF+-A=+—HLEFE
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE QT 2= ()
(CONTINUED)
(a) The following list contains only the particulars (a) TREHIEAEBEERE

of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate

EBKNEBEXEZIHERRZ

entities, which principally affected the results or L EBMENTIHEAI L
assets of the Group: (Continued) TEAEE : (8)
Place of Particulars of Proportion of effective
incorporation/ issued and paid up interest held by Pier 16 -
Name of associate operations share capital Property Development ~ Principal activity
LGRS e/ ERTRARRERE HARNERREE  TEXE
LES U LU S
217 2016
IE-tF 3
% %
Pier 16 - Entertainment Macau 2 shares of MOP24,000 100 100 Provision of
Group Corporation Limited and MOP1,000 management services
respectively for casino operations
TRRREEEARAT A 2R ARIE(E 24,000 27 RR&SEER
R1,000 M52 K17 EERE
Pier 16 - Gaming Promotion, Limited ~ Macau 1 share of MOP50,000 100 100 Provision of gaming
promotion services
TRERNA-ARRAR 37 1 IR 50,000 &7 REBTAN AR
Pier 16 - Management Limited MacauHong Kong 2 shares of MOP24,000 100 100 Hotel management
and Macau and MOP1,000 respectively
TRREEERAT BF/ERRER  2RARIEEM 00021 BEER
,000 /ﬁ TEZ /\
Pier 16 - 3D Limited Macau 2 shares of MOP48,000 100 51 Investment and
and MOP2,000 respectively management
of play centre
TARDERAT A 2R 7RI 48,000 257 RERERELS L

k2,000 272K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(9)

(d)

The deemed capital contribution is referenced
to the financial guarantee contract (note 28)
granted by the Group to the associates.

Goodwill

Because goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the interests in associates and is not
separately recognised, it is not tested for
impairment separately by applying the
requirements for impairment testing in HKAS
36. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the
interests in associates is tested for impairment
as set out in note 19(d) below.

The amounts due from associates are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment. Their carrying amounts are not
materially different from their fair value.

In view of the maturity of the syndicated loan
facilities granted to Pier 16 — Property
Development on 29 June 2017 and for the
purposes of, among others, refinancing the
syndicated loan facilities and financing the
repayment of certain shareholders’ loans
previously advanced to Pier 16 — Property
Development, Pier 16 — Property Development
entered into the Amended Facility Agreement
with, among others, a bank as lender in June
2017. Pursuant to the Amended Facility
Agreement, the maturity date under the
syndicated loan facilities agreement was
extended to 28 June 2022 and the facility
amount was revised to the aggregate amounts
of HK$735 million and MOP273 million. The
Revised Loan Facilities are secured, among
others, a serval guarantee provided by the
Company.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A

19. FAE

& N Rz fEm ()

(b)

(o)

(d)

RAEE AN & 4 AN 5 [ B
RNAE 2 M ERE 4 (H
7£28) °

Gk

=) NEERIPNN N A
mAREE - WEBHER W
BARAEL ST ERFE 365
ZRAE R AR E T B ILRE
R A BT KRR
19(d) &R - OB 2 AR 2 HEan
Z ERPRRE ES R ORE R o

JRE LBt 2 B R OR A AR R
RERLEETFENRDY - ZF
PR Z REE R E A EIL
BERER -

TRHEDEEZRERNIRE
EXmER-_ZT—+tE~A
“t+hHHE BRT(HAF
BRE)GEEEFHREBRE
MEBEERRELABMNT /8
MEZRRNAE TREER
TRNEMEERR_T—tF
SNARE(ERBE) —FERT(E
RERAN)  FIMNLIERTRE 1%
EoREBLEIRE W
HIREEREE Bz D EA
EEE_ZE-_—_F,A=Z+N
H BESEMNMEEAERHB
#735,000,0007T } 273,000,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. Rt E N a2 Em (8)

(CONTINUED)

(d) (Continued) (d) (&)

In 2016, as for the purpose of repayment of
shareholders’ loan, amount due from an
associate of approximately HK$294.4 million
was reclassified to current assets as it is
expected to be recoverable from the associate
within next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

The Group completed its annual impairment
test for interests in associates by comparing the
recoverable amount of interests in associates to
its carrying amount as at 31 December 2017
and 2016. The Group has engaged the Valuer
to carry out a valuation of the interests in
associates as at 31 December 2017 based on
the value in use calculations. This valuation uses
cash flow projections based on financial
estimates covering a five-year period, and a pre-
tax discount rate of 12.19% (2016: 12.81%).
The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3.00% (2016:
4.92%) growth rate for the casino and hotel
industries in which are operated by associates.
The values assigned to the above assumptions
reflect past experience and are consistent with
management plans for focusing operations in
these markets. Management believes that the
assumption is reasonably achievable.

RZZE—RF pEERREE
RE - ATEHAME N — A
N A FRIE 4 7 & 294,400,000
TEREHREBARARTZEA
WAl Bzt & A el lm - st
REEMOEERDEE o

AZREEELE - FELATEK
HERBE QR R FE
BEAS - AEEEZEME
MRBRERAEETE S ERE
E_FT—+tFF+_A=+—H
HEHRBER R 2 EmETR
B RRXHERARBRER
FH 2 B A5 {h 5T LA K BR B AT B
T/ EI219%(ZF — XN F:
12.81%) 15 H 2R &R E T8 A
ET - HBEAFHCZRAERE
A & N R T & IR GG |
BIEFZIBEERE3.00% (=
T—RE :492%)HE - it
BE2HEEEERBRAEL
B UEBEEEZEINZET
HEETE - EREM

ERBRRAISEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BRRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE N R 2R (8§)
(CONTINUED)

(e) The following is summary of aggregate amounts (e) NEBHE AR ZEE B
of assets, liabilities, revenue, and results of the f& H&ﬁﬁ&% @B T
Group's associates:

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

i n

—Z—+tF —E—RF

+=—A=+—-H +=—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT TT

Non-current assets ERBEE 881,772 1,092,509
Current assets mEEE 337,183 645,831
Current liabilities mENEE (418,987) (1,332,539)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,093,339) (684,932)
Net liabilities BEFHE (293,371) (279,131)
2017 2016

:g_‘tﬂi —ZF— /\$

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Revenue W5 609,668 721,435
Other revenue and gains Hh e A 16,534 17,168
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BE),/EF (20,162) 33,324
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

EBERRME (AE)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE_T—tF+-A=+—HLEFE
20. REEDEERS

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

i I

—E—tF —ZE—RF

+t=A=+t—-8 +t=A=t+—H

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

BIsE BET T BT T

Share of net assets EhEEFE 2,941 2,414

Amount due from a joint B —MEE EDFERIAR

venture (note 36(b)) (Kta£36(b) (© 10,170 10,170
13,111 12,584
Less: Impairment loss o REETE (d) (8,700) (8,700)
4,411 3,884
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M (F
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests in
joint ventures recognised in the consolidated financial

20. REERFR 2 ER (F)

EXEES Z EE R AR A B S R
RTERNAEEXZEERE
B2 ¥k

statements:
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
»® I
—E—tF —TRE
+=ZRA=+—H8 t=ZA=1+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Net assets of the joint venture BRENEZEEFE 11,604 10,284
Less: Non-controlling interests R SRR (5,722) (5,456)
Net assets attributable to owners A& ¥R E(EEEEE

of joint venture 5,882 4,828
Proportion of the Group's REE Z R EER LA

ownership interest 50% 50%
Share of net assets of BlhEeEhECEEFE

the joint venture 2,941 2,414
Amount due from a joint B —MEEETERIA

venture (note 36(b)) (H1z£ 36(b)) 10,170 10,170
Less: Impairment loss B BEEE (8,700) (8,700)

4,411 3,884
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. AEETECER (E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Details of the Group’s interests in the () AEBNEE X BRI
joint ventures are as follows: BT :
Form of Particulars of
business Place of issued and paid Group's  Principal
Name of joint venture structure incorporation up share capital effective interest  activity
BRTR r5E
RELELR EBERKL  EMRULE BRRAE BERER TEER
Surplus Win Enterprises Incorporated BVI 2 shares of 50%  Investment
Limited (note) USD1 each holding
EBeCFERAR (M) sy RBRNES 2RERAEE REER
1€ 2R
Note: As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, Surplus Win i AT —tFR TG+
Enterprises Limited held 80% effective interests in B=+—H EELCEARAT
Double Diamond International Limited (“Double ¥ 4ADouble Diamond
Diamond”, a company incorporated in the BVI with International Limited ([Double
limited liability). The principal activity of Double Diamond ] + — &l 74 2 J&§ i & A%
Diamond is pier operation in Macau. EFMKIZEBRAT) Z80%
& B¥ # % ° Double Diamond =
BRI IBIF R RS
(b) Aggregate financial information of (b) ERIYFEAZEELES
joint ventures that are not individually B 75 & 0l 4 ot -
material:
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
n i
—E—+F NS
+=ZA=+—-8 +t—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T B TT
Non-current assets ERENEE 29,293 29,293
Current assets mENEE 3,003 1,568
Current liabilities nBRE (20,692) (20,577)
Net assets BEFE 11,604 10,284
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BRRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Aggregate financial information of
joint ventures that are not individually
material: (Continued)

20. REE X 2R (&)

(b) BRIAFRERZEELEZ
AR - ()

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Revenue Wz 1,731 1,632
Expenses X (411) (393)
Profit before taxation R B AT o A 1,320 1,239
Taxation 1A - _
Profit for the year IR E i 1,320 1,239

The above amounts of assets and liabilities

tREERBESBEEENLT

include the following: KI5 :

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

—E—tF —F—K

+=B=+-8 t=A=+-~

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Cash and cash equivalents REeLKIRESEEIER 3,003 1,568

Amounts due to shareholders  FE{I IR B ZIE (20,340) (20,340)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

The amount due from a joint venture is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms
of repayment.

The Group has advanced HK$12 million to the
joint venture to finance the acquisition of
certain assets. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Group will not demand for repayment
within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and is therefore classified as
non-current assets.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of amount due from a joint venture was
approximately HK$10.2 million (2016:
approximately HK$10.2 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the accumulated
impairment loss of interests in joint ventures
was approximately HK$8.7 million (2016:
approximately HK$8.7 million), which is
considered to be adequate as there are no
indication for further impairment. The
recoverable amount of this advance is
determined based on the net cash flows from
operations estimated by the management for
the coming five years.

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

20. AERTE R (E)

(9)

(d)

B —RaErEFARER
o B R E EE

AEBERAELELMNBE
12,000,0007T * BWEETE
EiRftES  -BERA A&
B rgERkRnmERE
T-@ARNER HEBZE
BARDERIERBEE -

RZE—+t&F+_A=+—
H EBR—EEELEREZ
BREE A A% 10,200,000 7T
ZE - NF: B

10,200,000 7T) °

RZE—+t&F+_A=+—
H REeEEhLEIERS R
BB B 18 4 & 75 % 8,700,000
T(ZE—RNF: HABE
8,700,0007T ) + HH A I £& BF 5
BT HE—DIELRE - W
REBRH - ZEBFR 2 AJIE
CRIIREREBHRRAFL
EME2REeREFE M
EE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 1. EWEBE SR EEMEW
R K

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Rn i

—E—+F —E—REF

+=A=+—-HB +-A=+—H

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

BEE BET T BT T

Trade receivables eI E SERFR 7,344 4,385
Less: Impairment loss recognised & : FLIEUN B 5 BR ZRHER

on trade receivables L REEE (b) (81) (18)

(a) 7,263 4,367

Other receivables H {th W BR X 651 14,676

Trade and other receivables JEULE 5 BR 2k K B fih FE Uk

B 7,914 19,043

Prepayments and deposits BARERZS 10,688 15,971

18,602 35,014

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to A FE Uk B 588 20 % B fb e UK BE =X
be recovered within one year. FBEAR —FE R UL o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR EE (A
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

21. EIREBEZRA R HBEW
AR (4R)

(a) BRER D AT

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(@) Aging analysis

Included in trade and other receivables, the
aging analysis for trade receivables, based on
the due date and net of impairment loss, is as
follows:

BIEERKE SRR R EMmE
WERFR P 2 FEIE 5 BRI |
HHE RINBRREEBEZRR
DT

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

S S

—E—tF —ZE—RF

t=A=t—-8B t-A=1+—H

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Current BNER 4,921 3,514
31 to 60 days overdue #HI31 2 60H 834 419
61 to 90 days overdue #HI61 £ 90 H 962 129
Over 90 days overdue B HAREA 90 B 546 305
7,263 4,367

The Group normally allows an average credit
period of 30 days to customers of travel
business (2016: average credit period of 30
days). For the customers of property investment
business, no credit period was granted. Further
details on the Group's credit policy are set out
in note 4(b)(i).

REE BB TFIREXEBRP
30BZFHEEH(ZE—R
F30HZFHEEH) -5
MEREEBRLME * TE
R EEH AEEEFEEBRE
ZHE—FFBHRHTE40)))
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M (F
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

21. EIREBEZRA R HBEW
AR (4R)

(b) EWEZREIE

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables
directly (see note 2(j)). At the end of the
reporting period, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$81,000 (2016: approximately
HK$18,000) was recognised on trade

JEWE 5 8RR 2 R EE 18 T LA
BRI EAEEEMAK
[B153Z $IE < g iR 5K Rl 5 1E 7
W BB RT  BEEETD
BEEREWE ZERERFME(R
BaE2()) - REREHIR - BhrE
WE ZERERZBEEEL
BB 81,000 (ZZE—/RF -

receivables.

#7765 % 18,000 7T) °

Movement in the impairment loss of trade FEINEZ S ER FURE 18 7 B B
receivables is as follows: RN
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—EB—+tF —ZE—RF
+=ZA=+—B +=—A=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T B TT
Balance at the beginning FAER
of the year 18 240
Impairment loss recognised on  FLIEURE FZERIER 2
trade receivables (note 9(c)) BB EE (K152 9(c) 81 18
Amount written off b E == N Il
as uncollectible &5 (99) (240)
Balance at the end of the year G R4 64 - 18
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired

The aging analysis of trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered
to be impaired are as follows:

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

21. EIREBEZRA R HBEW

AR (4R)

() WEREZEWE SR
BRI KRR SERE &
WE SR ARE T T

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

S S

—E—tF ZE—RF

+=ZA=+—-8 +t—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Neither past due nor impaired 3 38 B st & 4,921 3,514
Past due but not impaired B HAB I | R E

— Less than 1 month past due —#ZHI~E—1{&H 834 419

— 1 to 3 months past due — BB —F=={EA 1,508 434

2,342 853

7,263 4,367

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers
for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

I 4 380 A sl Rl 18 2 FE MR AR 3K TS
BT BN A ROE KRR 8k 2 &
BIVEFAR -

181 BB 3 SR E 2 FE W AR SR TS
HETHEIEFPAR ZFE
PHEARNEE FERERI
REBSEER BEEEREH
AL L F R RR T TR E B -
RAREEERIRHBEEX
28 BZRFERDEESA
BEE - REBY EHZF
BRI MEAmD -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

22,

23.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 22. 2 EHRITER
The amounts are pledged to secure certain banking RERIED T EUARERT
facilities granted to the Group (note 38). The pledged NEF 7 ETFETRE (HFTEE38) ©
bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of DB ITIE TR E FE A X
approximately 0.35% to 0.75% per annum (2016: #10.35% F0.75% (T —/~NE : &
approximately 0.30% to 1.35% per annum). FIE4030% F 1.35% )5t 8 ©
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. B4 RELZEER
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—-tHF —E-RF
+=ZA=+—8 +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B TT
Cash and bank balances R4 RIBITES 29,571 32,500
Non-pledged bank deposits PR ITERK 120,085 32,009
Cash and cash equivalents in the 4R & BIISAk R R KRS
consolidated statements of REaRBRZAER
financial position and cash flow NEEEER 149,656 64,509

Deposits with banks carry interest at market rates
which is approximately 0.15% to 0.60% per annum
for current year (2016: approximately 1.00% per
annum).

Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31
December 2017 is an amount denominated in RMB
of approximately RMB776,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$941,000) (2016: approximately
RMB2,938,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$3,316,000). Remittance of RMB out of the PRC is
subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B =R A R A T

RAFE - RITFRIRT IS FEFIE
#490.15% £0.60% (ZZF—"F : F
FMZEL1.00%) 518 °

RZTE—+F+-_A=+—B2zR
e NASEBEEEY  BE—ZFU
ARBEHE 2 KIBELH AR 776,000
TT(FBERLBEE941,000T) (=T
—NF - YY) AR 2,938,000 7T © #H
LR HE%3,316,0007T) - AR
BETE AR B INAR P B BUT E i
Z SN E Il ARPR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR EE (A
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. B4 RELZEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing B ESEBIE A M B & HEE
activities:
Bank Loan
loan payables Total
RITEN FEf & et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
(note 26) (note 27)

(BizE26) (BfzE27)

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 122,500 30,668 153,168

Change in financing cash BERSHEEE :

flows:
Repayment in bank borrowings (&8 $R 1718 & (122,500) - (122,500)
Repayment in loan from EEIFERRRER

non-controlling shareholder - (1,072) (1,072)
Increase in loan from TR R EFIL N

non-controlling shareholder - 3,152 3,152

Total changes in financing ~ REBRLRER B

cash flows (122,500) 2,080 (120,420)
Exchange adjustments ERAZE - 1,790 1,790
Other changes: Hitn# 5 :

Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR

(note 31) (FfE31) - (7,306) (7,306)

At 31 December 2017 R-E—+tF
+=A=+—H - 27,232 27,232
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

Included in trade and other payables, the aging
analysis of trade payables, based on the due date, is

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 EHESZRERRRHEMEN
R
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
S S
—E—tF —ZE—RF
+=—A=+—-H t=-—A=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Trade payables JERTE SR 5,821 4,757
Accrued charges and other FEET B A I B At T BR K
payables 10,876 12,847
16,697 17,604
Aging analysis BRI AT

BRERMNE SRR R EMEN K
RPN E SRFIZBBE 2

as follows: RO -
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
+=B=+-8 +t=A=+-~
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Current BIER 4,562 3,021
31 to 60 days 31E260H 325 702
61 to 90 days 61290H 211 380
Over 90 days #3890 A 723 654
5,821 4,757
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25.

26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income comprises of a sign-up bonus for an
on-line ticket processing system and is recognised as
revenue in accordance with the terms of the
agreement. The agreement had been renewed for a
period of five years in 2015. During the year, the
contract period of this agreement was further
extended to February 2024.

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

5. IEEW A

BEERABRE LRERERG
FIAITEAL - WARIR 3 o 1R SR HE R A=
et - ZHBER _—T—HFEH
hF - RAFE  ZhEIEHH
E—HERE_T_F_A -

BANK LOAN 26. SRITE M
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
i ®
—E—tF —E-RF
+=A=+—8 +t-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Bank loan, secured BEMIRITER - 122,500
Carrying amount repayable: AR THIHREEERE ZREE
On demand or within one year BERKY—FA - 122,500
- 122,500
Less: Amounts shown under B REBBEYREEE
current liabilities - (122,500)

Amounts shown under
non-current liabilities

FRBREITEER

The Group had pledged one of its investment
properties to secure the bank loan granted to the
Group (note 18). The bank loan is carrying an interest
rate at Hong Kong interbank offered rate (HIBOR)
plus 2% per annum. The weighted average effective
interest rate on the bank loans was approximately
2.46% per annum for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: approximately 2.47% per annum).

AEBEEPEF —BREY S (M
FE18)  ERAREBERRITERZ
EHm- RITEFIRBBRITRZE
FEMBFEFNEHES - HEZT
—tF+-A=+—HLEFE R
TERZINEFTHERFNEOA
246%( ZF — RF: FHM XYL
2.47%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

27. LOANS PAYABLES

27. ENER

At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
S )iy
—E—tF —F—RF
+=BA=+—B +=—A=+—8H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =% BT T BT T
Loans from non-controlling FEFERRAR R 2 B3R
shareholders
— 1034635 B.C. Ltd. — 1034635 B.C. Ltd.
(1034635 BC") ([1034635BC) 27,232 23,362
— Up Fly — FeF (il - 7,306
Amounts shown under FERBEETIIREHE
non-current liabilities 27,232 30,668
Notes: Hfat
(i) 1034635 BC is a non-controlling shareholder of an indirect 10, 1034635 BC BA L Al —RIEE L E
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, namely K1 /& 2 51665127 British Colombia Ltd.
665127 British Colombia Ltd. (“665127 BC”). The loan is (/665127 BC|) ZH KRR - ZFEE
unsecured, interest-free and no demand for repayment I BERW EERTER—ERXRNE
within one year. FESAE S o
(i) During the year, Victory Devotion had entered into a sale (i) RFEAN HEECH—-—EBIE=FEF

and purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of the 80% equity interest in Honour Rich.
Therefore, the Company then derecognised the loan from
the non-controlling shareholder of Up Fly, a non-controlling
shareholder of Honour Rich, please refer to note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements for further details. For the
year ended 31 December 2016, the loan was unsecured,
interest-free and no demand for repayment within one year.

The carrying amounts of the loans payables are
approximately to their fair value.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B =R A R A T

VY EEw#HELERFA80% KHE - A
A=A s 38 =P v O
BZHERBER) ZHFERRRZE
K BPHERGE M FEHEN T 14
ZHIE BE—E—NFT_A=1—
HILFE ZERAWELF 2.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

28. YRR EK

At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
IS JA
—E—tF —TRE
+=ZA=+—8 +t-—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Carrying amount EREE

At the beginning of the year RE] 10,000 29,995

Fair value of financial guarantee RNERZEHEIEREL
contract issued during the year < NHE 3,222 —
Amortisation for the year REEEH (10,322) (19,995)
At the end of the year RER 2,900 10,000
Current liabilities TEARE 644 10,000
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 2,256 -
2,900 10,000
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(CONTINUED)

The Company gave the New Guarantee to a bank in
respect of the Revised Loan Facilities during the year.
The maximum guarantee amount borne by the
Company under the New Guarantee was HK$490
million. The guarantee previously issued by the
Company in the amount of HK$1,176 million in
respect of the syndicated loan facilities granted to
Pier 16 — Property Development, which had been
fully repaid on 29 June 2017, was released during
the year.

The outstanding loan under the Revised Loan
Facilities as at 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$635.0 million (2016: the outstanding loan under
the previous syndicated loan facilities was
approximately HK$260.9 million). The contingent
liabilities were disclosed in note 35.

Based on the valuation performed by the Valuer, the
Directors considered that the fair value of the
financial guarantee contract in respect of the New
Guarantee was approximately HK$3.2 million at the
date of issuance of financial guarantee contract that
has a corresponding increase in the Group's interests
in associates as deemed capital contribution.

The carrying amount of the financial guarantee
contract recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statements of financial position is in accordance with
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” and is carried at amortised cost.

No provision for financial guarantee contracts has
been made at 31 December 2017 and 2016 as the
Directors considered the default risk is low.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

28. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT 8. MIIEREHN (48)

RER - KRRIREETERBRE
M —ERITREFTER - AR AR
B ERAENESRESEAD
# 490,000,000 7T ° ANA 7] & GLER
FHNBMEBRERNREERRE
(ER=ZZE—tFNA-TNLAERHK
E18) 1= A Z0UE ¥ 1,176,000,000
TCH R E N FE AR o

RNZE—+FE+_A=+—"H8" &
BIIERBMEB TN 2 REEERL
/578#635,000,000 T( —ZF—/<5F ¢
MAREERMEE N2 AEER
B R4 578 260,900,000 7T ) © 8¢
REENRMIFEISHE -

BIBEHERMET 2 EE EFRA
R EREHNE L BB FER
M BERENDRAFENARBE
3,200,000 7T * 148 FE AR A3 H1 &
REBEREREE RG] 2w o

REFESTENFIR[EHMT
B HRANTE] UBERADOZ
REECRARE 246 MBI
REER - WIZEHR AT R

HREER/EQRRIE SR
E—tER_F-—RFT_-A
=t BYERMBEREOED
Bt



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

29. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED 29. MEMBEMRRARAZHIE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated () ZREMBMRRERAZENERSH
statement of financial position bi=|
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
+=—A=+—-H t=-—A=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Refundable for overseas REFZBINFETRT

profit tax for the year - -

Tax recoverable FEUR BT8R - -
(b) Recognised deferred tax liabilities (b) ERERELERIBEERE

The movements of deferred tax liabilities during BELERIBABEBERERNZ S8
the year are as follows: T

Accelerated

depreciation

iRITE

HK$'000

BT T

At 1 January 2016 —FT—-RF—H—H 409

Disposal of property, HEME - BEL&E
plant and equipment (422)
Exchange alignment BEE 3 3 B 13

At 31 December 2016, R=-B—XRE+=A=+—H
1 January 2017 and “E-—tF-A—-HBR
31 December 2017 —E2—+t&+=-HA=+—H -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

29. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Recognised deferred tax liabilities
(Continued)

9. %8

()

MBRAKRAZHE

(b) ERAELEHRERE (F)

At At

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
+=—A=+—H +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Net deferred tax liabilities RETE ISR R R IR

recognised on the consolidated ZELFIAR EFHE
statement of financial position

(c) Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through utilisation
against future taxable profits is probable. At 31
December 2017, the Group had tax losses of
approximately HK$165.2 million (2016:
approximately HK$158.7 million) that are
available to carry forward indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits.
Estimated tax losses of approximately HK$38.0
million (2016: approximately HK$31.1 million
and HK$27.2 million will expire within 1 to 5
years and over 5 years respectively) will expire
over 5 years.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future tax profit streams.
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(o)

KRR ﬁlﬁiﬁ?

fi & ﬁ%@%ﬂﬂ‘%ﬂm e % iR A
{Hﬁﬁ%’%ﬁwﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ -
ARERIBEESRFTAEE 2
BHEBERAAR RZ-ZZT—+
F+—-_A=+—H A£EBZ
TRIBE 18 %) A7 165,200,000
T(ZE—RF: HABE
158,700,000 7T ) + A £ £ R 55
#E8E DA SH R SR FE R B s A o
HE B EEBEOBEK
38,000,000 7T (—Z— /N4 : 4
7 #31,100,0007T K& & ¥
27,200,000 7T #% 73 Bl A — iﬂ
FARAFRIE) SRAEF
& EIH] -

F A 2R B A5 7 it 1 2RIR A A TR
Al B E R E) MR E B
FERETREHRIREE



Authorised: SEE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SR E{EE®0.01 T2

Rl

At 1 January 2016, 31 December R=—Z—xF—H—H -

2016, 1 January 2017 and —E—RE
31 December 2017 +=—A=+—-8"
—E—t¥—-HA—H
R=F—+fF
+=—A=+-—H
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHAR :

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &M EEEE0.017T

o= i1
At 1 January 2016, 31 December R=—Z—xF—HF—H -
2016, 1 January 2017 and —E—XE
31 December 2017 +=ZA=+—8"
—E-+t¥—-A—H
R=Z—tF
+=-A=+-—H

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of
the Company. All ordinary shares rank pari passu in
all respects among themselves.

On 8 September 2017, Victory Devotion entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of (i) the 80% equity interest in
Honour Rich; (ii) the Honour Rich Shareholder Loan;
and (iii) the Related Loan at a total consideration of
HK$12 million. The completion of the said disposal
took place on the same date.

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tHF+-A=1+—HLLEFE

Number Nominal

of shares value
dvig 4= HE
‘000 HK$'000

T BT T
160,000,000 1,600,000
4,926,491 49,265

EBEREEANERERTREIRZ
REREENRADBBRRRNE LR
—BR—RZITARR - FBEEBK
FUtEER T I EB AR

R-_ZE—tFHhANB  BHE—
BB E=FRIL—HEEHE
¥ 48 (B 78 % 12,000,000 7T H £ (i)
EEH80%MIE : (NBERREK
AR GiEEER - EliHESER
& B 7K °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. HEME AT (&)
(CONTINUED)

Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and EHEEENBEZFBERTEH
the calculation of the loss on disposal, are disclosed EEBZERENT
below:
(i) Consideration received (i) 2WKRE
As at
31 December
2017
i
—E—tF
+=A=+-8
HK$’'000
BET T
Consideration received by the Group in =~ AEBE MUK & MRS SEHEE
cash and cash equivalents WELZ B 12,000
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities over (i) XEZFEZEEREESD
which control was lost #r
As at
31 December
2017
S
—E—tF
+=-A=+—AH
HK$'000
BETT
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ WE MR 4,194
Trade and other receivables JE WS B 55 B K % LAt B U BR K 63,339
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFHIEHR 4,070
Trade and other payables BB 5 R E M ER R (41,477)
Loans payables ERTER (7,306)
Net assets disposed EHEEERE 22,820
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. HEME AT (&)
(CONTINUED)

(iii) Loss on disposal of Honour Rich Group (iii) HEEEEEZEE
As at
31 December
2017
»®
—E—tF
+=-—HA=+-A8
HK$'000
BT T
Consideration received by the Group AREE R WEZ B 12,000
Release of exchange difference upon R ERZIERZRE
disposal (3.169)
Net assets disposed of subsidiaries AEERGEHERB AR
attributable to the Group L EBEFE (22,820)
Assignment of the Related Loan HEBERZE:E (5,865)
Derecognition of non-controlling interest 4% |- R IEIE I HE =1 (18,100)
Loss on disposal of Honour Rich Group ~ HE&EBZE£E » EE
(note 14) (Ktat 14) (37,954)
(iv) Net cash inflow from disposal of (iv) HEZEEEZHERAF
Honour Rich Group H
As at
31 December
2017
S
—E—+tHF
+=-A=+—AH
HK$'000
BT T
Total consideration received R ELTE 12,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalent B EHEZREREEEE
balances disposal of 5 B #&8R (4,070)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEE2EEB2RERAFEE
Honour Rich Group 7,930
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 32. EERIKER

(a) Defined contribution retirement plan (a) EEEMFTERIKRSTE

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 effective from 1 June 2014.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant
authorities in the PRC, the Group participates in
the relevant social retirement benefit schemes
(the "PRC Schemes”) whereby the Group is
required to contribute to the PRC Schemes to
fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Contributions made to the PRC
Schemes are calculated based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC.
The relevant authorities of the PRC are
responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the PRC
Schemes is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the PRC Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution
represents gross contributions by the Group to
the PRC Schemes operated by the relevant
authorities of the PRC.
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AEBREFSBRFEATES
TEVED - ARBEFBIEAE
EHEANTE Y EE 28
MABEFE(RE S
2l]) - mESFEATEREER
RINETE ABIUEEAE
B RERESHE BX R
HE8&BAAEEL#
HoeEAREEBAKAZ
5%  FABBRAZEREZ
T-—WESA—BEABE
30,000 7T ° &t & 35 B B 55

S

RIFFPBEBRBAIFMEZR - &
SE2 EEBT g RIKENE
S (THEFEL) - Eitk - A&
AR B A IR A
BEREER ZRINGER - RIT
TR ZRE - AT B S FTE
HFRERIEBRETHEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 32. EERKER (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (b) EERRESTS

The Company adopted a share option scheme
on 5 June 2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
which became effective on 10 June 2014.
Unless early termination by the Company in
general meeting or by the board of Directors
(the “Board”), the Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of its adoption.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to eligible persons
for their contribution to the Group or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest and any subsidiary of such entity
(“Invested Entity”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors
are authorised at their absolute discretion to
invite eligible persons to take up options to
subscribe for shares. Eligible persons under the
Share Option Scheme include (i) any employee
(whether full time or part time and including
executive director) of any member(s) of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (i) any non-
executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (iii) any consultant,
adviser or agent engaged by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity, who is eligible to
participate in a share option scheme of the
Company; and (iv) any vendor, supplier of
goods or services or customer of or to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity,
who is eligible to participate in a share option
scheme of the Company.

RARRZE—WFARA
N —IERE R RERT 8 ([ BB AR A
HE ) YR -—E—WENA
THEAM - RIFBARTRK
FAeBHEES((EEE))
REKRIE - BRERE S
BERM B ERISER T -

BT E B e EiRE AR
ARBTHASESAKEE
IR B RElR A T 2 &
M EBARZE R ZAERNE
AE(REERDIFLAERZ
BERAL -

RIZBIRES > EFERE
A2ERBRFEREBALRER
PEE AR B - BB
AElZAEBALEBROAS
BERKERBRERMKREER
BZEMEES (Tim2 Bk
B WBRATES) : (A%
BERKERBRERMKREER
BZEAFATES(2REE
MIEHMITESR)  (NAKEE
falpk B R RIS ERIIRE BB
ZRARERBEARFBR
a8l 2 EEER - EREE
SRR R (iv) AR E KR
RAREMREEREERS
EANRIBRESE ZEME
R - EmIRGHERHES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)

There is no provision in the Share Option
Scheme to require a grantee to fulfill any
performance target or to hold the option for a
certain period before exercising the option, but
the Board may at its absolute discretion from
time to time provide such requirements in the
offer of grant of options.

The maximum number of shares available for
issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company is
492,649,119 shares (being not more than 10%
of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme
(the “Scheme Limit”)), representing
approximately 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

The Company may seek approval of its
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing
the Scheme Limit save that the total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company under the Scheme Limit so
refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of such
approval (the “New Scheme Limit"). Options
previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the
respective provisions of the scheme(s) of the
Company or exercised options) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the New
Scheme Limit.
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32. &

BRAKEF (&)

(b) EEMR#EsTE ()

F A AT 1 P I 4 1R DR E A
BRAETERBRERAERET
MRBBIT - TEREELET
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BR BEEFSRTRH2ER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 32. EERKER (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued) (b) BRESTE (F)

Notwithstanding aforesaid in above, the
maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from
time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
or any other share option scheme(s) adopted by
the Company (whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) to each eligible person in any
12-month period up to and including the date
of offer shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue on the date of offer,
unless such grant is approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general
meeting at which such eligible person and his
or her associates shall abstain from voting.

The exercise price in respect of any option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
be a price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the
option is offered; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

BE AT - R B E
AT 8 AR BT A H A BE AR A
TEIR M B RITE 2 2
SN BRI TE M A T8
TZBRHESE8E  TEEB6
TREEITRDBE 2 30% °

REMEBETEEREHA L
T EAHHE A5E2aER
AT RBERAE AR A
PITER A - AL AR) HL 1 8 A A 5t &
ER LR 2 B RE (T
wAETTE - EEHEIRTTE)
BITEmE BT ISR T IR
MBS THEBNENAH
ERTRODEEZ1% - HR
RERRDRBRAS LA
REERBRE BEHESE
RALTREBEAERARE
i EIMEROR - BIBHISH -

RIFEBE IR 2 EM B
hEZITEERSAREEE S
REBEEER BERN
AAFERAT=FF Z2HS
FOBROREBEREZOBRH
(BWAREXB)EBXAER
WERMHRWTE i)
REZBREZOE S E
LERAEMIAERRERA
W2 FHWTE ¢ R (i) iz
HE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M (F
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)
The offer of a grant of share option must be
accepted not later than 28 days after the date
of offer, upon payment of a consideration of
HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share option granted is determined by the
Board, save that such period shall not exceed a
period of 10 years commencing on the date
upon which the share option is granted.

No share options had been granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption and up
to 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

33. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS

In June 2016, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Yield Bright Limited (“Yield Bright”)
at a cash consideration of HK$548,000 (the
" Acquisition”). The Acquisition did not constitute a
business combination and was for the purpose of
acquiring the property, plant and equipment. In
accordance with HKFRS 3, such Acquisition did not
give rise to goodwill.
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32. EERKEA ()

(b) BRERTS(E)
ROBERE c BORBANE
HWBEHE -+ \BRBEARA
BRI T2 REER
IRl TERRESS
BT EZHEEBREER
HE AEFASBEETF -

& IR B R
—F—tE+=A=+—F
IE - BLRIRIE RS IR AR A BIE
EARRIE( =TT 1) -

33. WIREE

RZF—ARERA AEENERE
RBAEE548000 T WE R AR
AR)([Rz]) 2 2 2B BITIRA([7Z
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

33. KIRE E (&)

33. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

The assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the

RZBEBZERRBEERCER

date of the Acquisition are as follows: BEMT :
As at
31 December
2016
i
—E-RF
+=—A=+—H
HK$'000
BT
Net assets acquired: ERBEEFE
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) M - B N (M 16) 54
Deposit paid EftiEE 498
Accrued expenses FEFTFRX 4)
548
Total consideration, satisfied by: BREUTHAREBM
Cash B 548
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W >R &R H EE
Cash consideration paid ENBEeRE (548)

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

257



258

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

34. COMMITMENTS

(a) At 31 December 2017, the Group had no
outstanding capital commitments (2016: Nil).

(b) At 31 December 2017, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are payable as follows:

34, EiE

() R=B—tFT=A=+—
B SR B A 8 A
GE S TS IR

(b) R=Z=FE—tF+=-A=1+—
B XEEREBETAIBELSE
HEZENARKERENK
REEINT -

The Group as lessee KEFERZEAAA
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
»® i
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
+=ZA=+—8 TZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within one year —F R 5,598 5,902
In the second to fifth years, RE_FFRF
inclusive (BIEEEEMSE) 996 5,834
6,594 11,736

The Group lease certain office premises and
office equipment under operating leases. The
leases typically run for period ranging from two
to five years. None of leases includes contingent
rentals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

34. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 34. FAIE(EF)

(c) At 31 December 2017, the Group had (c) RAZE—+ttHF+_-_H=4+—
contracted with the tenants for the following B AEBEBEFFTHZRRK
future minimum lease receivables: SEEWHELSIT :

The Group as lessor KEBEESHEA
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
i i
—E—tF ZE—RF
+=ZA=+—-8 +t—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within one year —FR 5,710 5,799
In the second to fifth years, RE_ZFERF
inclusive (BIEEEMT) 2,807 6,494
8,517 12,293
Property rental income earned during the year FARRZMERSWALNR
was approximately HK$6,510,000 (2016: 75%6,510,000T (= F — /R F :
approximately HK$2,172,000. All of the #75%2,172,0007T) - KEE
Group's investment properties are held for FTBEREMERBEHEER
rental purpose. It is expected to generate rent wm EHAEEEAL1.93%
yield of approximately 1.93% (2016: (ZZF—RF : 493.02%) 2
approximately 3.02%) on an ongoing basis. The eOHmE - RNEBECHEME
Group's rental property has committed tenant ERREMERBELFMA -

for the next two years.
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The Company gave the New Guarantee to a bank in
respect of the Revised Loan Facilities during the year.
The maximum guarantee amount borne by the
Company under the New Guarantee was HK$490
million (notes 19 and 28). The guarantee previously
issued by the Company in amount of HK$1,176
million in respect of the syndicated loan facilities
granted to Pier 16 — Property Development, which
had been fully repaid on 29 June 2017, was released
during the year.

The outstanding loan under the Revised Loan
Facilities as at 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$635.0 million (2016: the outstanding loan under
the previous syndicated loan facilities was
approximately HK$260.9 million).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. {ABE

RER - RRBIREETERRE
M —ERITIREIER - ARFR
BHERERENRSRESEAS
# 490,000,000 7T ( B 5E 19 % 28) °
RARBRERT T NAVERE
FIEEERME (ERE—tF X
AZ+NBEBHER) REAEEE
1,176,000,000 7T Y £ 4R B 1 F N fE
@ o

R-_E—+FE+_A=+—8H "3
KIEFTERRMEETHNAREEREER
%) /57 ¥ 635,000,000 L ( = F —7
F g pREERMEE TH K
BEE R4 AE%260,900,0007T) °

F S K

e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

36. MEALRS
(a) FAEEMRAFEREBEA

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) The Group had the following

transactions with the related parties TETUTIRS :
during the year:
2017 2016
—E—tF VAN
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T BET T BET T
Management fee income B U & f& U — B i
received and receivable NAIZEBERA
from an associate 8,(i) 632 512
Interest expenses paidto B X[ —REEHE
a director and controlling  ARAXER 2 F B
shareholder 9(a),(ii) 106 1,749
Rental income received and 88 A &) 2 U M FEUR
receivable from a related el A
company 36(f) 2,546 -
Note: HtaE -
() The management fee was charged on actual cost () EHEEBIIZANEBGIEHEER
incurred by the Group for provision of management 752 17 R 7% FIT 22 4 2 B BR A AN
and technical services. B
(i) The interest expenses were paid for a term loan (i)  FIEEISE T B 5E LR B E

granted by Mr. Yeung which is unsecured and bears
interest at the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong
dollars loans by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited. The final repayment date of the
loan and all other sums owing to Mr. Yeung was
further extended to 31 October 2018 by a
supplemental letter of agreement dated 15 March
20176.

BERMmXN  ZEABELA
AREE LEEERITHRAA]
P82 8 T B &R B R T & &t
B B RIFBRRGELZH
IR B B 1% 8K F B BB
ZE-NEFE=A1THANZ
I — P HEE —F—/1
F+HA=+—H-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b) The outstanding balances with related

parties at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

36. BEALTRS (8)

(b) REEHMREFEALTZR

ik oo
= =

RBERANE -

At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
" n
—E—+F —E—RF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+—~
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Gl BEFRT  BETR
Amounts due from JrE U Bt 22~ R FRIR
associates 19 317,543 611,839
Amount due from a joint  FEU—MA EDEIAE
venture 20 10,170 10,170
Other receivable from a kE—ZEBEALZ
related party A FE R X (i) - 5,867
Note: Biat -
(i) The amount of receivable was from JV Partner for his () ZEEKEHNNKEEEEEF K

on-lending to a joint venture company of which the
Company and the JV Partner held 80% and 20%
interests respectively (the “JV Company”). The
amount is secured by 20% equity interest of the JV
Company, interest-free and has no fixed repayment
terms. The amount of receivable was disposed during
the year. For further details, please refer to the notes
14 and 31 to these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEALTRF (E)
(CONTINUED)

(c) Key management personnel () EEEEAEHE
compensation
Compensation for key management personnel, TEEEAEZAE(EBER
including amounts paid to the Directors as WeFr 1M EBE s e NESHER
disclosed in note 11, senior management of the Mz 12 HWEBEZEAANATI K
Company and certain of the highest paid EEAEBRETESHREZ
employees as disclosed in note 12 is as follows: I\ -
The Group
rEH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
bE=s BET T BT T
Salaries and other short-term ¥ & K H fth 55 A
employee benefits EERA 5,098 5,300
Retirement scheme RRET B
contributions 99 99
Total emoluments are W REE A
included in “staff costs” [E TR 9(b) 5,197 5,399
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(d) On 1 December 2008, the Company entered

(e)

into a letter of agreement with Mr. Yeung
regarding a term loan facility of up to HK$200
million, the loan is unsecured and charged with
interest at the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong
dollars loans by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. The principal
amount of the loan facility was increased up to
HK$290 million on 14 April 2009 and the final
repayment date of the loan and all other sums
owing to Mr. Yeung under the Revised Loan
Facility was further extended from 31 October
2016 to 31 October 2018 by a supplemental
letter of agreement dated 15 March 2016. The
said loan from Mr. Yeung constitutes a
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, but is fully exempt from
shareholders’ approval and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Management and services contracts entered
into between Jade Travel Ltd., an indirectly non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which
was incorporated in Canada (“Jade Travel
(Canada)”) and a company owned by a director
of Jade Travel (Canada) in an amount of
equivalent to approximately HK$732,000 (2016:
equivalent to approximately HK$715,000) also
constitutes a connected transaction under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but is fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval and all
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A

36. B8

BALREZ (&)

(d) R=ZENFF+-_A—H" &

(e)

AEBGEAER —BEEERS
% 7 200,000,000 7T 2 A HA
EXRmE L —DiER
ZERAEIRT  BEREEL
HELIRITERATAHR 2B
TERXEBEMNEGTE K=
TEENFHNA+ITA - ZEX
MEZASCHIBERRES
¥ 290,000,000 T © B @B H
HAE-_E—XE=ZA+EHBA
RN 2 W R - IBE]
EXBMEBE T ERRABLE
RighEZEMBIBE L &EE
HAME—FH-_FT—RF+
A=+—BE&E=_F— N\F
+A=+—H - BELMHRA
FHHAE - LiikEHEE
ZEFEBK—IHBEERS  H
ErHEHEETEMRAUE
TIHAZEIE T 2 BREH#ERAT
BEBEHRE -

Jade Travel Ltd. (R ARIRINE
AKX IZHOEZEIIEEEES
WM B2~ A (2 Klade
Travel]) B — fE A3 N & KX Jade
Travel EE BN R RIEI L &
HE M R A9 78 % 732,000 7T BY
EENMRBAEN(ZT—RF:
SR %A% 715,0007T) « Itk
BELIMHABETHAEINE
KEAERS @ EEZEREE
FEMRAUEFTTOAZEZRE
BERFBERERTE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

In June 2017, the Group entered into a two-
year tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) in respect of leasing the Group's
one of investment properties to a company
which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Yeung, the tenant therefore is a connected
person of the Company. The rental chargeable
under the Tenancy Agreement was determined
after taking into account of the valuation
conducted by the Valuer in connection with the
market rental chargeable in May 2017 in
respect of the said property. The entering into
of the Tenancy Agreement constitutes a
continuing connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and complies all disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For
further details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 26 June 2017.

In June 2016, the Group acquired the entire
issued share capital of Yield Bright Limited from
the companies that were wholly-owned by Mr.
Yeung. The Acquisition constituted a connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, but was fully exempt from shareholders’
approval and all disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For further
details, please refer to note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

36. BEALXR S ()
() R-B—LFXA KEREF

(9)

MAMENEERZ(HE
W&l ARBEBASER—
HHRBELTEEEERBEAZA
AHEAREEF—EHNEE
M- BRHBEFARNARZH
EALT  REEHEEBE AR
W ER AR € 48 5T M Ad B A gt Lt
WMER_Z—+FHANTIE
AR ECETHBETNUNE
3] o IRIE L WRANETOAE -
FIVHERHEEXN AR AT —IE
BEBER S WESTEMHR
AIE+UAZE 2 FIBIRERE ©
E—IPHBH2HEAAFHE
BRZE—+tFAZ+NEHH
YNGR

R-ZZ—REXA AKEHB
BREEZERBENRRKREIR
TERARIZEREHITR
R o ZW B ERRIE AR A
FETHABTBER —HEER
7 HEZEMRRET WA
A +HAE Z B R A A K& P
BRBEMRE -E—FFHER2
BlAR & ISR ML 33
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The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher level of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines debt as total borrowings which are bearing
fixed interest rates and variable interest rate such as
bank loan (note 26). Capital represents total equity
attributable to owners of the Company in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group's strategy was to maintain the debt-to-
capital ratio as low as feasible. In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt. As the Company has no interest-bearing
borrowings outstanding at 31 December 2017, the
debt-to-capital ratio is zero for the year (2016:
approximately 12%).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. 54X RAkRERE

AEEEREAZTZEMTRE
REBRENTFELE  HSHAH
BRERTROBEHEMIDE
wHRAMEE - WHEREREARNRE -
PURE & AR

AEEEBLESHRGLEERLE
AR NEERBSRRER(A]
RE R S 8 B/K T ) BB B AR
LR IR 2 i B R AR R 2 TR R 137
oy - DA Ko [ B AR 75 AR 00 48 2 1 o B
BRI o

AEEZEHBHEA L RETHEER
RERE - Bt AREBEHRE
RIRE M RET B RILF B A K5
BnRITER(HE26)) 2 fBE#E
B BAEGEAVBARRAZA
NERREEERAE -

AEBZRKBAENHEBRHER
Lb R R FMEK T o BMEF AR
ZEE - AEEAEFARMREIR
NeBRES£E MRFREEAR
BIIFRIEEEEREER - B
RARRR-_ZE—+F+_=A
—+—HIYEREEFERBE &
BEHEALERFRAZT(ZE—N
F412%) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has pledged the
following assets:

(a)

(b)

(c)

the Group pledged the time deposits of
approximately HK$10.1 million (2016:
approximately HK$9.4 million) to certain banks
for the issuance of certain banking facilities of
approximately HK$10.0 million (2016:
approximately HK$9.3 million) for the
operations of the Group (note 22);

World Fortune Limited pledged all (2016: all) of
its shares in Pier 16 — Property Development to
a bank in respect of the Revised Loan Facilities;
and

the Group’s one of investment properties with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$269.0
million (2016: approximately HK$191.7 million)
was pledged to secure against a bank loan
granted to the Group (note 26).

EBERRME (AE)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=1T—HILFE

38. EEHKM

AA —
N
)\7

Bt FT-A=+—8 &

SEDEMRIINEE -

(a)

(b)

(9)

REBERPE TIRITEEE BT
X497 %10,100,000T( = &
— N F 4% %9,400,000
TL) ¢ MBLASEBEBES LS
#5 10,000,000 7T (=& — /N 4F -
#4974 % 9,300,000 7T ) 7 EIER
TR E (F95E22)

Ik AR AT REEE]E K F
BEm—ERTEBER B
YEBRR 2 2HRH (ZE—R
F:2ERM) K&

AEEMEFR-—HEEELS
#269,000,000C( — & — X
& 1 %)% % 191,700,000 7T) Z
BREWEEWER  EREAE
EER —FRTERZERD
(PfizE26) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

39. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

In January 2018, the Group entered into a
preliminary sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party to acquire the entire
issued share capital of and the related
shareholders’ loans to two companies which
hold several commercial properties in Wanchai
at a total consideration of approximately
HK$58.2 million (subject to adjustment based
on the net current asset value of these two
companies as defined in the preliminary sale
and purchase agreement). The said acquisition
is expected to be completed in April 2018.

As announced by the Company on 13 February
2018, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a company which is
direct wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Yeung to acquire the entire issued share capital
of and the related shareholders’ loans to two
companies which hold indirectly two
commercial properties in Admiralty Centre
which are located adjacent to the Existing
Property at a total consideration of HK$148
million (subject to adjustment based on the net
current asset value of these two companies as
defined in the said sale and purchase
agreement) (the “Proposed Acquisition”). The
Proposed Acquisition constitutes a discloseable
and connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules and is therefore subject
to, among others, independent shareholders’
approval. For details of the Proposed
Acquisition, please refer to the announcement
dated 13 February 2018 issued by the
Company.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A

39. MEHERSE

(a)

(b)

RZE—NF—H A&EEH
—BBYE=FRIN—HF
BEEWZ  NEEMBERFEA
REFETERYENR R
EHEETRANEEARREE
HBRKREBO A BE
58,200,000 7T ( A ¥Z 7% M fil &
ARBEEFE(BREZY
FEEWMREIER) TUHA
B) o DB EIEBEEKR
T—\FEAZEK -

BMARATRN—E—NFE_A
T=BAM - AEBEE A
BhEEEREEERERERN
RAIEINL— BEE HaE - I
BREARNEIHE BITRA
RBEBRRER  ZMHEAF
FERFAEMBEAREE P O
MR ENRENEAYE
4R (8 A& 7% 148,000,000 7T
(AMRZ M A BRI B & %
BERELAEEREIEE)
TLARAER) ((BEWESE]) -
B EMHRA - BREKEEIE
BRARRZETIRE REE
R ALBEEFERE)EST
BRI ECHTE - BEE
FWBEIEFE  S2EN
NAEITIBABAE-_ZT—N\F=
BA+=BH2RM -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE SRR EE (A
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

40. 7 X B 2 B %5 iR 5 3R R

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE B E)
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) AR ZHMBMRRT
Company
2017 2016
—E—tHF —TRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSET RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR 215 E 1,093,248 1,305,686
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and ®’e  BRNRIER
other receivables H b I BR X 461 457
Pledged bank deposits EHEMIRITER 7,091 6,586
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEHEHR 129,300 8,792
136,852 15,835
CURRENT LIABILITIES ik =N
Other payables and accruals H Ath FE AR TR
FEET &R 8,407 119,927
Financial guarantee contract HIEEREH 644 10,000
9,051 129,927
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ REBEE(AfF)
(LIABILITIES) TREE 127,801 (114,092)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEHERARBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,221,049 1,191,594
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBERE
Financial guarantee contract I ERE D 2,256 -
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,218,793 1,191,594
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BRRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(a) Statement of financial position of the
Company (continued)

(a) AT ZHBMRRAE ()

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRFEE
Share capital [N 49,265 49,265
Reserves B 1,169,528 1,142,329
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 1,218,793 1,191,594

Approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 28 March 2018.

On behalf of the board

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
oh=124
Director

EF
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REREES

Ma Ho Man, Hoffman
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Director
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

EBERRME (AE)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40. A QA B2 BB R R KRR

b

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE HEEE (8)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) KRB ZFEEE

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
R A58 RitEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT BETT

At 1 January 2016 R-E—RF
—H—H 1,418,963 (235,483) 1,183,480
Loss and other REEEER
comprehensive loss B rHEEE
for the year = (41,151) (41,151)
At 31 December 2016 AT — 4
and 1 January 2017 +=-—A=+—H
NZT—+F
—H—H 1,418,963 (276,634) 1,142,329
Profit and other IREEm N &
comprehensive income  H th 2 E Ui 25
for the year - 27,199 27,199

At 31 December 2017 RA=-—Z—t&
+—-—HBA=+—H 1,418,963 (249,435) 1,169,528
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE SRR (&
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(a) The following list contains only the particulars

41. T EWE QT

of subsidiaries which principally affected the
results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as
defined under note 2(c) and have been
consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

(a) TREHINHAKEXE B

EXREBRNIEXEZNE
REFHB - BRRB IR - P
R D IR R 1E B mAk -

FrEZF R A R 20T
REZZENBAR - A EER
BRTAREKB 2 A M TSR

Proportion of ownership interest

BERRR bl
Place of Particulars of Group's Held
incorporation/ issued shares and effective by the Held by
Name of subsidiary operations paid up share capital interest  Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
HRRYL/ ERTRAR A58 HERAF S
WEAFEH ESE BEREFHE BiER BE DABA IEXEK
% % %
Macau Success Hong Kong 10,000,000 shares/ 100 100 - Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited BE HK$1,076,000 REER
RAEE(FR)BRAR 10,000,000 B&A& 13,/
711,076,000 7T
Macau Success Management  Hong Kong 100 shares/HK$100 100 = 100  Provision of
Services Limited BE 100kR& 7,/ 1007 administration
services
RALTERY
World Fortune Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares/HK$1,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
tRERAA Bk 1,000 & 15,/ REER
711,000 7T
665127 BC Canada 9,400 common shares 75 - 75 Investment holding
nex without par value REER
9,400 Y EREL

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRE AR A A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES M. FTEHBAT (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) (Continued) (a) (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
BRERRLA
Place of Particulars of Group's Held
incorporation/ issued shares and effective by the Held by
Name of subsidiary operations paid up share capital mterest Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
HMRY, EROTRHR HAAR i)
WEARER e BRBRAFE "B DRRE TEEH
% %
Jade Travel (Canada) Canada 15,000 class “A" 75 - 75 Wholesale and retail
JIE K Jade Travel nex non-voting business of selling

Jade Travel Ltd.

Good Sun Development
Limited
BEERERAA

Joint Cosmos Limited

BEARAR

special shares of
CAD1,500,000 and
7 common shares
without par value

B#1,500,000 172
15,000 [AJ 8
BREERIR
RIBiEEEL
LAk

United States of 100 common shares

America without par value
EHBRARE 100RUEREL
gl
Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1
B 1IRRR D,/ B8 T
Hong Kong 100 shares/HK$100
A 100 %R (3, /7B % 100 7T

75 = 75
100 = 100
100 = 100

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

airline tickets and
tour packages
HERRERIKTT
EZIHER
TEER

Wholesale and retail
business of selling
airline tickets and
tour packages

HERZERIRIT

ZIHER
TEXK

Property investment

nERE

Property investment

NERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M (F
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 4. TEWB AT (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned (b) BEEARFEIERERZIESD
subsidiaries that have material non- NG A=A
controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly TERBLRNEEEASE AT
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have EiERZIEEWNB AT 25t
material non-controlling interests: =

Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting rights held Loss allocated Accumulated
Place of by non-controlling to non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary incorporation/operations interests interests interests
FERERFHAR PRTHER
WEARAR AL EE Y BERRERLS ol i FitFERER

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Z8-tE “3RF SR-HF SRR S8-LF “3AF
HKS'000  HK'000  HK'000  HK'000

% o E¥TR BT AMTn  ERTR

=

665127 BC (anada 25 25 (3762) (1935 (12774  (8,626)
nex

Honour Rich BVI/PRC - 20 - (4,153) - (18551)

g5 ZBRANE/PE

Summarised financial information in respect of REBEASEAIEITBEZ

Group’s subsidiaries that has material non- M B A~ B 2 B s & R #E 5 tn

controlling interests is set out below. The T o TP 2 BFFEE R AR

summaries financial information below EEBRNYEFIZ £%8 o

represents amounts before intragroup

eliminations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

41. T EH B AT (F)

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned

subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests (continued)

665127 BC and its subsidiaries

(b) BEEXFEREZEZER
EMBARZHE (&)

665127 BCR EH B 1 &

At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
IS JIA
—E—+F —E—RF
t=A=+-8 t=A=1—*8
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current assets IEREEE 15,873 19,620
Current assets RENVEE 33,999 31,172
Current liabilities mEAE (11,062) (8,267)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (100,106) (85,296)
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue and other income WS K E AU A 583,590 565,272
Expenses 53 (598,279) (572,490)
Loss for the year AFEEEE (14,689) (7,218)
Other comprehensive loss Hith 2 EEE (50) (25)
Loss and total comprehensive  AFEEEELKEE
loss for the year E 8B (14,739) (7,243)
Net cash outflow from B ERIR SR
operating activities R (11,103) (956)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow & EEHIE S
from investing activities (M), mAEEE (105) 3,031
Net cash inflow from & EERE S
financing activities MAHEER 8,052 10,591
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be(Rd),/ RAFE (3,156) 12,666
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR M (F
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned

41. T EH B AT (F)

(b) BEEERFERERZ2HEER

subsidiaries that have material non- EMB AT ZFE (&)
controlling interests (continued)
Honour Rich and its subsidiaries EBEREKEB LT
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
i ®
ZEB—tF —ERF
+t=A=+t—-8 +t=A=t+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Non-current assets EMBEE - 4,572
Current assets RENEE - 20,357
Current liabilities mBaE - (4,579)
Non-current liabilities IEREAEE - (113,106)
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E—REF
HK$"000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Revenue Wzs - 8,833
Expenses X - (29,599)
Loss for the year REZEE - (20,766)
Other comprehensive loss H i 2 mEEE - (2,605)
Loss and total comprehensive  ANFEEE R EHE
loss for the year Ei8 B - (23,371)
Net cash outflow from KEHEIRIRE
operating activities iAbe s - (14,833)
Net cash inflow from WEEESHRE
investing activities MAFEE - 225
Net cash outflow from MEEEIR S
financing activity s - (36,918)
Net cash outflow We R FE - (51,576)

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B =R A R A T
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42.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Significant Restriction
Cash of RMB held in the PRC are subject to
local exchange control regulations. These local
exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC,
other than through normal dividends.

COMPARATIVES

The comparative statement of profit or loss has been
re-presented as the lottery business segment
discontinued during the current year. Certain
comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s presentation. In the
opinion of the Directors, such reclassification provide
a more appropriate presentation on the Group's
business segments.

41.

42.

e SRR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

TEHMBELRE (&)

() EXREH
RABRBFEAARBTEZR
S AR E 1 HINEE B KB FTAR
R o %5 & HINEE HIE ) 5
WP E AR ERS - M
BBIEFBRBERIN o

EEE T

A EXEH O HERANFER IR
2 BBBERPLEBREFEERN
2 - ETHRBEFLHECIFELE
MOBEUREEAFENZY - EF
R ZEMDBERAREER
DERRHESENZT o
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFHBRE

RESULTS

£

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—B2-t§& —T-RF —T-nF _—T-WF _—T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BB BT BETT
Continuing operations ~ HEKEEK
Revenue Wiz 589,935 564,848 941,078 1,103,544 1,430,182
Profit/(loss) before taxation K ABERLSERE 2
from continuing operations &R ATEF /(E518) 4,369 (16,299) 7,500 48,964 25,019
Taxation iz} - - - - 173
Profit/(loss) after taxation ~ REHELLEHK
from continuing operations B EEF]/ (E1E) 4,369 (16,299) 7,500 48,964 25,192
Discontinued operations D&M E&E ¥k
(Loss)/profit after taxation ~ REDKRILELER
from discontinued BBk (B8),&H
operations (37,825) (20,766) (19,143) 68,818 (12,947)
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ &E[E (518) /%5 (33,456) (37,065) (11,643) 117,782 12,245
Attributable to: BT B IE L
Owners of the Company /NG &S (29,810) (30,977) (6,670) 96,890 18,644
Non-controlling interest RS (3,646) (6,088) (4,973) 20,892 (6,399)
(Loss)/profit for the year A& (F518) /%7 (33,456) (37,065) (11,643) 117,782 12,245
(Loss)/earnings per share &2 FREELER
attributable to owners  (g518) /&%
of the Company:
From continuing and REBELER
discontinued operations B IFELER
— Basic and diluted —EARREE (0.61) (0.63) (0.14) 197 0.42

HK cents B4l HK cents/ 1l HK cents &1l HK centsi#&fll HK cents &Il

278
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Five-Year Financial Summary (Continued)

TFEMEHMEE)
EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=R=+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

“E—+f T —T-HF ZT-WmFE ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BB BB BETT

Total assets BERE 1,046,047 1,188,434 1,153,279 1,205,737 1,199,307
Total liabilities BEEE (48,191) (182,077 (107,607) (116,170) (189,758)
Net assets BEFE 997,856 1,006,357 1,045,672 1,089,567 1,009,549
Total equity attributable to AR AR R fE(E

owners of the Company ~ #Ez5#A(E 1,010,630 1033534 1,066,188 1,078,202 984,724
Non-controlling interests ~ JEIZAR#ERS (12,774) (27,177) (20,516) 11,365 24,825
Total equity EREE 997,856 1,006,357 1,045,672 1,089,567 1,009,549
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Particulars of Investment Properties
REYEFE

Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group REIEHR  NEBBENKEYEFS

at the end of the reporting period are as follows: N
Attributable

interest of the
Location Use/Status Type Tenure Group
1t B Rz kR R HAFH AEEELER
Office Unit Nos. 1003 Rental Commercial Medium term lease 100%
and 1004A on the 10th apc| building HRERZ2 A
Floor of Tower 1 e

of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong
HEoEERE 185
BERLEI0E

1003 = 2 1004A =

13th Floor, Sing-Ho Rental Commercial Medium term lease 100%
Finance Building, A building FRHRZZ 4

Nos. 166/168 HE

Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
EREBFELITE
166/168 5%
EMMBARE1318
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